
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OCTOBER 2, 2014  Page 1 of 6 

MEETING OF THE  

TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

2 NORTH MAIN STREET 

3rd FLOOR – CONFERENCE ROOM 

THURSDAY, OCTOBER 2, 2014 

4:00 P.M. 

 WORKSHOP AGENDA 

1. Discuss, as may be needed, Regular Meeting agenda items for the meeting posted for
Thursday, October 2, 2014.

2. Receive a briefing on I-35.



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OCTOBER 2, 2014  Page 2 of 6 

5:00 P.M. 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

2 NORTH MAIN STREET 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 2ND FLOOR 

TEMPLE, TX 

TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

1. Invocation

2. Pledge of Allegiance

II. PROCLAMATIONS & SPECIAL PROCLAMATIONS

3. (A) Czech Heritage Month October 2014 

(B) National Life Chain Sunday October 5, 2014 

(C) National Colonial Heritage Month October 2014 

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may sign up to do so prior to this meeting. 
Public comments will be received during this portion of the meeting.  Please limit comments to 3 
minutes.  No discussion or final action will be taken by the City Council.  

IV. PUBLIC HEARING

4. 2014-7493-R: PUBLIC HEARING – Conduct a public hearing and consider approving a
resolution authorizing permanent use of approximately 0.101 acres of land and temporary
working space use of approximately 0.142 acres of land for construction, use, maintenance,
repair, and replacement of landscaping and intersection enhancements associated with West
Avenue R, including right-of-way and bicycle and pedestrian connectivity, in a portion of Scott
& White Park, in accordance with Chapter 26 of the Texas Parks and Wildlife Code.

5. 2014-7494-R: PUBLIC HEARING – Conduct a public hearing and consider adopting a
resolution approving the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Citizen Participation
Plan.

V. CONSENT AGENDA 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OCTOBER 2, 2014  Page 3 of 6 

All items listed under this section, Consent Agenda, are considered to be routine by the City Council 
and may be enacted by one motion.  If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda at the request of any Councilmember and will be considered 
separately. 

6. Consider adopting a resolution approving the Consent Agenda items and the appropriate
resolutions for each of the following:

Minutes

(A) September 4, 2014 Special Called and Regular Meeting
(B) September 18, 2014 Special Called and Regular Meeting

Contracts, Leases, & Bids 

(C) 2014-7495-R: Consider adopting a resolution ratifying an emergency contract with Bell 
Contractors of Belton for the emergency repair of a manhole on Ira Young Drive in the 

 amount of $64,886. 

(D) 2014-7496-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with 
Skyblue Utilities, Inc (Skyblue) of Kingsland for construction of a new 8” PVC sanitary 
sewer main in the area of 10th and 12th Street from Central Avenue to Avenue D in an 
amount not to exceed $435,384.10, as well as, declare an official intent to reimburse the 
expenditures with the issuance of 2015 Utility Revenue Bonds. 

(E) 2014-7497-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing Change Order #1 to the 
construction contract with Austin Engineering Co., Inc. (AEC) of Austin for construction 
activities required to build Phase 1 of the TBP-Panda Effluent Line in an amount not to 

 exceed $35,000. 

(F) 2014-7498-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing change order #2 to the 
construction contract with McLean Construction (McLean), of Killeen, for construction 
activities required to build the Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant 24” effluent 
pipeline in an amount not to exceed $231,910.60. 

(G) 2014-7499-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of a yearly 
2014-2015 sole source maintenance contract with Intergraph Public Safety in the 

 amount of $42,024. 

(H) 2014-7500-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of a yearly 
2014-2015 sole source maintenance contract with Sungard Public Sector in the amount 

 of $160,396.99. 

(I) 2014-7501-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing execution of an easement 
agreement granting Magellan Pipeline Company, L.P. a permanent easement of 3,777 
square feet and a temporary workspace easement of 17,202 square feet for a four-inch 
diameter diesel fuel pipeline and related facilities adjoining the east side of North 
General Bruce Drive near Industrial Boulevard. 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OCTOBER 2, 2014  Page 4 of 6 

(J) 2014-7502-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services 
agreement with MKP Consulting of Atascocita for the preparation of the CDBG 
program’s five-year  Consolidated Plan for fiscal years 2016 - 2020, in the amount of 

 $25,000. 

(K) 2014-7503-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an amendment to a 
 professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick, & Associates, LP (KPA) for 

redesign and survey services for final design of phase 1 of the Leon River Interceptor 
Project in an amount not to exceed $36,040. 

(L) 2014-7504-R: Consider adopting a resolution authoring a professional services 
agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP (KPA), to design, bid, and provide 
construction phase services for North Lucius McCelvey Extension in an amount not to 
exceed $228,550. 

(M) 2014-7505-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services 
agreement with Stateside Right of Way Services, to provide right of way services along 
Avenue U in an amount not to exceed $229,400. 

(N) 2014-7506-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
lease agreement between the City of Temple and Richard Potts, d/b/a JR Aviation LLC, 
upon the Federal Aviation Administration approval permitting the Lessee to lease a 150’ 
X 120’ plot of land and construct a 120’ X 100’ aircraft hangar and a 120’ X 50’ aircraft 
parking apron at the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport.  

(O) 2014-7507-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a one year lease extension to 
Kachemak Bay Flying Service, a wholly owned subsidiary of System Studies and 
Simulation, Inc. (S3), to continue to provide rotary wing flight services; overnight aircraft 
storage; and other related aviation services through December 1, 2015 at the 
Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport. 

(P) 2014-7508-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a renewal lease agreement 
with the Bell County HELP Center for lease of space in the Public Services Building. 

Ordinances – First Reading 

(Q) 2014-4686: FIRST READING: Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing a five year 
franchise agreement with Serenity EMS, LLC d/b/a AmeriStat Ambulance for non-
emergency ambulance transfer services. 

Ordinances – Second & Final Reading 

(R) 2014-4684: SECOND READING - Z-FY-14-35: Consider adopting an ordinance 
authorizing a zoning change from Agricultural District (AG) to General Retail District 
(GR) on 1.054 +/- acres, out of the Baldwin Robertson Survey, Abstract Number 17, Bell 
County, Texas, located at 6511 North SH 317. 

(S) 2014-4685: SECOND READING – Consider adopting an ordinance establishing the 
Civil Service classifications and the number of positions in each classification for the 
Temple Fire Department and the Temple Police Department. 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OCTOBER 2, 2014  Page 5 of 6 

Misc. 

 (T) 2014-7509-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing acceptance of a Texas 
Department of Transportation, Aviation Division, Non-Primary Entitlement (NPE) Grant,   
(50-50 grant with the City’s match $300,000, funded  through the Reinvestment Zone), 
in fiscal year 2015, for entrance and parking improvements at the northwest portion of 
the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport in the total amount of $ $600,000.   

(U) 2014-7510-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing acceptance of the FY 15 
Texas Department of Transportation, Aviation Division, Routine Airport Maintenance 
Grant, (City match of $50,000), to help assist with lower cost airside and landside 
Airport improvements at the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport in the 

 amount of $100,000. 

(V) 2014-7511-R: Consider a resolution granting permission to proceed with a 
Transportation Alternative Program (TAP) grant application to the Killeen Temple 
Metropolitan Planning Organization (KTMPO) for a new sidewalk and associated 
enhancements along N. 31st Street. 

VI. REGULAR AGENDA

ORDINANCES 

7. 2014-4687: FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING  - Z-FY-14-36: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to allow a package store, for the retail sales of 
alcoholic beverages with off-premise consumption, on Lot 2, Block 1, Western Hills 
Commercial Phase III, located in Suite 201 at 4311 West Adams Avenue.

8. 2014-4688: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-14-37: Consider an ordinance to 
take action on a rezoning from Urban Estate District (UE) to Single Family-One District (SF-1) 
on 61.137 +/- acres, being a tract of land in the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract No. 5, Bell 
County, Texas, located at 5105 Charter Oak Drive.

9. 2014-4689: PUBLIC HEARING – Z-FY-14-38 – Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing a 
zoning change from TMED (T5-c) to PD-T5-c (Planned Development District-TMED T5-c) on a 
portion of Lots 2 and 3, Block 1, Scott and White Properties Subdivision, located on the 
southwest corner of Scott Boulevard and South 31st Street.

RESOLUTIONS 

10. 2014-7512-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with 
R.T. Schneider Construction Company, Ltd., (RTS), for construction of the 23rd Street 
Extension in an amount not to exceed $323,264.45.



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OCTOBER 2, 2014  Page 6 of 6 

The City Council reserves the right to discuss any items in executive (closed) session whenever permitted by the 
Texas Open Meetings Act. 

I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of this Notice of Meeting was posted in a public place at 
11:25 AM, on Friday, September 26, 2014. 

______________________ 
Lacy Borgeson, TRMC 
City Secretary 



   

 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
10/02/14 
Item #4 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, PE, Public Works Director 
Don Bond, PE, City Engineer 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: PUBLIC HEARING – Conduct a public hearing and consider approving a 
resolution authorizing permanent use of approximately 0.101 acres of land and temporary working 
space use of approximately 0.142 acres of land for construction, use, maintenance, repair, and 
replacement of landscaping and intersection enhancements associated with West Avenue R, 
including right-of-way and bicycle and pedestrian connectivity, in a portion of Scott & White Park, in 
accordance with Chapter 26 of the Texas Parks and Wildlife Code. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of resolution as proposed.  
 
ITEM SUMMARY:   The City of Temple Public Works Department is managing a group of 
improvement projects near Scott & White Park, which is located at the northeast corner of West 
Avenue R and South 19th Street. The group of projects, referenced as the Avenue R Projects, 
includes the widening of Avenue R, intersection enhancements at 25th and 19th Streets, sidewalks, 
landscaping, irrigation facilities, and an extension of the Friars Creek trail. Please see the attached 
exhibit for an overall project map. 
 
The widening of Ave R and the addition of sidewalks along the north side of the roadway will require 
the existing limits of right-of-way to be extended approximately 10 feet to the north. This 10 foot 
extension will require moving the outfield fence for Guthrie Field approximately 10 feet to the north, as 
shown in the attached design exhibit. An additional 20-foot-wide temporary work space will be 
needed along Avenue R in Scott & White Park only during construction of the proposed park and 
transportation facilities. Please see the attached legal descriptions for the proposed additional ROW 
and the temporary work space. 
 
Chapter 26 of the Texas Parks and Wildlife Code requires municipalities and other governmental 
entities and agencies to publish notices, hold a public hearing, and make specific findings for 
approval of any project involving non-park use of public land that was designated and used as a park 
or recreation area prior to the arrangement of the project. Approval of the project requires a 
determination that there is no feasible and prudent alternative to the use or taking of such land and 
that the program or project includes all reasonable planning to minimize harm to the remaining park 
land, resulting from the use or taking.  
 
 
 
 



10/02/14 
Item #4 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

The slight reduction in the size of Guthrie Field will be mitigated by the addition of new 
complementary facilities, such as sidewalks, benches, lighting and landscaping. The overall project 
will also add sidewalk and trail connections to existing and proposed parks near Scott & White Park, 
resulting in substantial enhancement of the City of Temple’s park system. 

Please refer to the attached Design Exhibit and surveys for a detailed depiction of the area. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Funding for the proposed Ave R Intersection Improvement Project has been 
identified in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing and Project Plans, Line 500, account 795-9500-
531-6553, project 100696 to fund the costs related to the proposed improvements.  There is no direct 
fiscal impact related to Chapter 26 of the Texas Parks and Wildlife Code. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Notice of Public Hearing 
Overall Project Map 
Design Exhibit 
0.101-acre ROW Survey 
0.142-acre Temporary Work Space Survey 
Resolution 



 

 

 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 
TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 

 
 
 
 
Notice is hereby given that a public hearing will be held by the City Council of the City of Temple in the 
Council Chambers on the Second Floor of the Municipal Building, 2 North Main Street, Temple, Texas at 
5:00 p.m. on the 2nd day of October 2014 to consider the following:  
 
Approval of the permanent use of approximately 0.101 acres of land and temporary working space use of 
approximately 0.142 acres of land for construction, use, maintenance, repair, and replacement of 
landscaping and intersection enhancements associated with West Avenue R, including right-of-way and 
bicycle and pedestrian connectivity, in a portion of Scott & White Park, in accordance with Chapter 26 of the 
Texas Parks and Wildlife Code. 

 
Notice is hereby given that all persons of the City of Temple may appear at said hearing, and they are 
invited to appear, to make suggestions, recommendations or objections to the proposed project; and that 
information concerning such project is on file in the Office of the City Secretary. 

 
Dated this 7th day of September 2014. 

 
If you have any questions regarding this Notice, please contact Lacy Borgeson, TRMC, City Secretary, City 
of Temple at (254) 298-5700. 

 
SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS:  This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking 
spaces are available. Requests for accommodations or interpretive services must be made 48 hours 
prior to this meeting. Please contact the City Secretary’s Office at 254-298-5700 for further 
information. 
 





ppg

on
 A

ug
 1

4,
 2

01
4

T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t i

s 
re

le
as

ed
 fo

r 
th

e 
pu

rp
os

e 
of

 in
te

rim
 r

ev
ie

w
 

un
de

r 
th

e 
au

th
or

ity
 o

f

It 
is

 n
ot

 to
 b

e 
us

ed
 fo

r 

pu
rp

os
es

.
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n,
 b

id
di

ng
 o

r 
pe

rm
it 

R
. D

av
id

 P
at

ric
k,

 P
.E

. 8
27

38

S
ca

le
 1

" 
=

 3
0'

19TH ST.

17TH ST.

S
C

O
T

T
 &

W
H

IT
E

P
A

R
K

A
V

E
N

U
E

 R

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 A
V

E
N

U
E

 R
B

as
eb

al
l F

ie
ld

 F
en

ce
R

el
o

ca
ti

o
n











RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7493-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING PERMANENT USE OF APPROXIMATELY 
0.101 ACRES OF LAND AND TEMPORARY WORKING SPACE USE OF 
APPROXIMATELY 0.142 ACRES OF LAND FOR CONSTRUCTION, 
USE, MAINTENANCE, REPAIR, AND REPLACEMENT OF 
LANDSCAPING AND INTERSECTION ENHANCEMENTS 
ASSOCIATED WITH WEST AVENUE R, INCLUDING RIGHT-OF-WAY 
AND BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN CONNECTIVITY, IN A PORTION 
OF SCOTT & WHITE PARK, IN ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTER 26 OF 
THE TEXAS PARKS AND WILDLIFE CODE; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the City Council was requested to conduct a public hearing in accordance 
with Chapter 26 of the Texas Parks and Wildlife Code to consider the permanent use of 
approximately 0.101 acres of land and temporary working space use of approximately 0.142 
acres of land for construction, use, maintenance, repair, and replacement of landscaping and 
intersection enhancements associated with West Avenue R, including right-of-way and 
bicycle and pedestrian connectivity, in a portion of Scott & White Park; 
 
 Whereas, Parks and Leisure Services, the City department responsible for 
supervision of Scott & White Park, received written notice of the proposed project and the 
date and place for the public hearing on September 2, 2014;  
 

Whereas, notice of the public hearing to be held on October 2, 2014, was given for 
three consecutive weeks on September 7, September 14, and September 21, 2014, in the 
Temple Daily Telegram, a newspaper of general circulation; 

 
 Whereas, the public hearing was held on October 2, 2014; and 

 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: The City Council, having taken into account clearly enunciated local 
preferences, finds that there is no feasible and prudent alternative to the permanent use of 
approximately 0.101 acres of land, described in Exhibit A, and temporary working space use 
of approximately 0.142 acres of land, described in Exhibit B, for construction, use, 
maintenance, repair, and replacement of landscaping and intersection enhancements 
associated with West Avenue R, including right-of-way and bicycle and pedestrian 
connectivity, in a portion of Scott & White Park, and further, that all reasonable planning has 
been done to minimize harm to the remaining park land, resulting from the use of taking. 

1 
 



 
 

Part 2: The City Council approves the permanent use of approximately 0.101 acres of 
land, described in Exhibit A, and temporary working space use of approximately 0.142 acres 
of land, described in Exhibit B, for construction, use, maintenance, repair, and replacement 
of landscaping and intersection enhancements associated with West Avenue R, including 
right-of-way and bicycle and pedestrian connectivity, in a portion of Scott & White Park. 
 
 Part 3:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of October, 2014. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros  
City Secretary      City Attorney 

2 
 



   

 

 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM  

 

10/02/14 
Item #5 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Brynn Myers, Assistant City Manager 
Ashley Williams, Sustainability and Grant Manager 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:   PUBLIC HEARING – Conduct a public hearing and consider adopting a 
resolution approving the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Citizen Participation Plan. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Conduct public hearing and adopt resolution as presented in item 
description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The City of Temple annually receives Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Entitlement funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. The 
primary purpose of the grant program is to develop viable communities through the provision of 
decent housing, suitable living environments and expanding economic opportunities for low and 
moderate income persons.  As a recipient of these entitlement program funds the City is required to 
produce a Citizen Participation Plan, which outlines how, and when, the City will request formal and 
informal participation in the development and implementation of the CDBG programs. 
 
This presentation and public hearing for the Citizen Participation Plan was preceded by a 30-day 
public comment period.  One comment was received and addressed within the document. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No Fiscal Impact. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 

  



 
 RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7494-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, APPROVING THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK 
GRANT CITIZEN PARTICIPATON PLAN; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the City of Temple annually receives Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) Entitlement funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development - the primary purpose of the grant program is to develop viable communities 
through the provision of decent housing, suitable living environments and expanding 
economic opportunities for low and moderate income persons; 
 
 Whereas, as a recipient of these entitlement program funds the City is required to 
produce a Citizen Participation Plan, which outlines how, and when, the City will request 
formal and informal participation in the development and implementation of the CDBG 
programs; 
 
 Whereas, the presentation and public hearing for the Citizen Participation Plan was 
preceded by a 30-day public comment period; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council approves the Community Development Block Grant Citizen 
Participation Plan as presented. 
 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of October, 2014. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

10/02/14 
Item #6(A-B) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  

Lacy Borgeson, City Secretary  

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Approve Minutes: 

(A) September 4, 2014 Special Called and Regular Meeting 
(B) September 18, 2014 Special Called and Regular Meeting 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve minutes as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: Copies of minutes are enclosed for Council review. 

FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: 
September 4, 2014 Special Called and Regular Meeting (To Be Provided) 
September 18, 2014 Special Called and Regular Meeting (To Be Provided) 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

10/02/14 
Item #6(C) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva P.E., Public Works Director 
Aaron Gonzales, Interim Utility Services Director 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution ratifying an emergency contract with Bell 
Contractors of Belton for the emergency repair of a manhole on Ira Young Drive in the amount of 
$64,886. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt a resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  Over the past several days the Public Works Utility Services Division has been 
attempting to relieve a wastewater issue and blockage with no success at 3010 Ira Young Drive, 
Chappell Creek Village Apartments.  Closed circuit TV monitoring of the sewer main disclosed broken 
sections around the manhole and severe root intrusion of the sewer main on the upstream side, 
preventing wastewater from passing through the system. 

Given the severe condition of the sewer main and loss of the collection system all together in the 
location and limited to no access, Public Works Utilities is requesting this be declared an emergency 
repair.  If the line is not replaced immediately it may present significant health, safety and 
environmental hazards.  Bell Contractors has been engaged to complete the work, as they have the 
immediate material and equipment on hand to complete this project in a timely manner. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Currently, funding in the amount of $64,886 is available in Capital Building & 
Grounds/Sewer Line Replacement, account 520-5460-535-6361, project 101246, to fund the 
emergency contract with Bell Contractors. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Project Map 
Quote from Bell Contractors   
Resolution    



!!2

!!2

G!.

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!!!!!
!

!

!
!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

10" VCP

3010

UE 
15

SE 
20

UE 
15

SE 
20

SE 
20

S
E 1
5

U
N

K
N

O
W

N 
10

S
E 1
5

S
E 15

U

8,796 square feet
SOD

5,956 square feet
SOD

BY-PASS
PUMPING LINE

ROOT INTRUSION
SEWER LINE &

MANHOLE REPLACEMENT

EMERGENCY SEEMERGENCY SEW





RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7495-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, RATIFYING AN EMERGENCY CONTRACT WITH BELL 
CONTRACTORS OF BELTON, TEXAS, FOR THE EMERGENCY REPAIR 
OF A MANHOLE ON IRA YOUNG DRIVE, IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$64,886; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, over the past several days the Public Works Utility Services Division has 
been attempting to relieve a wastewater issue with no success at 3010 Ira Young Drive, 
Chappell Creek Village Apartments; 

Whereas, closed circuit TV monitoring of the sewer main disclosed broken sections 
around the manhole and severe root intrusion of the sewer main on the upstream side 
preventing wastewater from passing through the system; 

Whereas, given the severe condition of the sewer main and loss of the collection 
system in the location and limited to no access, Public Works Utilities is requesting this be 
declared an emergency repair - if the line is not replaced immediately it may present 
significant health, safety and environmental hazards;   

Whereas, due to the urgent nature of the project, staff obtained a proposal from Bell 
Contractors of Temple, Texas, to complete the work immediately as they have the necessary 
material and equipment on hand to respond quickly;  

Whereas, staff recommends ratifying an emergency contract with Bell Contractors, of 
Belton, Texas for the emergency repair of a manhole on Ira Young Drive, in the amount of 
$64,886; 

Whereas, funding is available in Capital Building & Grounds/Sewer Line 
Replacement, Account No. 520-5460-535-6361, Project No. 101246, to fund this emergency 
contract; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to ratify an 
emergency contract with Bell Contractors of Belton, Texas, after approval as to form by the 
City Attorney, for the emergency repair of a manhole on Ira Young Drive, in the amount of 
$64,886; 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

1 



PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of October, 2014. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary City Attorney 

2 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

10/02/14 
Item #6(D) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 
Don Bond, P.E., CFM, City Engineer  

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with 
Skyblue Utilities, Inc (Skyblue) of Kingsland for construction of a new 8” PVC sanitary sewer main in 
the area of 10th and 12th Street from Central Avenue to Avenue D in an amount not to exceed 
$435,384.10, as well as, declare an official intent to reimburse the expenditures with the issuance of 
2015 Utility Revenue Bonds. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description.

ITEM SUMMARY:  The Public Works Utility Services Division has experienced numerous wastewater 
line issues during the past several years between 10th and 12th Street from Central Avenue to Avenue 
D.  These lines, which are mostly made from vitrified clay pipe, are aging and beginning to fail. This 
project will result in the replacement of an estimated 2,990 linear feet of 6-inch and 8-inch diameter 
wastewater lines with new 8-inch wastewater lines and new services. 

On August 28, 2014, six bids were received. Per the attached Bid Tabulation, Skyblue submitted the 
low bid on the project in the amount of $435,384.10. The opinion of probable construction cost was 
$445,000. Clark & Fuller, checked references and recommends awarding construction to the low 
bidder, Skyblue, in their attached letter. Construction time allotted for the project is 160 days. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Council authorized this project as part of the Capital Improvement Plan in the FY 
2015 Budget in the amount of $350,000.  On March 20, 2014, Council awarded an engineering 
contract in the amount of $69,083 to Clark & Fuller, PLLC.  In order to fund the construction contract 
in the amount of $435,384.10, an additional $154,467.10 will need to be allocated to this project from 
the estimated savings associated with the Water Line Replacement – Along Lamar from 7th Street to 
Nugent Tank Project.  Both projects will be funded with the proposed 2015 Utility Revenue Bonds to 
be issued Spring 2015.  Funds in the amount of $504,468 will be made available in account 561-
5400-535-6951, project 101083, to fund this construction contract in the amount of $435,384.10 with 
Skyblue Utilities, Inc. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Engineer’s Letter of Recommendation 
Bid Tabulation 
Project Map 
Resolution 







LEGEND:

KEYED NOTES

MARTIN   LUTHER   KING   JR.     DRIVE

10TH    STREET

12TH    STREET

S  14TH   STREET

A
V

EN
U

E    C

A
V

EN
U

E    D

A
V

EN
U

E    B

A
V

EN
U

E    A

C
EN

TR
A

L    A
V

EN
U

E

A
D

A
M

S    A
V

EN
U

E10TH    STREET

12TH    STREET

N   14TH    STREET

A
V

EN
U

E    E

A
V

EN
U

E    F



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7496-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH SKYBLUE 
UTILITIES, INC., OF KINGSLAND, TEXAS, FOR CONSTRUCTION OF A 
NEW 8-INCH PVC SANITARY SEWER MAIN IN THE AREA OF 10TH AND 
12TH STREET, FROM CENTRAL AVENUE TO AVENUE D, IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $435,384.10; DECLARING AN OFFICIAL 
INTENT TO REIMBURSE CERTAIN EXPENDITURES WITH THE 
ISSUANCE OF 2015 UTILITY REVENUE BONDS; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, the Public Works Utility Services Division has experienced numerous 
wastewater line issues during the past several years between 10th and 12th Street from Central 
Avenue to Avenue D and these lines, which are mostly made from vitrified clay pipe, are aging 
and beginning to fail; 

Whereas, this project will result in the replacement of an estimated 2,990 linear feet of 6-
inch and 8-inch diameter wastewater lines with new 8-inch wastewater lines and new services; 

Whereas, on August 28, 2014, six (6) bids were received for the construction of a new 8-
inch PVC sanitary sewer main in the area of 10th and 12th Street from Central Avenue to Avenue 
D; 

Whereas, Skyblue Utilities, Inc. submitted the low bid - the City has not previously done 
business with Skyblue so references were checked and staff recommends awarding construction 
to Skyblue Utilities, Inc. of Kingsland, Texas, in the amount of $435,384.10; 

Whereas, City Council authorized this project as part of the Capital Improvement Plan in 
the fiscal year 2015 budget – this project will be funded with the proposed 2015 Utility Revenue 
Bonds to be issued in the Spring of 2015; 

Whereas, the City of Temple anticipates the issuance of one or more series of 
obligations, the interest on which will be excludable from gross income under Section 103 of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, in order to finance all or a portion of this project; 

Whereas, certain expenditures relating to the Project will be paid prior to the issuance of 
the Obligations and the City hereby certifies that such expenditures have not been made prior to 
the date of passage of this Resolution; 

Whereas, upon issuance of the Obligations, the City desires to reimburse these prior 
expenditures with proceeds of the Obligations;  

Whereas, Section 1.150.2 of the Treasury Regulations provides that an expenditure on 
the Project may not be reimbursed from Obligation proceeds unless, along with other 
requirements, the City declares official intent to reimburse the expenditure prior to the date that 
the expenditure to be reimbursed was paid;  

1 



Whereas, funds are available in Account No. 561-5400-535-6951, Project No. 101083, to 
fund this construction contract; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE,
TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute a 
construction contract with Skyblue Utilities, Inc., of Kingsland, Texas, after approval as to form 
by the City Attorney, for construction of a new 8-inch PVC sanitary sewer main in the area of 
10th and 12th Streets from Central Avenue to Avenue D, in an amount not to exceed $435,384.10, 
as well as declare an official intent to reimburse the expenditure with the issuance of 2015 Utility 
Revenue Bonds. 

Part 2: This Resolution is a declaration of official intent under Section 1.150.2 of the 
Treasury Regulations by the City that it reasonably expects to reimburse the expenditures 
described in Part 1 with proceeds of debt to be incurred by the City, such debt to be issued on or 
before eighteen (18) months after the date of (i) the date the first  expenditure is paid; or (ii) the 
date on which the property is placed in service, but in no event three years after the first 
expenditure is paid. 

Part 3:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of October, 2014. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary  City Attorney 

2 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

10/02/14 
Item #6(E) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 
Don Bond, P.E., CFM, City Engineer  

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing Change Order #1 to the 
construction contract with Austin Engineering Co., Inc. (AEC) of Austin for construction activities 
required to build Phase 1 of the TBP-Panda Effluent Line in an amount not to exceed $35,000. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  The City agreed to provide the Panda Temple Power Plant (Panda) with 
reclaimed water from the Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant (TBP). Delivery of this water 
requires a pump station at the TBP. 

On September 5, 2013, Council authorized a professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick 
& Associates, LP, (KPA) for Phase I design and bidding services in an amount not to exceed 
$353,800. On March 3, 2014, Council authorized that contract to be amended with $113,600 of 
construction phase services.  On April 3, 2014, Council authorized a construction contract with AEC 
for Phase I construction in an amount not to exceed $1,246,000.  

The attached change order includes the following item: 

CO1-1, Replace Drain Valves on Chlorine Contact Basin (CCB) No. 3 and Reclaimed Pump Station 
(RPS) Drain Lines, Not to exceed $35,000. 

 During the construction phase, it was noted by TBP staff that the 8” plug valves that allow the 
referenced basins to be drained by gravity were not functional.  As such, both basins are currently 
drained via a temporary pumping system. They are shown on the attached Map.  The proximity of the 
CCB No. 3 valve to the RPS valve allows that it will be exposed in order to replace the RPS valve.  As 
such, it is recommended that both valves be replaced at the same time.  In discussions with the 
contractor, he had concerns about the depth of the valves and the subsurface conditions to be 
encountered.  He noted that his risk level was relatively high due to these unknowns and asked to 
have the change order approved on a not to exceed amount that would be invoiced on actual cost.  A 
15% multiplier will be included on the total expended 



10/02/14 
Item #6(E) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

Amount for bonds, insurance, overhead and profit.  The difference in the approved amount 
($35,000) and the actual expended cost will be removed from the contract by a final change 
order.  The material cost of each valve is approximately $1200. 

Per attached letter, KPA recommends approving the change order. Staff also recommends approving 
the change order. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Currently, funding in the amount of $127,042.22 is available in account 562-5200-
535-6947, project 101097.  Council is being presented a budget adjustment in the amount of 
$139,869 to allocate additional funding needed for change order # 1 with Austin Engineering Co, Inc. 
in the amount of $35,000, as well as, the agenda item being presented to Council for authorization for 
change order # 2 with McLean Construction in the amount of $231,910.60.  After approval of this 
budget adjustment, $155,535 of contingency funds specifically for this project will remain available.  

ATTACHMENTS: 
Map 
Engineer’s Letter 
Change Order 
Resolution 



P
:\T

em
pl

e\
20

13
\T

B
W

W
T

P
 P

ha
se

 I\
C

A
D

\C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
si

ng
.d

w
g 

 -
  S

ite
 P

la
n 

E
P

S

0

HORIZONTAL SCALE IN FEET

100 200

CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS

SEPTEMBER 2014

TEMPLE, TEXAS 76501
Firm Registration No. F-510

SITE PLAN - RECLAIMED EFFLUENT PUMP STATION

GRAVITY
THICKENERS

ORBAL

CLARIFIERNO.3
CLARIFIERNO.4

RECLAIMED EFFLUENT
PUMP STATION

INACTIVE
BASIN

24" RECLAIMED
EFFLUENT PIPELINE

PHASE III

CHLORINE CONTACT
CHAMBER NO. 3

EFFLUENT
STRUCTURE

24" RECLAIMED
EFFLUENT PIPELINE
PHASE III

DRAIN VALVES











RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7497-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING CHANGE ORDER #1 TO THE CONSTRUCTION 
CONTRACT WITH AUSTIN ENGINEERING CO., INC. OF AUSTIN, 
TEXAS, FOR CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES REQUIRED TO BUILD 
PHASE I OF THE PANDA EFFLUENT LINE, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $35,000; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, The City agreed to provide the Panda Temple Power Plant (Panda) with 
reclaimed water from the Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant (TBP) and delivery of this 
water requires a pump station at the TBP; 

Whereas, on April 3, 2014, Council authorized a construction contract with Austin 
Engineering Co., Inc., of Austin, Texas for Phase I construction services; 

Whereas, change order #1 will include the replacement of drain valves on the Chlorine 
Contact Basin No. 3 and the Reclaimed Pump Station (“RPS”) drain lines, in an amount not to 
exceed $35,000; 

Whereas, during the construction phase, it was noted by TBP staff that the 8” plug valves 
that allow the referenced basins to be drained by gravity were not functional which has caused 
both basins to drain via a temporary pumping system – because the proximity of the Chlorine 
Contact Basin No. 3 valve to the RPS valve allows that it will be exposed in order to replace the 
RPS valve, it is recommended that both valves be replaced at the same time;   

Whereas, funding for this change order is available, but an amendment to the fiscal year 
2014-2015 budget needs to be approved to transfer the funds to in Account No. 562-5200-535-
6947, Project No. 101097; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE,
TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager to execute Change Order #1 to the 
construction contract with Austin Engineering Co., Inc. of Austin, Texas, after approval as to 
form by the City Attorney, for construction activities required to build the Panda Phase I 
Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant Reclaimed Effluent Pump Station, in an amount not 
to exceed $35,000. 

Part 2:  The City Council authorizes an amendment to the fiscal year 2014-2015 budget, 
substantially in the form of the copy attached hereto as Exhibit “A.” 

Part 3:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

1 



PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of October, 2014. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary  City Attorney 

2 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

10/02/14 
Item #6(F) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 
Don Bond, P.E., CFM, City Engineer  

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing change order #2 to the 
construction contract with McLean Construction (McLean), of Killeen, for construction activities 
required to build the Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant 24” effluent pipeline in an amount 
not to exceed $231,910.60. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  The City has agreed to provide the Panda Temple Power Plant (Panda) with 
reclaimed water from the Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant (TBP). Delivery of this water 
requires a pump station and approximately 45,000 linear feet of pipeline. The attached Map depicts 
three phases:  Phase I – pump station at TBP, Phase II – pipeline from Little River Road to Panda, 
Phase III – pipeline from TBP to Little River Road (Map attached). 

On November 7, 2013, Council authorized a professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & 
Associates, LP, (KPA) for Phase III design and bidding services in an amount not to exceed 
$749,200. On February 20, Council authorized a construction contract with McLean Construction for 
Phase III construction in an amount not to exceed $5,505,505.10. On March 20, Council also 
authorized amending KPA’s contract with $538,700 for surveys, construction administration, and 
inspection, and on August 7, a change order #1 with McLean Construction was authorized in the 
amount of $145,247. 

The attached change order #2 includes the following items: 

 An addition of 274 linear feet of 36” Steel Encasement by Bore to extend bores at various
locations to avoid conflicts with trees, water lines, and to meet TxDOT requirements.

 An addition of 2,800 linear feet of AT&T telephone cable relocation is recommended.
 An addition of 194 linear feet of pipe installed by Directional Drill at the Leon River to avoid a

30” force main is recommended.
 An addition of 100 linear feet of pipe installed by Directional Drill (material costs only) is

recommended.
 An addition of 324 linear feet of 36” Steel Encasement (material costs only) is recommended.



10/02/14 
Item #6(F) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 Lowering an existing 6” water line and install 12” encasement at Hartrick Bluff to have proper
clearance is recommended.

 Relocation of a 2” service line to avoid conflict is recommended.
 Re-Mobilization to 5th Street and Solid Sleeve to allow the Centrovision fiber optic line to be

relocated is recommended.
 Re-Mobilization to TBWWTP to Connect to Phase I Pump Station is recommended.
 A deduction of 294 linear feet of Cl 250 Ductile Iron Pipe at the Leon River is recommended.

Per attached letter, KPA recommends approving the change order. Staff also recommends approving 
the change order. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Currently, funding in the amount of $127,042.22 is available in account 562-5200-
535-6947, project 101097.  Council is being presented a budget adjustment in the amount of 
$139,869 to allocate additional funding needed for change order # 2 with McLean Construction in an 
amount not to exceed $231,910.60, as well as, the agenda item being presented to Council for 
authorization for change order # 1 with Austin Engineering Co, Inc. in the amount of $35,000.   After 
approval of this budget adjustment, $155,535 of contingency funds specifically for this project will 
remain available. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Project Map 
Engineer’s Letter 
Change Order 
Budget Adjustment 
Resolution 



C
   

   
   

 K
as

be
rg

, P
at

ric
k 

&
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

s,
 L

P
 2

01
4

EXHIBIT AFEBRUARY 2014

CITY OF TEMPLE

Firm Reg. No. F-510

P
:\P

an
da

 E
ne

rg
y\

20
13

\2
01

3-
10

6\
C

A
D

\w
or

ki
ng

\o
ld

\D
E

C
 2

7 
20

13
 O

P
T

-3
-1

00
S

C
A

LE
.d

w
g 

 -
  8

.5
X

11
-o

pt
-2

 (
2)

RECLAIMED EFFLUENT FROM TBWWTP
TO PANDA TEMPLE POWER SITE

0

HORIZONTAL SCALE IN FEET

2000 4000

PHASE I
 TEMPLE / BELTON
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT
EFFLUENT PUMP STATION

FM 93

GEORGETOW
N R

AILROAD

31
st

 S
tr

ee
t

5t
h 

S
tr

ee
t

Li
ttl

e 
R

iv
er

 R
d.

Blackland Rd.

Lo
op

 3
63

FM 3117

Li
ttl

e 
R

iv
er

 R
d.

/ O
ld

 9
5

FM 93

Barnhardt Rd.

PANDA TEMPLE
POWER SITE

PHASE II
24" PIPELINE

PHASE I - PUMP STATION

PHASE III
24" PIPELINE

N

T

PHASE II & III - 24" PIPELINE















FY 2015
BUDGET ADJUSTMENT FORM

Use this form to make adjustments to your budget.  All adjustments must balance within a Department.
Adjustments should be rounded to the nearest $1. 

+ -

ACCOUNT NUMBER

PROJECT 
# DECREASE

562-5200-535-69-47 101097

562-5200-535-65-32 139,869      

TOTAL……………………………………………………………………………… 139,869$    

DOES THIS REQUEST REQUIRE COUNCIL APPROVAL? X Yes No

DATE OF COUNCIL MEETING

WITH AGENDA ITEM? X Yes No

Approved

Disapproved

Approved

Disapproved

Approved

Disapproved

To allocate additonal funding needed for change order #2 with McLean Construction in the amount of $231,910.60 and change 
order #1 with Austin Engineering Company in the amount of $35,000.

10/2/2014

EXPLANATION OF ADJUSTMENT REQUEST- Include justification for increases AND reason why funds in decreased
account are available.

139,869$    

INCREASE

139,869$    

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

T-B WWTP Reclaimed Effluent

Contingency

Date

Date

Date

City Manager

Department Head/Division Director

Finance

Revised form - 10/27/06



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7498-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING CHANGE ORDER NUMBER 2 TO THE 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH MCLEAN CONSTRUCTION OF 
KILLEEN, TEXAS, FOR CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES REQUIRED TO 
BUILD THE TEMPLE-BELTON WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 24-
INCH EFFLUENT PIPELINE, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$231,910.60; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, the City has agreed to provide the Panda Temple Power Plant (Panda) with 
reclaimed water from the Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant (TBP) and the delivery of 
this water requires a pump station and approximately 45,000 linear feet of pipeline; 

Whereas, on November 7, 2013, Council authorized a professional services agreement 
with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, (KPA) for Phase III design and bidding services for the 
Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant 24-inch effluent pipeline; 

Whereas, on February 20, 2014, Council authorized a construction contract with McLean 
Construction for Phase III construction activities and on August 7, 2014, Council authorized 
change order #1 with McLean Construction; 

Whereas, the requested change order with McLean Construction includes the following 
items: 

• addition of 274 linear feet of 36” Steel Encasement to extend bores at various locations to
avoid conflicts with trees, water lines, and to meet TxDOT requirements;

• addition of 2,800 linear feet of telephone cable relocation;
• addition of 194 linear feet of pipe at the Leon River to avoid a 30” force main;
• addition of 100 linear feet of pipe (material costs only);
• addition of 324 linear feet of 36” steel encasement (material costs only);
• lowering an existing 6” water line and installing a 12” encasement at Hartrick Bluff to

have proper clearance;
• relocation of a 2” service line to avoid conflict;
• re-mobilization to 5th Street and solid sleeve to allow the Centrovision fiber optic line to

be relocated;
• re-mobilization to TBP to connect to Phase I Pump Station; and
• deduction of 294 linear feet of Cl 250 ductile iron pipe at the Leon River;

Whereas, KPA and staff recommend approving change order #2 to the construction
contract with McLean Construction of Killeen, Texas, for construction activities required to 
build the Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant 24-inch effluent pipeline, in an amount not 
to exceed $231,910.60; 

Whereas, funds are available for this change order, but an amendment to the fiscal 
year 2014-2015 budget needs to be approved to transfer funds in to Account No. 562-5200-
535-6947, Project No. 101097; and 

1 



 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 

authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute change 
order #2 to the construction contract with McLean Construction of Killeen, Texas, after approval 
as to form by the City Attorney, for construction activities required to build the Temple-Belton 
Wastewater Treatment Plant 24-inch effluent pipeline, in an amount not to exceed $231,910.60. 

 
Part 2: The City Council authorizes an amendment to the fiscal year 2014-2015 budget, 

substantially in the form of the copy attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A.’ 
 
Part 3:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of October, 2014. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 

2 
 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

10/02/14 
Item #6(G) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  

Alan DeLoera, Information Technology Director 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of a yearly 2014-2015 
sole source maintenance contract with Intergraph Public Safety in the amount of $42,024. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: The Police and Fire Departments currently use Records Management Software 
from Intergraph Public Safety for the following public safety applications in helping the City to conduct 
management of Public Safety records and analysis: 

SunPro Fire RMS 
I-LEADS RMS (Arrests, warrants, citations, evidence, calls for service, etc…) 
CAD Interface Software  
Oracle Software 

Intergraph Public Safety is the sole provider of maintenance for Intergraph Public Safety application 
software. This is currently the 15th year of support for the current software. 

FISCAL IMPACT: The Information Technology Department currently has funds budgeted in account 
110-1952-519-23-38 in the amount of $42,024 for continued annual support of these applications.  

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7499-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF A YEARLY SOLE SOURCE 
MAINTENANCE CONTRACT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 WITH 
INTERGRAPH PUBLIC SAFETY, IN THE AMOUNT OF $42,024; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Whereas, the police and fire departments currently use Records Management Software 
from Intergraph Public Safety for certain public safety applications in helping the City conduct 
management of Public Safety Records and analysis; 

Whereas, Intergraph Public Safety is the sole provider of maintenance for Intergraph 
Public Safety application software and staff recommends purchasing an annual maintenance 
contract for a cost not to exceed $42,024; 

Whereas, this will be the City’s 15th year of support for the current software – funds are 
budgeted in Account No. 110-1952-519-2338 for the continued annual support of this software; 
and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE,
TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the purchase of an annual maintenance contract with 
Intergraph Public Safety for Public Safety Software Applications, in an amount not to exceed 
$42,024. 

Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute any 
documents, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, that may be necessary for this annual 
purchase. 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of October, 2014. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary  City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

10/02/14 
Item #6(H) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  

Alan DeLoera, Information Technology Director 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of a yearly 2014-2015 
sole source maintenance contract with Sungard Public Sector in the amount of $160,396.99. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: The City currently uses Enterprise Software from Sungard HTE for the following 
business applications in helping the City to conduct financial transactions: 

General Ledger Accounts Payable Accounts Receivables 
Fixed Assets Inventory Purchasing 
Cash Receipts Budgeting Fleet Management 
Work Orders Payroll Human Resources 
Utility Billing Permitting Code Enforcement 
Inspections Zoning Business Licenses 
Municipal Court Project Accounting QREP 
Looking Glass HELP Pass OnLine Business 

Sungard HTE is the sole provider of maintenance for HTE application software. This is currently the 
10th year of support for the current software 

FISCAL IMPACT: The Information Technology Department currently has funds budgeted in account 
110-1951-519-23-38 for FY 2015 in the amount of $160,396.99 for continued annual support of these 
applications.  

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7500-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF A YEARLY SOLE SOURCE 
MAINTENANCE CONTRACT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 WITH 
SUNGUARD PUBLIC SECTOR, IN THE AMOUNT OF $160,396.99; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

Whereas, the City currently uses Enterprise Software from Sungard HTE for multiple 
business applications in helping the City conduct financial transactions; 

Whereas, Sungard HTE is the sole provider of maintenance for HTE application 
software and staff recommends purchasing an annual maintenance contract in the amount of 
$160,296.99; 

Whereas, this is the 10th year of support for this software -funds are budgeted in the 
Information Technology Department Account No. 110-1951-519-2338 for the continued 
annual support of these applications; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest 
to authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the purchase of a yearly sole source maintenance 
contract for fiscal year 2014-2015 with Sungard Public Sector, in the amount of $160,396.99. 

Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute any 
documents, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, that may be necessary for this 
purchase. 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of October, 2014. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

10/02/14 
Item #6(I) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Jonathan Graham, Interim City Manager 
Trudi Dill, Deputy City Attorney 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:   Consider adopting a resolution authorizing execution of an easement 
agreement granting Magellan Pipeline Company, L.P. a permanent easement of 3,777 square feet 
and a temporary workspace easement of 17,202 square feet for a four-inch diameter diesel fuel 
pipeline and related facilities adjoining the east side of North General Bruce Drive near Industrial 
Boulevard. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  The Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) is requiring Magellan Pipeline 
Company, L.P. (Magellan) to relocate portions of a four-inch diesel fuel pipeline to accommodate 
TxDOT’s widening of I-35. The pipeline is used to deliver fuel to BNSF’s rail yard. 

The existing pipeline runs in the alley along the northern boundary of the subdivision called Jefferson 
Manor II. The new pipeline will be installed along the east side of North General Bruce Drive 
approaching Industrial Boulevard. Magellan accommodated staff’s objection to the initial plan to install 
a segment of the pipeline perpendicular to I-35, connecting to the existing pipeline in the alley. The 
revised design has less impact on future development of the City’s tract, which is vacant. The 
proposed easement agreement limits use of the easement by Magellan and its successors to one 
four-inch diesel fuel pipeline and specified related facilities. 

Magellan provided an appraisal report recommending compensation of $6,777, based on $5,666 for a 
permanent easement of 3,777 square feet and $1,111 for temporary workspace of 7,405 square feet. 
Staff negotiated the current offer of $12,000, with temporary work space increased to 17,202 square 
feet, allowing Magellan’s contractor to use the City’s approximately half-acre tract for staging of the 
project from BNSF’s rail yard north to the church property.  

Staff recommends approval of the easement agreement as proposed for total compensation of 
$12,000. 



10/02/14 
Item #6(I) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

FISCAL IMPACT: Upon execution of an easement agreement granting Magellan Pipeline Company, 
L.P. a permanent easement of 3,777 square feet and a temporary workspace easement of 17,202 
square feet on the east side of North General Bruce Drive near Industrial Boulevard, the City will 
receive a total compensation of $12,000.  Revenue received from the permanent easement in the 
amount of $5,666 will be deposited into account 110-0000-461-0423, Sale of Land.  Revenue 
received for the temporary work space in the amount of $6,334 will be deposited into account 110-
0000-461-0830, Other Revenue. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Easement Agreement  
Exhibits 
Side letter for temporary work space 
Resolution 



































RESOLUTION NO.  2014-7501-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN EASEMENT 
AGREEMENT GRANTING MAGELLAN PIPELINE COMPANY, L.P. A 
PERMANENT EASEMENT OF 3,777 SQUARE FEET, AND A TEMPORARY 
WORKSPACE EASEMENT OF 17,202 SQUARE FEET FOR A FOUR-INCH 
DIAMETER DIESEL FUEL PIPELINE AND RELATED FACILITIES 
ADJOINING THE EAST SIDE OF NORTH GENERAL BRUCE DRIVE NEAR 
INDUSTRIAL BOULEVARD; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

Whereas, The Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) is requiring Magellan 
Pipeline Company, L.P. (Magellan) to relocate portions of a four-inch diesel fuel pipeline to 
accommodate TxDOT’s widening of I-35; 

Whereas, the existing pipeline runs in the alley along the northern boundary of the 
subdivision called Jefferson Manor II and the new pipeline will be installed along the east side of 
North General Bruce Drive approaching Industrial Boulevard to continue service to BNSF’s rail 
yard; 

Whereas, the easement agreement limits use of the easement by Magellan and its 
successors to one four-inch diesel fuel pipeline and specified related facilities; 

Whereas, upon execution of an easement agreement granting Magellan Pipeline 
Company, L.P. a permanent easement of 3,777 square feet and a temporary workspace easement 
of 17,202 square feet on the east side of N General Bruce Dr. near Industrial Blvd., the City will 
receive total compensation of $12,000; 

Whereas, revenue received from the permanent easement in the amount of $5,666 will be 
deposited into Account No.110-0000-461-0423 and revenue received for the temporary work 
space in the amount of $6,334 will be deposited into Account No. 110-0000-461-0830; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE,
TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute an 
easement agreement, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, which grants Magellan 
Pipeline Company, L.P. a permanent easement of 3,777 square feet and a temporary workspace 
easement of 17,202 square feet for a four-inch diameter diesel fuel pipeline and related facilities 
adjoining the east side of North General Bruce Drive near Industrial Boulevard, and approves the 
total compensation amount of $12,000. 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

1 



 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of October, 2014. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 

2 
 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM

10/02/14 
Item #6(J) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Brynn Myers, Assistant City Manager 
Ashley Williams, Sustainability and Grant Manager 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:   Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services agreement 
with MKP Consulting of Atascocita for the preparation of the CDBG program’s five-year Consolidated 
Plan for fiscal years 2016 - 2020, in the amount of $25,000. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: The City of Temple annually receives Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Entitlement funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. The 
primary purpose of the grant program is to develop viable communities through the provision of 
decent housing, suitable living environments and expanding economic opportunities for low and 
moderate income persons.  As a recipient of these entitlement program funds the City is required to 
produce a five-year Consolidated Plan, which documents Temple’s housing and community 
development needs, outlines strategies to address those needs, and identifies proposed program 
accomplishments. 

The City solicited firms to assist in the preparation of the 2016 – 2020 five-year Consolidated Plan. 
On September 11, 2014 three (3) proposals were received for professional services requested: MKP 
Consulting of Atascocita, NALCAB of San Antonio, and Morningside of Austin.  The scoring criteria, 
as defined within the RFP, focused on the proposed project firm’s prior experience and familiarization 
with HUD/CDBG programs, proposed work approach, references and overall timeline/deliverable 
completion. 

On September 22, 2014 a staff evaluation committee met to discuss the proposals and to compile 
evaluation results.  Based on the pre-defined evaluation criteria, the committee’s recommendation is 
to award the professional service contract to MKP Consulting.  The committee concluded that all 
contractors were qualified to perform them work.  However, MKP Consulting’s past experience, 
references and proposed work approach proved that MKP Consulting offered the best value to the 
City for the project.  

The proposed fee for professional services is $25,000.  The plan will be developed throughout FY 
2015, following internal CDBG program deadlines.  A presentation will be made to Council the first  



10/02/14 
Item #6(J) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

meeting in June 2015, in accordance with the Citizen Participation Plan, prior to adoption and 
submittal to HUD by August 15, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The professional services agreement is for $25,000.  Funding from the FY 2015 
Community Development Block Grant in the amount of $16,296 is available in account #260-6000-
515-26-23.  The remaining funding of $8,704 will be carried forward from the FY 2014 Community 
Development Block Grant. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7502-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH MKP CONSULTING OF ATASCOCTIA, TEXAS, FOR 
PREPARATION OF THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
PROGRAM’S FIVE-YEAR CONSOLIDATED PLAN FOR FISCAL YEARS 
2016-2020, IN THE AMOUNT OF $25,000; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, the City of Temple annually receives Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Entitlement funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development - the 
primary purpose of the grant program is to develop viable communities through the provision of 
decent housing, suitable living environments and expanding economic opportunities for low and 
moderate income persons; 

Whereas, as a recipient of these entitlement program funds, the City is required to 
produce a five-year Consolidated Plan, which documents Temple’s housing and community 
development needs, outlines strategies to address those needs, and identifies proposed program 
accomplishments; 

Whereas, the City solicited firms to assist in the preparation of the 2016 – 2020 five-year 
Consolidated Plan and on September 11, 2014 three (3) proposals were received; 

Whereas, a staff evaluation committee met to discuss the proposals and to compile 
evaluation results and based on the pre-defined evaluation criteria, the committee’s 
recommendation is to award the professional service contract to MKP Consulting of Atascoctia, 
Texas; 

Whereas, the committee concluded that all contractors were qualified to perform the 
work; however MKP Consulting’s past experience, references and proposed work approach 
proved that MKP Consulting offered the best value to the City for the project;  

Whereas, funding is available in the Community Development Block Grant Account No. 
260-6000-515-2623; and  

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE,
TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute a 
professional services agreement with MKP Consulting of Atascoctia, Texas, after approval as to 
form by the City Attorney, for the preparation of the Community Development Block Grant 
program’s five-year Consolidated Plan for fiscal years 2016-2020, in the amount of $25,000. 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

1 



 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of October, 2014. 

 
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 

2 
 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM

10/02/14 
Item #6(K) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 
Don Bond, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an amendment to a professional 
services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick, & Associates, LP (KPA) for redesign and survey services 
for final design of phase 1 of the Leon River Interceptor Project in an amount not to exceed $36,040. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: Current growth in south and west Temple is placing heavy demand on existing 
sanitary sewer collection infrastructure.  A new trunk main is required to provide capacity for current 
and projected growth and to relieve existing infrastructure that is currently operating at or above its 
intended capacity and beyond its original design life.  Phase 1 of this project will begin to address 
these needs and provide new wastewater collection services along the IH 35 corridor near the Leon 
River. 

On March 1, 2012, Council authorized a professional services agreement with KPA in an amount not 
to exceed $151,880 to complete preliminary design of the Leon River project extending from the 
Temple Belton wastewater treatment plant to Poison Oak Road.  On March 15, 2012, Council 
authorized an agreement with Lone Star Right of Way Services, Inc. of Belton, TX, for professional 
services required to acquire right of way for the project. 

Through the course of design work, the City has subsequently been made aware of new property 
developments for the area encompassing Phase 1 that have caused the need for redesign of a 
portion of the project and generation of new field note descriptions for an alignment that matches 
development. 



10/02/14 
Item #6(K) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

Cost breakdown for additional services is as follows: 

1) Redesign approximately 3,700 feet of Leon River Trunk Sewer
a) Prepare 8 plan sheets $16,630 
b) Update lift station calculations and revise pump selection $     760 
c) Review 302 Acre service requirement vs. proposed depth $     940 
d) Revise and resubmit TxDOT permit $     780 
e) Prepare and submit ONCOR permit $  1,530 

2) Redesign approximately 1,000 feet of Leon River force main
a) Prepare 3 plan sheets $  6,270 

3) Provide Additional Design Surveys $  6,770 

4) Attend Additional meetings with City, Developers, and property owners $  2,360 

Total  $36,040 

Time required for redesign is 75 days, with construction to follow. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Currently, funding in the amount of $341,150 is available in account 561-5400--
535-6941, project 100851, to fund the professional services contract amendment with KPA in the 
amount of $36,040.   

ATTACHMENTS: 
Project Realignment Map 
Engineer’s Proposal 
Resolution 



0

36
"W

W

36
"W

W

36
"W

W

36
"W

W

36
"W

W

P
:\T

em
pl

e\
20

13
\2

01
3-

12
7\

C
A

D
\E

X
H

IB
IT

S
\n

ew
 ro

ad
-n

ew
al

ig
n.

dw
g

0

HORIZONTAL SCALE IN FEET

200 400

N
O

R
T

H

20' PERMANENT
UTILITY EASEMENT
0.28 ACRE

50' TEMPORARY
CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
3.09 ACRE

30' PERMANENT
UTILITY EASEMENT
1.70 ACRE

20' PERMANENT
UTILITY EASEMENT
0.21 ACRE

50' TEMPORARY
CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
0.52 ACRE

OPTION B ALIGNMENT
ALTERNATIVE LIFT
STATION LOCATION
∆  COST = -$150,000

8" LATERAL

OPTION B ALTERNATIVE
LOCATION FOR DIRECTION
DRILL

OPTION B
ALTERNATIVE ALIGNMENT

FINAL LOCATION OF RAILROAD
CROSSING TO BE DETERMINED BASED
ON FINAL ALIGNMENT WITHIN GLOVER
TRACK.

20' PERMANENT
UTILITY EASEMENT
0.25 ACRE

50' TEMPORARY
CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
0.59 ACRE

302 ACRES LEON RIVER LP

JJA PROPERTIES

ROBERT CARLSON

KNUCKLEHEAD
PROPERTIES, LLC

302 ACRES LEON RIVER LP

302 ACRES LEON RIVER LP

302 ACRES LEON RIVER LP

302 ACRES LEON RIVER LP

GO UNITED

CEDON REALITY, LTD

CEDON REALITY, LTD

BEND OF THE RIVER

"GLOVER TRACT"

LEGEND

- ORIGINAL ALIGNMENT

- OPTION A ALIGNMENT

- OPTION B ALIGNMENT

- OPTION B ALTERNATE ALIGNMENT

- PERMANENT UTILITY EASEMENT

- TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

- 100 YEAR FLOOD PLAIN

- 500 YEAR FLOOD PLAIN -
AREA OF 100 YEAR FLOOD PLAIN WITH
AVERAGE FLOOD DEPTHS OF LESS THAN 1
FOOT.

JUNE 2014 EXHIBIT

CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS

LEON RIVER TRUNK SEWER









RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7503-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, 
LP, OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, FOR REDESIGN AND SURVEY SERVICES 
FOR FINAL DESIGN OF PHASE I OF THE LEON RIVER INTERCEPTOR 
PROJECT, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $36,040; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, current growth in south and west Temple is placing heavy demand on 
existing sanitary sewer collection infrastructure - a new trunk main is required to provide 
capacity for current and projected growth and to relieve existing infrastructure that is 
currently operating at or above its intended capacity and beyond its original design life; 

Whereas, on March 1, 2012, Council authorized a professional services agreement 
with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, of Temple, Texas, to complete a preliminary design 
of the Leon River project extending from the Temple Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant to 
Poison Oak Road - through the course of design work, the City has been made aware of new 
property developments for the area encompassing Phase 1 that have caused the need for 
redesign of a portion of the project; 

Whereas, funding is available in Account No. 561-5400--535-6941, Project No. 
100851, to fund this contract amendment in the amount of $36,040; and  

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute an 
amendment to the professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, 
of Temple, Texas, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, for redesign and survey 
services for final design of Phase I of the Leon River Interceptor Project, in an amount not to 
exceed $36,040. 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

1 



PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of October, 2014. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary City Attorney 

2 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

10/02/14 
Item #6(L) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 
Don Bond, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authoring a professional services agreement 
with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP (KPA), to design, bid, and provide construction phase 
services for North Lucius McCelvey Extension in an amount not to exceed $228,550. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description.

ITEM SUMMARY:  Industrial Park parcels at the north terminus of Lucius McCelvey Drive require a 
road and public utilities to serve future tenants. KPA estimates a preliminary OPC of $1,525,000 to 
extend approx. 2400 feet of road, parallel water line, drainage facilities, and sewer. Design will be 
completed in five months. 

Consultant services recommended under this resolution include the following tasks and costs: 

Surveying             $     10,600 
Geotechnical   $     13,500  
Design  $   108,450 
Metes & Bounds   $       3,200 
Bidding             $       6,500 
Construction Administration  $     42,100 
On Site Representation       $     44,200 

TOTAL      $   228,550 

On September 24, 2014, the Reinvestment Zone #1 Board resolved to recommend that Council 
award this contract. 



10/02/14 
Item #6(L) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Funds are available in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing Plan, Line 150, 
account 795-9500-531-6563, projects 100996 and 100997, to fund this professional services 
agreement. 

Total project costs are currently estimated at $1,753,550.  An economic prospect has agreed to 
participate in the cost sharing of the project.  The Reinvestment Zone No. 1 will be responsible for 
50% of the total project costs and the economic prospect will be responsible for 50% of the total 
project costs.  A Financing and Project Plan amendment will be brought before the Board at a future 
date to fully fund the project. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Project Map
Engineer’s Proposal 
Resolution 

























RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7504-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, LP, OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, TO 
PROVIDE CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES FOR THE NORTH LUCIUS 
MCCELVEY EXTENSION, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $228,550; 
AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, Industrial Park parcels at the north terminus of Lucius McCelvey Drive require 
road and public utilities to serve future tenants; 

Whereas, Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP of Temple, Texas estimates a needed 
extension of approximately 2400 feet of road, parallel water line, drainage facilities, and sewer; 

Whereas, on September 24, 2014, the Reinvestment Zone #1 Board resolved to 
recommend that Council award this contract; 

Whereas, funds are available in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing Plan, Line 150, 
Account No. 795-9500-531-6563, Project Nos. 100996 and 100997, to fund this agreement; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute to a 
professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, of Temple, Texas, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to design, bid and provide construction phase services 
for the North Lucius McCelvey extension, in an amount not to exceed $228,550. 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of October, 2014. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary  City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM

10/02/14 
Item #6(M) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Bill D’Amico, CIP Project Coordinator  

ITEM DESCRIPTION:    Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services agreement 
with Stateside Right of Way Services, to provide right of way services along Avenue U in an amount 
not to exceed $229,400 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: Stateside Right of Way Services will provide right of way services to include 
project management, acquisition, title, relocation, and appraisal services for the Avenue U project. 

Stateside Right of Way Services, LLC, (Stateside) is a certified Historically Underutilized Business 
(HUB) and a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE/WBE) with over 15 years of experience. With 
notable Right of Way (ROW) experience completing high profile projects, including TxDOT IH-35, 
NTTA-SH-121, SH-161, SH-130, Fort Worth Transportation Authority and Metropolitan Transportation 
Authority of Harris County, City of Denton, Dallas County, City of Weatherford, City of Mansfield, City 
of Fort Worth and City of Waco.   

Stateside offers the following services during the right of way process: detailed multiple alternative 
route cost estimates, cash-flow forecasts for survey, environmental, legal, demolition, acquisition, 
relocation, utility relocation and construction.  

Fees associated with this service include: 
Residential Relocation – up to 20 relocations @ $5,000 each - NTE $ 100,000 
Negotiation Services – up to 15 acquisitions @ $4,000 each - NTE $   60,000 
Title Services (Curative) – up to 15 closings  @ $1,500 each - NTE $   22,500 
Appraisal Services – NTE $   46,900 

     Not To Exceed: $ 229,400 

This not to exceed amount does not include relocation benefit payments, closing costs associated 
with acquisition or any other pass-through costs such as interpreters 



10/02/14 
Item #6(M) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Funding is available in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing/Project Plan, Line 
460, account 795-9800-531-6874, project #101012 to fund this professional services agreement with 
Stateside Right of Way Services in the amount $229,400. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Map 
Resolution 





RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7505-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH STATESIDE RIGHT OF WAY SERVICES, OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
TO PROVIDE RIGHT OF WAY SERVICES ALONG AVENUE U, IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $229,400; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, Stateside Right of Way Services will provide right of way services to 
include project management, acquisition, title, relocation, and appraisal services for the 
Avenue U project; 

Whereas, Stateside Right of Way Services, LLC, (Stateside) is a certified Historically 
Underutilized Business (HUB) and a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE/WBE) with 
over 15 years of notable right of way and relocation experience; 

Whereas, Stateside will offer multiple services during the right of way process, 
including, but not limited to project management, acquisition, title, relocation, and appraisal 
services;  

Whereas, staff recommends Council authorize a professional services agreement with 
Stateside Right of Way Services to provide right of way services along Avenue U, in an 
amount not to exceed $229,400; 

Whereas, funding is available in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing/Project 
Plan, Line 460, Account No. 795-9800-531-6874, Project No. 101012 to fund this 
agreement; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: The City Manager, or his designee, is authorized to execute a professional 
services agreement between the City of Temple, Texas, and Stateside Right of Way Services, 
Inc., of Temple, Texas, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, to provide right of 
way services along Avenue U, in an amount not to exceed $229,400. 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

1 



PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of October, 2014. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary  City Attorney 

2 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

10/02/14 
Item #6(N) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  

Sharon Rostovich, Airport Director 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
lease agreement between the City of Temple and Richard Potts, d/b/a JR Aviation LLC, upon the 
Federal Aviation Administration approval permitting the Lessee to lease a 150’ X 120’ plot of land and 
construct a 120’ X 100’ aircraft hangar and a 120’ X 50’ aircraft parking apron at the Draughon-Miller 
Central Texas Regional Airport.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY:   JR Aviation leased an 8,300 square foot hangar at the Airport on September 1, 
2013 for the purpose of providing rotary wing operations and other aviation related services at the 
Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport.  With the growing need of hangar space, Potts has 
provided much needed aircraft storage to pilots on the Airport’s waiting list for T-hangars.  Potts 
needs additional facilities to support his growing business and continue to provide hangar space as 
needed.  Potts plans to construct a 120’ X 100’ aircraft hangar and a 120’ X 50’ aircraft parking apron 
on a plot of land 150’ X 120’ directly across from the existing hangar on the west side of the Airport.    

The Federal Aviation Administration is in the process of reviewing the proposed site from an airspace 
utilization standpoint and the Texas Department of Transportation, Aviation Division is reviewing the 
site from an environmental standpoint.  Approval from both FAA and TxDOT Aviation must be 
secured prior to any construction on the Airport.   Potts has provided professional service on the 
Airport and continues to expand his operations and support of the Airport; therefore, staff 
recommends approval of the land lease.   

The term of the land lease shall be for twenty years at fair market value of .10 cents per square foot 
per year in the amount of $1,800 per year and will commence upon FAA and TxDOT Aviation 
approval.      

FISCAL IMPACT:  The Airport will receive fair market value for unimproved land of .10 cents per 
square foot per year in the amount of $1,800.  Lessee’s rental rates may be adjusted at the end of 
each lease year computed accordingly to the Consumer Price Index (CPI).  The lease payments will 
be deposited into account 110-0000-446-3026, Private Hangar Rent.          

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7506-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE AND RICHARD POTTS, D/B/A JR AVIATION, LLC, UPON THE 
FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATIONS APPROVAL PERMITTING 
THE LESSEE TO LEASE A PLOT OF LAND AND CONSTRUCT AN 
AIRCRAFT HANGAR AND AN AIRCRAFT PARKING APRON AT THE 
DRAUGHON-MILLER CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL AIRPORT; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, JR Aviation leased an 8,300 square foot hangar at the Airport on September 1, 
2013 for the purpose of providing rotary wing operations and other aviation related services at 
the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport; 

Whereas, with the growing need of hangar space, Mr. Potts has provided much needed 
aircraft storage to pilots on the Airport’s waiting list for T-hangars and now he needs additional 
facilities to support his growing business and continue to provide hangar space as needed; 

Whereas, Mr.  Potts desires to construct a 120’ X 100’ aircraft hangar and a 120’ X 50’ 
aircraft parking apron on a plot of land 150’ X 120’ directly across from the existing hangar on 
the west side of the Airport; 

Whereas, the Federal Aviation Administration is in the process of reviewing the 
proposed site from an airspace utilization standpoint and the Texas Department of 
Transportation, Aviation Division is reviewing the site from an environmental standpoint - 
approval from both the FAA and TxDOT Aviation must be secured prior to any construction on 
the Airport; 

Whereas, Mr. Potts has provided professional services to the Airport and continues to 
expand his operations in support of the Airport; therefore, staff recommends approval of the land 
lease;   

Whereas, staff recommends entering into a 20 year lease with Richard Potts, d/b/a JR 
Aviation LLC at fair market value of .10 per square foot per year, in the annual amount of 
$1,880 and will commence upon approval from the FAA and TxDOT Aviation; 

Whereas, the Airport will receive fair market value for unimproved land of .10 per 
square foot per year, in the annual amount of $1,880 and the lease payments will be deposited 
into Account No.110-0000-446-3026; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE,
TEXAS, THAT: 

1 



Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute a 20 
year lease, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, with Richard Potts, d/b/a JR Aviation 
LLC at fair market value of .10 per square foot per year, in the annual amount of $1,880. 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of October, 2014. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary  City Attorney 

2 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

10/02/14 
Item #6(O) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  

Sharon Rostovich, Airport Director 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a one year lease extension to 
Kachemak Bay Flying Service, a wholly owned subsidiary of System Studies and Simulation, Inc. 
(S3), to continue to provide rotary wing flight services; overnight aircraft storage; and other related 
aviation services through December 1, 2015 at the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY:   On November 1, 2012, Kachemak Bay Flying Service, a wholly owned subsidiary 
of System Studies and Simulation, Inc. (S3), was granted a two (2) year lease with two (2) additional 
one year renewal options with the City of Temple to lease a 7,590 square foot aircraft hangar to 
provide rotary wing flight services; overnight aircraft storage; and other related aviation services for 
our flying customers at the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport.     

Kachemak Bay Flying Service has demonstrated in the first two years of the lease they are capable of 
operating a professional aviation shop on the Airport; therefore, staff recommends that a one (1) year 
extension to the Kachemak Bay Flying Service lease be approved to run through December 1, 2015.           

The rental rate will remain at $1,000 per month and the lease term will expire December 1, 2015.     

FISCAL IMPACT:  The Airport will received $12,000 annually in rental revenue.  In addition to the 
rental revenue, the Airport will benefit from increased aircraft traffic and fuel sales plus providing a 
much needed service to our visiting customers with overnight aircraft storage.       

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7507-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A ONE-YEAR EXTENSION TO 
THE LEASE AGREEMENT WITH KACHEMAK BAY FLYING 
SERVICE, A WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY OF SYSTEM STUDIES 
AND SIMULATION, INC., TO CONTINUE TO PROVIDE ROTARY 
WING FLIGHT SERVICES, OVERNIGHT AIRCRAFT STORAGE, 
AND OTHER RELATED AVIATION SERVICES THROUGH 
DECEMBER 1, 2015 AT THE DRAUGHON-MILLER CENTRAL 
TEXAS REGIONAL AIRPORT, IN THE MONTHLY RENTAL 
AMOUNT OF $1,000; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

Whereas, on November 1, 2012, Council authorized a two year lease to 
Kachemak Bay Flying Service, a wholly owned subsidiary of System Studies and 
Simulation, Inc. (S3), with two (2) additional one year renewal options to lease a 7,590 
square foot aircraft hangar to provide rotary wing flight services; overnight aircraft 
storage; and other related aviation services for our flying customers at the Draughon-
Miller Central Texas Regional Airport; 

Whereas, Kachemak Bay Flying Service has demonstrated in the first year of 
their lease, that they are capable of operating a professional aviation shop at the Airport; 

Whereas, staff recommends extending the lease agreement with Kachemak Bay 
Flying Service through December 1, 2015 with a rental rate of $1,000 per month;  

Whereas, the Airport will receive $12,000 in rental revenue annually; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute 
a one-year extension to the lease with Kachemak Bay Flying Service, Inc., a wholly 
owned subsidiary of System Studies and Simulation, Inc. (S3), after approval as to form 
by the City Attorney, providing rotary wing flight services, overnight aircraft storage, and 
other related aviation services at the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport, in 
the monthly rental amount of $1,000. 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

1 



PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of October, 2014. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary City Attorney 

2 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM

10/02/14 
Item #6(P) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  

Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a renewal lease agreement with 
the Bell County HELP Center for lease of space in the Public Services Building. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  The Bell County HELP Center (“HELP Center”) currently leases 4,917 square feet 
of space in the Public Services Building (102 E Central Ave, Temple Texas 76501). The HELP Center 
has requested to renew its lease for another 12 month term. The rent will continue to be $0.55 per 
square foot per month, for a monthly base rent of $2,684.35. The lease term will begin on November 
1, 2014 and end on October 31, 2015. 

Pursuant to the lease, the HELP Center will be responsible for all utilities, janitorial services, and 
other daily maintenance.  This is an as-is lease, the City will not be making any adjustments or 
upgrades to the space.   

FISCAL IMPACT:  Total anticipated HELP Center rent is $32,212.20 per year and will be deposited 
into account 110-0000-461-0237. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7508-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A LEASE RENEWAL WITH THE BELL COUNTY 
HELP CENTER FOR LEASE OF SPACE IN THE PUBLIC SERVICES 
BUILDING; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, the Bell County HELP Center currently leases 4,917 square feet of space in the 
Public Services Building located at 102 E. Central Avenue, Temple, Texas; 

Whereas, the HELP Center has requested to renew its lease for another 12 month term, 
from November 1, 2014 to October 31, 2015, at the lease rate of $.055 per square foot per month, 
for a monthly rental rate of $2,684.35; 

Whereas, pursuant to the lease, the HELP Center will be responsible for all utilities, 
janitorial services, and other daily maintenance – this is an ‘as-is’ lease and the City will not 
make any adjustment or upgrades to the space; 

Whereas, staff recommends entering into a 12 month lease with the Bell County HELP 
Center for space in the Public Services Building, effective November 1, 2014 through October 
31, 2015; 

Whereas, the lease agreement allows for a 60-day termination clause should the lessee or 
the City desire to terminate the lease - the City has previously leased property to this tenant and 
finds them to be responsible lessees;  

Whereas, total anticipated annual rent from the HELP Center will be $32,212.20 and will 
be deposited into Account No. 110-0000-461-0237; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE,
TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute a 12 
month lease renewal, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, with the Bell County HELP 
Center for 4,917 square feet of space in the Public Services Building located at 102 E. Central 
Avenue, at the lease rate of $.055 per square foot per month, for a monthly rental rate of 
$2,684.35. 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

1 



PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of October, 2014. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary City Attorney 

2 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM

10/02/14 
Item #6(Q) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  

Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING: Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing a five year 
franchise agreement with Serenity EMS, LLC d/b/a AmeriStat Ambulance for non-emergency 
ambulance transfer services. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt ordinance as presented in item description on first reading, 
schedule second reading for October 16th and a third reading and public hearing for November 6th. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  Serenity EMS, LLC d/b/a AmeriStat Ambulance (“Ameristat Ambulance”) has 
submitted a franchise agreement application for non-emergency ambulance transfer services within 
the city limits.  Under Chapter 5 of the City Code of Ordinances, any interested transfer service must 
submit an application for franchise.  The City currently has franchise agreements with Acadian and 
Scott and White EMS for non-emergency ambulance transfer services as well as a contract with Scott 
and White EMS for emergency ambulance transfer services. 

Ameristat Ambulance wishes to offer non-emergency ambulance transfer services to health care 
providers, including skilled nursing facilities, assisted living facilities, hospice agencies and other 
related entities.  This would include transports from facilities to hospitals, clinics, diagnostic centers, 
physician offices and other locations under circumstances that do not constitute an emergency.   

Ameristat Ambulance has leased and is proposing to operate out of a station located at 401A 
Cottingham Drive in Temple.  The station will be staffed with one MICU/CCT Ambulance with one 
EMT and one Paramedic 24 fours a day 7 days a week.   

AmeriStat Ambulance coverage area is Georgetown, Round Rock, Cedar Park, Pflugerville, Belton, 
Temple, Hutto, Taylor and Flatonia (Williamson, Travis, Bastrop, Milam, Bell, Lee, and Burnet 
County).  They are also in the process of obtaining a service agreement to do ambulance 
transportation for Temple VA Hospital.  If the franchise is approved, AmeriStat will then begin 
broadening their marketing efforts to area care facilities and hospitals for business. 

City staff spoke with Kenny Schnell, EMS Director for Williamson County regarding his opinion and 
experiences with AmeriStat Ambulance.  AmeriStat Ambulance serves Williamson County as a non-
emergency ambulance service provider.  Mr. Schnell spoke favorably of AmeriStat Ambulance, 
stating that there are open lines of communication between the County EMS and AmeriStat 
Ambulance, that AmeriStat Ambulance is focused on patient care and that he respects them for the 
quality of service they provide. 



10/02/14 
Item #6(Q) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

Ambulance, that AmeriStat Ambulance is very focused on patient care and that he respects them for 
the quality of service they provide. 

The City will receive a franchise fee in return for the right to use the public streets and right of way for 
non-emergency ambulance transfer service.  Ameristat Ambulance will pay the city three and one-half 
(3 ½%) of the total amount billed for ambulance service fees and other income derived from the 
operation of the ambulance service within the City.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  By ordinance, non-emergency ambulance transfer services franchisees pay the 
City 3 ½% of the total amount billed per year.  Franchise fees received are deposited into account 
110-0000-413-0936.  

ATTACHMENTS: 
Ordinance 



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-4686 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, GRANTING TO SERENITY EMS, LLC D/B/A AMERISTAT 
AMBULANCE A NON-EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE FOR FIVE YEARS TO 
OPERATE AND MAINTAIN A NON-EMERGENCY AMBULANCE 
TRANSFER SERVICE UPON THE PUBLIC STREETS AND HIGHWAYS OF 
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF 
THE CONSTITUTION AND LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, THE CITY 
CHARTER, AND CHAPTER 5 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE ; DECLARING FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, Article III, Chapter 5 of the City Code, requires that a person or persons 
desiring to provide non-emergency ambulance transfer services on the streets of the City of 
Temple obtain a franchise, under conditions set forth therein; 

Whereas, Serenity EMS, LLC d/b/a Ameristat Ambulance (“Ameristat Ambulance”) has 
requested a franchise for a non-exclusive, non-emergency transfer service within the City of 
Temple; 

Whereas, Ameristat Ambulance wishes to offer non-emergency ambulance transfer 
services to health care providers, including skilled nursing facilities, assisted living facilities, 
hospice agencies and other related entities - this would include transports from facilities to 
hospitals, clinics, diagnostic centers, physician offices and other locations under circumstances 
that do not constitute an emergency;   

 Whereas, Ameristat Ambulance has leased, and is proposing to operate out of, a station 
located at 401A Cottingham Drive in Temple - the station will be staffed with one MICU/CCT 
Ambulance with one EMT and one Paramedic 24 hours a day, 7 days a week; 

Whereas, the City will receive a franchise fee of three and one-half (3 ½%) of the total 
amount billed for ambulance service fees and other income derived from the operation of the 
ambulance service within the City from AmeriStat Ambulance in return for the right to use the 
public streets and rights of way for non-emergency ambulance transfer service.   

Whereas, franchise fees received will be deposited into account 110-0000-413-0936; and 

Whereas, Ameristat Ambulance has established to the satisfaction of the City Council by 
clear, cogent and convincing evidence that public convenience and necessity will be served by 
the granting of said franchise. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

1 



 
Part 1: A non-exclusive franchise to operate and maintain a non-emergency ambulance 

transfer service is granted to Serenity EMS, LLC d/b/a AmeriStat Ambulance pursuant to 
Chapter 5 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Temple, as amended, and the Charter of the 
City of Temple, as provided herein. 
 

Part 2: Definitions. 
 

As used in this ordinance, the following words and phrases shall have the meaning ascribed 
in this section: 
 

(a) City shall mean the City of Temple, a municipal corporation of the State of Texas, 
situated in Bell County; the words in the City or any similar reference to the territorial limits of 
the City of Temple, Texas, shall mean the area within the corporate limits of the City of Temple, 
Texas, as they now exist or as they may hereafter be lawfully modified or extended. 
 

(b) Company, Transfer Service Franchise Holder, as used herein, unless the context clearly 
indicates otherwise, shall mean AmeriStat Ambulance, or its legally approved successors and 
assigns. 
 

(c) Ambulance or Transfer Service shall mean any motor vehicle used, designed, redesigned 
or constructed and equipped for the transportation of sick or injured persons, which vehicles for 
the purposes of this ordinance shall be of the classification of basic life support vehicle or higher, 
according to the definitions and standards of the City of Temple, Texas or the Bureau of 
Emergency Management of the Texas Department of Health. 
 

(d) Non-Emergency Ambulance Transfer Service means a response made by a transfer 
vehicle or ambulance for the transportation of individuals to or from a medical facility, a nursing 
home or residence under circumstances which do not constitute an emergency. 
 

(e) Emergency is any circumstance that calls for an immediate action and which the element 
of time in transporting the sick, wounded or injured for medical treatment at an emergency room 
or a facility providing emergency medical care is or may be essential to the health or life of any 
person. Such circumstances include, but are not limited to, general accidents, traffic accidents 
and acts of violence resulting in personal injury, and sudden illness. 
 

(f) All other words, terms or phrases shall have the meaning assigned to them by Chapter 5 of 
the City Code, to the extent that such words, terms or phrases have not been assigned other 
meanings by Chapter 773 of the Texas Health and Safety Code; as amended, or the regulations of 
the Bureau of Emergency Management of the Texas Department of Health, in which case those 
assigned meanings shall prevail. In the absence of an assigned meaning by the above-referenced 
ordinance, statute, or regulations of the Bureau, the meanings of such words, terms and phrases 
shall have the ordinary meanings applied at law generally or by common usage in the English 
language. 
 

 
 2 



 
Part 3: Notice and Extent of Grant. 

 
The City grants the non-exclusive right and authority to operate and maintain ambulances 

solely for non-emergency ambulance transfer service of persons upon the public streets and 
highways of the City of Temple, Texas, for a term ending on November 5, 2019, to Company in 
consideration of the payment of a franchise fee as provided in Part 5 of this ordinance. 
 

Part 4: Standards and Requirements for Personnel, Vehicles and Equipment. 
 

The Company shall comply with all standards and requirements for personnel, vehicles and 
equipment as enumerated in Chapter 5 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Temple. 
 

Part 5: Payment to the City Required; Franchise Fee. 
 

(a) The transfer service franchise holder shall, during the life of said franchise, pay to the 
City of Temple at the Office of the Director of Finance in lawful money of the United States, 
three and one-half (3 ½%) percent of the total amount billed for the transfer service fees and 
other income derived from the operation of the transfer service, which said remittance shall be 
made monthly on or before the tenth day of each calendar month for the preceding calendar 
month. The compensation provided for in this section shall be in lieu of any other fees or charges 
imposed by any other ordinance now or hereafter in force during the life hereof, but shall not 
release the grantee from the payment of ad valorem taxes levied, or to be levied, on property of 
its own. 
 

(b) It shall be the duty of the franchise holder to file with the Director of Finance a sworn 
statement for each calendar quarter showing the total amount billed for the preceding three (3) 
months which statement shall be filed within ten (10) days following the end of the third month. 
The franchise holder herein shall be required to install and adequately keep a system of 
bookkeeping to be approved by the Director of Finance, which books shall be subject to 
inspections of the governing body of the City of Temple and such person or persons as the City 
may designate, or either of them, so as to enable the City of Temple to check the correctness of 
the accounts kept and to compute fairly and accurately the amount billed that may be due to the 
City. 
 

Part 6: Rates. 
 

(a)  The City Council hereby expressly reserves the right, power, and authority to fully 
regulate and fix, by resolution, the rates and charges for the services of the Company to 
its customers, fully reserving to the City Council all the rights, powers, privileges, and 
immunities, subject to the duties, limitations and responsibilities which the Constitution, 
the laws of the State, and the Charter confer upon the City. 

 
(b)  Company may from time to time propose changes in the general rates by filing an 

application with the City Secretary for consideration of the City Council. Within a 
reasonable time consistent with law, the City Council shall afford Company a fair hearing 

 
 3 



with reference to the application and shall either approve or disapprove the proposed 
changes or make such order as may be reasonable. 

 
Part 7: Liability Insurance Required. 

 
No transfer vehicle shall be operated on the public streets of the City, unless the applicant 

provides evidence to the City that he has in full force and effect a public liability insurance 
policy on that transfer vehicle, such insurance policy to be issued by an insurance company 
licensed to do business in the State of Texas. Such insurance policy shall: 
 

(a) provide liability coverage for each vehicle of not less than two hundred and fifty thousand 
dollars ($250,000) per person, or five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) per occurrence 
for personal injury or death, and one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) for property 
damage; 

 
(b) name the City of Temple as an additional insured, and provide a waiver of 
subrogation in favor of the City; 

 
(c) not contain a passenger liability exclusion; and 

 
(d) provide for at least thirty (30) days prior written notice of cancellation to the City. 

 
Part 8: Conditions of Franchise Granted. 

 
The rights, powers and authority herein granted are granted subject to the Constitution and 

laws of the State of Texas, the Charter of the City of Temple, and where not provided herein, the 
ordinances and codes of the City of Temple as same now exist or may hereafter be amended so 
as to constitute reasonable regulations protecting the health, safety and welfare to insure safe, 
efficient and continuous non-emergency ambulance transfer service, all of which enumerated 
provisions are incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof as fully as though the 
same had been copied herein verbatim. 

 
Part 9: Manner of Giving Notice. 

 
Notice to Company may be given by leaving a written copy thereof at the principal office of 

Company during ordinary business hours. Notice to the City may be given by leaving a written 
copy thereof at the Office of the Director of Finance during ordinary business hours. 
 

Part 10: Public Convenience and Necessity. 
 

Company has established by clear, cogent and convincing evidence and the City Council has 
so found and determined that the present and future public convenience and necessity require the 
operations here authorized to be performed by Company and the public convenience and 
necessity will be served by the granting of this franchise. 
 

Part 11: Performance Bond and Revocation Clause. 

 
 4 



 
(a) The transfer service franchise holder shall establish a Ten Thousand Dollar ($10,000) 

performance bond. The purpose of this bond is to recover costs to the City of Temple for 
accepting and administering the applications for a transfer service franchise in the event the 
franchise is revoked. 
 

(b) If the transfer service franchise holder violates any provision or standard of this ordinance 
or Chapter 5 of the City Code the franchise will be subject to revocation by the City Council of 
the City of Temple and forfeiture of the performance bond. 
 

Part 12: This franchise shall become effective as provided in Article 10, Section 10.3 of the 
Charter of the City of Temple, if Company shall have filed its written acceptance of the franchise 
within thirty (30) days after the final passage and approval of this ordinance. 
 

Part 13: The declarations, determinations and findings declared, made and found in the 
preamble of this ordinance are hereby adopted, restated and made a part of the operative 
provisions hereof. 
 

Part 14: If any provision of this ordinance or the application of any provision to any person 
or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of 
the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this 
end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 

Part 15: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this ordinance 
is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose 
of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading on the 2nd day of October, 2014. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 16th day of October, 2014. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Third and Final Reading and Public Hearing on the 6th day 
of November, 2014. 

 
             THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
                           
             DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:           APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                          
Lacy Borgeson         Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary          City Attorney 

 
 5 



 
 Agreement of Franchisee 
 
 
TO THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS: 
 
 

The franchisee, Serenity EMS, LLC d/b/a AmeriStat Ambulance, acting by and through 
its duly authorized and empowered officer, hereby accepts the terms and conditions of Ordinance 
No. ____________ granting a non-exclusive franchise to operate and maintain a non-emergency 
ambulance transfer service upon the public streets and highways of the City of Temple. 
 

SIGNED this _______ day of __________________, 2014. 
 
 
    SERENITY EMS, LLC D/B/A AMERISTAT   

     AMBULANCE 
 
 

 
           _____ 
    By:  

 
 6 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM

10/02/14 
Item #6(R) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 4 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  

Mark Baker, Planner 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: SECOND READING – Z-FY-14-35:  Consider adopting an ordinance 
authorizing a zoning change from Agricultural District (AG) to General Retail District (GR) on 1.054 +/- 
acres, out of the Baldwin Robertson Survey, Abstract Number 17, Bell County, Texas, located at 
6511 North SH 317. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At its August 18, 2014 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted 9 to 0 to recommend approval of the requested rezone from 
AG to GR.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Based on the following, staff recommends approval for a rezone from 
AG to GR for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed rezone complies with the FLUP and is consistent with the anticipated
type of growth within the SH 317 corridor; 

2. The proposed zoning is compatible with surrounding zoning and uses;
3. The request complies with the Thoroughfare Plan; and
4. Public facilities are available to serve the subject property.

ITEM SUMMARY: The subject property, see Exhibit A, in part, is for a proposed Stripes convenience 
store.  The development will also include the neighboring property at 6503 North SH 317.  The 
neighboring property already is zoned General Retail (GR).  The subject property is within the 
Suburban Commercial District according to the Comprehensive Plan / Future Land Use Plan (FLUP).   

Suburban-Commercial is appropriate for office, retail and services uses adjacent to and abutting 
residential neighborhoods and in other areas where the community’s image and aesthetic value is to 
be promoted, such as at “gateways” and high-profile corridor locations.  

The Suburban Commercial district typically supports the Office (O-1 & O-2) and Neighborhood 
Service (NS) zoning districts. However, in the past, staff has supported General Retail (GR) within the 
Suburban Commercial district on a case by case basis. Specifically, along the SH 317 corridor, while 
most of the zoning is currently AG, rezoning has occurred to several properties which retain the GR 
zoning within the Suburban Commercial FLUP district.  In instances such as this, it has been 
construed as GR zoning where appropriate with the anticipated type of growth within the corridor.  



10/02/14 
Item #6(R) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 4 

This section of the SH 317 corridor is entirely within the Suburban Commercial FLUP district. Past 
rezoning requests in conjunction with development trends along this corridor are suggesting that the 
GR district would be acceptable. Therefore, while the requested zoning to GR may not be appropriate 
for all areas with the Suburban Commercial designation, this request is still in full compliance with the 
FLUP and is consistent with surrounding zoning and the anticipated type of development within the 
SH 317 corridor. 

While it is anticipated the property will be developed with a retail service use, specifically a Stripes 
convenience store, there are a number of residential and non-residential uses that are permitted by 
right.  Those uses include but are not limited to: 

Residential uses Nonresidential uses 
Detached/Attached SF Homes Beer & Wine Sales only - off-site consumption 
Duplex homes Restaurant 
Home for the aged  Car Wash 
Industrialized housing Fuel sales 

Prohibited uses include HUD-Code manufactured homes and land lease communities, apartments, 
commercial and industrial uses.  A number of uses are allowed by an approved conditional use permit 
(temporary asphalt concrete batching plants, sewage treatment plant or wrecking or salvage yard). 

SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: The following table provides the direction from the 
property, Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) designation, existing zoning and current land uses: 

Direction FLUP Zoning  Current Land Use 

Site  Suburban Commercial AG Undeveloped 
North            Suburban Commercial AG / GR Undeveloped 
South            Suburban Commercial GR Undeveloped  
East Suburban Residential SF-2  Single-Family Uses  

(Village of Sage Meadows) 
West          Suburban Commercial AG Undeveloped 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance?
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and Character (FLUP) Yes 
CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  Yes 

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should 
be consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public 
service capacities 

Yes 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks 
Ordinance 

Yes 

CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 



10/02/14 
Item #6(R) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 3 of 4 

Future Land Use and Character Plan (FLUP) (CP Map 3.1) 
The property is within the Suburban Commercial land use district.  The requested General Retail 
(GR) zoning district is in compliance with the Suburban Commercial FLUP district.   

Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The requested property has frontage along SH 317. SR 317 has been identified as a major arterial. 
The ROW is in place but a sidewalk along SH 317 will be required.  The sidewalk will be addressed at 
the platting stage.  The final plat has been submitted and is in review by City staff. 

Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Sewer is available to the subject property through an existing 8” sewer line to the east of the property. 
Water is available through an existing 8” water line to the east of the property as well as a 2” waterline 
in SH 317.  Both are anticipated to be located within an existing 20” utility easement on the eastern 
boundary of the property.  Final location and compliance will be determined during DRC review of the 
subdivision plat which is in progress.   

Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
The Trails Master Plan does identify a proposed Local Connector Trail along SH 317.  The exact 
location and size will be determined during the plat process. 

DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: Standard non-residential setbacks in the GR district are: 

Min Lot Size  N/A  
Min Lot Width N/A 
Min Lot Depth N/A 
Front  15’ 
Side                         10’ 
Side (corner)     10’ 
Rear  0’ (Special setback of 10’ adjacent to or abutting residential use or zoning district) 

Since the proposed GR zoning is adjacent to residential zoning and uses, additional Development 
Regulations include but not limited to: 

* A minimum 10’ rear setback is required where a non-residential use abuts a residential zoning
district or use (UDC Section 4.4.4.F3) and, 

* A residential access drive is prohibited onto arterial streets (UDC Section 7.2.4A).

While general provisions for buffering and screening are found in UDC Section 7.7, highlighted 
provisions include but not limited to: 

* Evergreen hedges with a minimum planted height of six feet, placed on 36-inch centers or,
fences and walls constructed of wood , masonry, stone or pre-cast concrete from 6 to 8 feet in height 
above the  adjacent grade (UDC Section 7.7.4), 



10/02/14 
Item #6(R) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 4 of 4 

* Refuse containers are to be located in the side or rear of the property and screened from view
per UDC Section 7.7.6, and  

* Outdoor storage is permitted in the GR zoning district, where the storage area is situated
behind the principal building in the rear half of the property and where a solid wood or masonry fence 
screens the outdoor storage from public view.  Such wood or masonry fence must be at least one foot 
higher than the stored material (UDC Section 7.7.8.B1). 

PUBLIC NOTICE: Eleven notices of the public hearing were sent out to property owners within 200-
feet of the subject property as required by State law and City Ordinance.  As of Tuesday September 
9, 2014 at 9:00 AM, three returned notices have been received, two in approval and one in 
disapproval. 

The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on August 7, 2014, in accordance with state law 
and local ordinance. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Site and Surrounding Property Photos 
Narrative Letter dated August 18, 2014 
Zoning and Location Map (Exhibit A) Future 
Land Use and Character Map    Localized 
area of the Thoroughfare Plan Localized 
area of the Trails Plan 
Utility Map 
Site Plan 
Notification Map 
Returned Adjacent Property Owner Notices 
Ordinance 



Site & Surrounding Property Photos 

Site:  SF Residence on Acreage (AG) 

East:  SF Residences (SF-2) – Village of Sage Meadows 



 
 

 
 

West:  Undeveloped (AG) 
 

 

 
 

North: Undeveloped and Scattered SF Residences on Acreage (AG) 
 
 



 

 
 

South:  Undeveloped (AG) 





A
G

S
F

-2

G
R

G
R

G
R

S
F

-2
S

F
-3

B
lo

ck
: 

B
lo

ck
:1

B
lo

ck
:7

B
lo

ck
:2

7

4

6

5

1

T
R

A
*

3

9

28

17 16
14

12

11

1315

10

18
21

20
19

25
0

6-
A

28
1

0-
A

25
0

6-
B

27
0

8-
A

TA
R

V
E

R
 D

R

STATE HIGHWAY 317

GREEN PASTURE DR

S
IL

V
E

R
 S

P
R

IN
G

 C
T

62
1

8

65
2

1

64
5

5

65
0

3

67
0

7

72
8

65
11

92
0

9

92
1

0

92
11

92
0

7

72
4

92
1

2

80
4

92
2

8

92
0

3

81
2

82
3

92
1

3

72
0

81
9

92
0

3

92
0

7

80
8

92
0

5

92
0

8

81
580

7

92
0

5

81
1

80
2

92
1

0

92
1

4

72
9

80
372

5

92
1

2

92
1

4

92
1

0

92
0

4

92
3

2

91
2

0
92

2
2

72
1

92
0

4

71
9

91
0

0

Z
-F

Y
-1

4-
35

Z
o

ni
n

g 
&

 L
o

ca
tio

n
 M

ap
A

G
 to

 G
R

65
11

 N
. 

S
R

 3
1

7

¬ «1

G
IS

 p
ro

d
uc

ts
 a

re
 fo

r 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

na
l p

ur
p

os
es

 a
n

d 
m

ay
 n

o
t h

av
e 

b
ee

n 
p

re
p

ar
e

d 
fo

r 
o

r 
b

e 
su

ita
b

le
 fo

r 
le

ga
l, 

e
ng

in
ee

rin
g

, o
r 

su
rv

ey
in

g 
p

ur
p

os
es

.  
T

h
ey

 
do

 n
o

t r
e

pr
e

se
nt

 a
n

 o
n

-t
h

e-
g

ro
u

n
d 

su
rv

e
y 

an
d

 
re

p
re

se
n

t o
nl

y 
th

e
 a

p
pr

o
xi

m
a

te
 r

el
at

iv
e

 lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

bo
un

da
ri

es
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 f
ea

tu
re

s.μ
12

3
4

12
3

4-
A

1

C
as

e
Z

o
ni

n
g

S
ub

di
vi

si
o

n

O
ut

b
lo

ck
 N

um
b

er
B

lo
ck

 N
um

be
r

Lo
t 

N
um

b
er

0
10

0
20

0

F
e

et

9/
8

/2
0

1
4

C
ity

 o
f 

Te
m

p
le

 G
IS

m
b

a
ke

r



TA
R

V
E

R
 D

R

STATE HIGHWAY 317

GREEN PASTURE DR

S
IL

V
E

R
 S

P
R

IN
G

 C
T

μ

Z
-F

Y
-1

4-
35

F
u

tu
re

 L
a

nd
 U

se
 P

la
n

65
11

 N
. 

S
R

 3
1

7

G
IS

 p
ro

d
uc

ts
 a

re
 fo

r 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

na
l p

ur
p

os
es

 
an

d 
m

a
y 

n
ot

 h
a

ve
 b

e
en

 p
re

pa
re

d
 fo

r 
or

 
be

 s
ui

ta
b

le
 f

or
 le

g
al

, e
ng

in
e

er
in

g
, o

r 
su

rv
e

yi
ng

 
pu

rp
o

se
s.

T
h

e
y 

do
 n

o
t r

e
pr

e
se

nt
 a

n
 

on
-t

h
e-

g
ro

u
n

d 
su

rv
e

y 
an

d
 r

e
pr

e
se

nt
 o

n
ly

 
th

e 
a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
e

 r
e

la
tiv

e 
lo

ca
tio

n
 

of
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

bo
un

da
ri

es
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 f
ea

tu
re

s.

F
u

tu
re

 L
a

n
d

 U
se

N
ei

gh
b

or
ho

o
d 

C
on

se
rv

a
tio

n

E
st

a
te

 R
e

si
d

en
tia

l

S
ub

u
rb

an
 R

e
si

d
e

nt
ia

l

A
ut

o-
U

rb
an

 R
es

id
e

nt
ia

l

A
ut

o-
U

rb
an

 M
u

lti
-F

a
m

ily

A
ut

o-
U

rb
an

 M
ix

ed
 U

se

A
ut

o-
U

rb
an

 C
om

m
e

rc
ia

l

S
ub

u
rb

an
 C

o
m

m
er

ci
a

l

U
rb

an
 C

e
n

te
r

Te
m

pl
e

 M
ed

ic
a

l E
d

u
ca

tio
n 

D
is

tr
ic

t

In
du

st
ri

al

B
us

in
e

ss
 P

a
rk

P
ub

lic
 I

ns
tit

u
tio

na
l

P
ar

ks
 &

 O
p

e
n 

S
p

ac
e

A
gr

ic
u

ltu
ra

l/R
u

ra
l

0
1

0
0

2
0

0
5

0
F

e
e

t

7/
2

1
/2

0
1

4
C

ity
 o

f 
Te

m
p

le
 G

IS



Localized Area of the Thoroughfare Plan 

 

Map Legend (Map not to scale) 

 



Localized Area of the Trails Plan 

 

Map Legend (Map not to scale) 

 



G

G
8"

2"

6"

8"

6"

8"

TA
R

V
E

R
 D

R

STATE HIGHWAY 317

S
IL

V
E

R
 S

P
R

IN
G

 C
T

Z
-F

Y
-1

4-
35

U
til

ity
 P

la
n

65
11

 N
. 

S
R

 3
17

G
IS

 p
ro

d
uc

ts
 a

re
 fo

r 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

na
l p

ur
p

os
es

 a
n

d 
m

ay
 n

o
t h

av
e 

b
ee

n 
p

re
p

ar
e

d 
fo

r 
o

r 
b

e 
su

ita
b

le
 fo

r 
le

ga
l, 

e
ng

in
ee

rin
g

, o
r 

su
rv

ey
in

g 
p

ur
p

os
es

.  
T

h
ey

 
do

 n
o

t r
e

pr
e

se
nt

 a
n

 o
n

-t
h

e-
g

ro
u

n
d 

su
rv

e
y 

an
d

 
re

p
re

se
n

t o
nl

y 
th

e
 a

p
pr

o
xi

m
a

te
 r

el
at

iv
e

 lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

bo
un

da
ri

es
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 f
ea

tu
re

s.μ
C

as
e

G
F

ir
e 

H
yd

ra
n

t

S
ew

er
 L

in
e

W
at

er
 L

in
e

E
xp

re
ss

w
ay

M
a

jo
r 

A
rt

e
ria

l

P
ro

po
se

d
 M

a
jo

r 
A

rt
er

ia
l

P
ro

po
se

d
 K

-T
U

T
S

M
in

or
 A

rt
e

ria
l

P
ro

po
se

d
 M

in
o

r 
A

rt
er

ia
l

C
ol

le
ct

o
r

C
on

ce
p

tu
a

l C
ol

le
ct

o
r

0
1

0
0

2
0

0
5

0

F
e

e
t

7/
2

1
/2

0
1

4
C

ity
 o

f 
Te

m
p

le
 G

IS



H
A

R
R

I
S

O
N

 F
R

E
N

C
H

&
 

A
S

S
O

C
I

A
T

E
S

,
 

L
T

D








17
05

 S
. W

alt
on

 B
lv

d.
, S

ui
te

 3
Be

nt
on

vi
lle

, A
rk

an
sa

s 7
27

12
t 4

79
.2

73
.7

78
0

f 4
79

.2
73

.9
43

6
w

w
w

.h
fa

-a
e.c

om



































A
G

S
F

-2

G
R

G
R

G
R

S
F

-2
S

F
-3

B
lo

ck
: 

B
lo

ck
:1

B
lo

ck
:7

B
lo

ck
:2

7

4

6

5

1

T
R

A
*

3

9

28

17 16
14

12

11

1315

10

18
21

20
19

25
0

6-
A

28
1

0-
A

25
0

6-
B

27
0

8-
A

TA
R

V
E

R
 D

R

STATE HIGHWAY 317

GREEN PASTURE DR

S
IL

V
E

R
 S

P
R

IN
G

 C
T

62
1

8

65
2

1

64
5

5

65
0

3

67
0

7

72
8

65
11

92
0

9

92
1

0

92
11

92
0

7

72
4

92
1

2

80
4

92
2

8

92
0

3

81
2

82
3

92
1

3

72
0

81
9

92
0

3

92
0

7

80
8

92
0

5

92
0

8

81
580

7

92
0

5

81
1

80
2

92
1

0

92
1

4

72
9

80
372

5

92
1

2

92
1

4

92
1

0

92
0

4

92
3

2

91
2

0
92

2
2

72
1

92
0

4

71
9

91
0

0

Z
-F

Y
-1

4-
35

N
ot

ifi
ca

tio
n

 M
ap

A
G

 to
 G

R
65

11
 N

. 
S

R
 3

1
7

¬ «1

G
IS

 p
ro

d
uc

ts
 a

re
 fo

r 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

na
l p

ur
p

os
es

 a
n

d 
m

ay
 n

o
t h

av
e 

b
ee

n 
p

re
p

ar
e

d 
fo

r 
o

r 
b

e 
su

ita
b

le
 fo

r 
le

ga
l, 

e
ng

in
ee

rin
g

, o
r 

su
rv

ey
in

g 
p

ur
p

os
es

.  
T

h
ey

 
do

 n
o

t r
e

pr
e

se
nt

 a
n

 o
n

-t
h

e-
g

ro
u

n
d 

su
rv

e
y 

an
d

 
re

p
re

se
n

t o
nl

y 
th

e
 a

p
pr

o
xi

m
a

te
 r

el
at

iv
e

 lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

bo
un

da
ri

es
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 f
ea

tu
re

s.μ
12

3
4

12
3

4-
A

1

C
as

e

20
0'

 B
u

ffe
r

Z
o

ni
n

g

S
ub

di
vi

si
o

n

O
ut

b
lo

ck
 N

um
b

er
B

lo
ck

 N
um

be
r

Lo
t 

N
um

b
er

0
10

0
20

0

F
e

et

9/
8

/2
0

1
4

C
ity

 o
f 

Te
m

p
le

 G
IS

m
b

a
ke

r









 
 ORDINANCE NO. 2014-4684 

 
(PLANNING NO. Z-FY-14-35) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A ZONING CHANGE FROM AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT (AG) TO GENERAL RETAIL DISTRICT (GR) ON 
APPROXIMATELY 1.054 ACRES OUT OF THE BALDWIN 
ROBERTSON SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 17 AND LOCATED AT 
6511 NORTH SH 317; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
THAT: 

 
Part 1: The City Council approves a zoning change from Agricultural District 

(AG) to General Retail District (GR), on approximately 1.054 acres being a part of the 
Baldwin Robertson Survey, Abstract No. 17, situated in Bell County, Texas, and 
located at 6511 North SH 317, as outlined in the map attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ 
and made a part hereof for all purposes and subject to the following conditions: 

 
• A minimum 10’ rear setback is required where a non-residential use abuts a 

residential zoning district or use (UDC Section 4.4.4.F3) and  
• A residential access drive is prohibited onto arterial streets (UDC Section 

7.2.4A);  
• Evergreen hedges with a minimum planted height of six feet, placed on 36-inch 

centers or, fences and walls constructed of wood, masonry, stone or pre-cast 
concrete from 6 to 8 feet in height above the adjacent grade (UDC Section 
7.7.4); 

• Refuse containers are to be located in the side or rear of the property and 
screened from view per UDC Section 7.7.6; and 

• Outdoor storage is permitted in the GR zoning district, where the storage area 
is situated behind the principal building in the rear half of the property and 
where a solid wood or masonry fence screens the outdoor storage from public 
view. Such wood or masonry fence must be at least one foot higher than the 
stored material (UDC Section 7.7.8.B1). 

 
Part 2: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 

changes to the City Zoning Map accordingly. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable 
and, if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be 
declared invalid by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, 
such invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, 
paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by 
the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph or section. 

1 
 



 
 
Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage 

in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 

this Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of 
the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 18th day 

of September, 2014. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 2nd day of October, 2014. 
     

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
              

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 

2 
 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

10/02/14 
Item #6(S) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  

Denny Hainley, Acting Civil Service Director 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: SECOND READING – PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting an ordinance 
establishing the Civil Service classifications and the number of positions in each classification for the 
Temple Fire Department and the Temple Police Department. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt ordinance as presented in item description, on second and 
final reading. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  Chapter 143 of the Local Government Code requires that the Council establish, 
by ordinance, the classifications and the number of positions in each classification for the Fire 
Department and the Police Department.   

The FY 2015 Operating Budget includes staffing an additional six positions and six reclassifications in 
the Temple Police Department. The staffing changes include: two Patrol Officers; two School 
Resource Officers; one Detective; one POPs Officer; and six Officers reclassified to Corporals. To 
accommodate this change, Council must authorize six additional Corporal positions to be added to 
the ordinance. 

The Proposed FY 2015 budget also includes the addition of three Firefighters positions to allow the 
Fire Department to continue to maintain ALS service levels.  To accommodate this change, Council 
must authorize three additional Firefighter positions to be added to the ordinance. All of these 
changes will be effective as of October 1, 2014. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Funding in the amount of $ 360,995 is included in the FY 2015 Operating Budget 
for the six new Police Officer positions and to reclassify six Police Officer positions to Corporal 
positions.  The two School Resource Officer positions will be funded by the Temple Independent 
School District through an inter-local agreement.   

Funding in the amount of $155,057 is included in the FY 2015 Budget for the three new Firefighter 
positions.    

ATTACHMENTS: 
Ordinance 



ORDINANCE NO. 2014-4685 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, ESTABLISHING THE CIVIL SERVICE CLASSIFICATIONS AND 
THE NUMBER OF POSITIONS IN EACH CLASSIFICATION FOR THE 
TEMPLE FIRE DEPARTMENT AND THE TEMPLE POLICE DEPARTMENT; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, Chapter 143 of the Local Government Code requires that the City Council 
establish, by ordinance, the number of positions in each classification for the Temple Fire 
Department and the Temple Police Department;  

Whereas, the fiscal year 2015 budget includes staffing an additional six (6) positions and 
six (6) reclassifications in the Temple Police Department which includes two patrol officers, two 
School Resources Officers, one Detective, one POPs officer and six officers reclassified to 
Corporals - to accommodate this change, Council must authorize six (6) Corporal positions to be 
added to the Ordinance;  

Whereas, the fiscal year 2015 budget includes staffing an additional three (3) Firefighter 
positions to allow the Fire Department to continue to maintain ALS service levels - to 
accommodate this change, Council must authorize three (3) additional Firefighter positions to be 
added to the Ordinance; 

Whereas, funding is included in the fiscal year 2015 Operating Budget for the six new 
police officer positions and to reclassify six police officer positions to Corporal positions – the 
two School Resource Officer positions will be funded by the Temple Independent School District 
through an interlocal agreement; 

Whereas, funding is included in the fiscal year 2015 Operating Budget for the three new 
Firefighter positions; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered these matters and deems it in the public interest 
to authorize these actions. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the staffing of an additional six (6) positions and six 
(6) reclassifications in the Temple Police Department which includes two patrol officers, two 
School Resources Officers, one Detective, one POPs officer and six officers reclassified to 
Corporals and an additional three (3) Firefighter positions to allow the Fire Department to 
continue to maintain ALS service levels. 

1 



Part 2: To accommodate these changes, Council authorizes six (6) Corporal positions and 
three (3) additional Firefighter positions be added to the Ordinance, as outlined in the fiscal year 
2015 budget.  

Part 3: Council establishes the following Classifications and the Number of Positions of 
Certified Firefighters and Classifications and Number of Positions of Certified Police Officers for 
civil service positions in the Fire and Police Departments: 

CLASSIFICATIONS AND POSITIONS 
OF CERTIFIED FIREFIGHTERS 

I. UNCLASSIFIED POSITIONS 

A.  FIRE CHIEF – 1 Position 
The Fire Chief is appointed by the City Manager. No person shall be eligible for 
appointment as Chief of the Fire Department who is not eligible for certification by 
the Commission on Fire Protection Personnel Standards and Education at the 
intermediate level, or its equivalent as determined by that Commission, and who has 
not served at least 5 years as a fully paid firefighter. 

II. CLASSIFIED POSITIONS

A. DEPUTY CHIEF – 5 Positions

No person shall be eligible for appointment as a Deputy Chief who has not served 
continuously in the Department, as a Captain, for at least 2 years. In addition to base 
pay, every Deputy Chief having 5, 7, 9 or 15 years of service in the Department 
shall receive the amount shown on the attached compensation plan for such 
increments of seniority. 

B. CAPTAIN – 26 Positions 

No person shall be eligible for appointment as a Captain who has not served 
continuously in the Department, as a Driver, for at least 2 years. In addition to base 
pay, every Captain having 3, 5, 7, 9 or 15 years of service in the Department shall 
receive the amount shown on the attached compensation plan for such increments of 
seniority. 

C. DRIVER – 30 Positions 

No person shall be eligible for appointment as a Driver who has not served 
continuously in the Department, as a Firefighter, for at least 2 years. In addition to 
base pay, every Driver having 3, 5, 7, 9 or 15 years of service in the Department 
shall receive the amount shown on the attached compensation plan for such 
increments of seniority. 

2 



D. FIREFIGHTER – 56 Positions 

No person shall be eligible for appointment as a Firefighter who does not meet all 
requirements necessary to become eligible for future classification by the 
Commission on Fire Protection Personnel Standards and Education. In addition to 
base pay, every Firefighter having 1, 3, 5, 7, 9 or 15 years of service in the 
Department shall receive the amount shown on the attached compensation plan for 
such increments of seniority. 

CLASSIFICATIONS AND POSITIONS 
OF CERTIFIED POLICE OFFICERS 

I. UNCLASSIFIED POSITIONS 

A. POLICE CHIEF – 1 Position 

The Police Chief is appointed by the City Manager. No person shall be eligible for 
appointment as the Chief of the Police Department who is not eligible for 
certification by the Commission on Law Enforcement Standards and Education at 
the intermediate level or its equivalent as determined by that Commission or who 
has not served as a bona fide law enforcement officer for at least 5 years.  

B. DEPUTY CHIEF – 2 Positions 

No person shall be eligible for appointment as a Deputy Chief who has not served 
as a Lieutenant or continuously served for a minimum of 2 years as a Sergeant in 
the Department. 

II. CLASSIFIED POSITIONS

A. LIEUTENANT – 5 Positions

No person shall be eligible for appointment as a Lieutenant who has not served 
continuously as a Sergeant in the Department for at least 2 years. In addition to base 
pay, every Lieutenant having more than 5, 8, 12, 16 or 20 years of service in the 
Department shall receive the amount shown on the attached compensation plan for 
such increments of seniority. 

B. SERGEANT – 16 Positions 

No person shall be eligible for appointment as a Sergeant who has not served 
continuously as a Corporal in the Department for at least 2 years. In addition to base 
pay, every Sergeant having more than 3, 6, 10, 15 or 20 years of service in the 
Department shall receive the amount shown on the attached compensation plan for 
such increments of seniority. 

3 



C. CORPORAL – 22 Positions 

No person shall be eligible for appointment as a Corporal who has not served 
continuously as a Police Officer in the Department for at least 2 years. In addition to 
base pay, every Corporal having more than 3, 6, 10, 15 or 20 years of service in the 
Department shall receive the amount shown on the attached compensation plan for 
such increments of seniority. 

D. POLICE OFFICER – 95 Positions 

No person shall be eligible for appointment as a Probationary Police Officer who 
has not met the basic requirements for entrance into the Department. No person 
shall be eligible for a permanent appointment as a Police Officer who has not 
completed 1 year of satisfactory performance in the Department. In addition to base 
pay, every Police Officer who has 1, 3, 6, 10, 15 or 20 years of service in the 
Department shall receive the amount shown on the attached compensation plan for 
such increments of seniority. 

Part 3: If any provision of this ordinance or the application of any provision to any person 
or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of 
the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this 
end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect October 2, 2014. 

Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 18th day of 
September, 2014. 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 2nd day of October, 2014. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, MAYOR 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary City Attorney 

4 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

10/02/14 
Item #6(T) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:   

Sharon Rostovich, Airport Director 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing acceptance of a Texas Department 
of Transportation, Aviation Division, Non-Primary Entitlement (NPE) Grant, (50-50 grant with the 
City’s match $300,000, funded through the Reinvestment Zone), in fiscal year 2015, for entrance and 
parking improvements at the northwest portion of the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport 
in the total amount of $ $600,000.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY:   In July 2014, the City of Temple received notification that Draughon-Miller 
Central Texas Regional Airport had a balance of $300,000 in Non-Primary Entitlement Grant funds 
($150,000 from FY13 and $150,000 from FY14).  The NPE Grant program has been in place since 
2001 when Congress passed and the President signed legislation to appropriate funds for the Air-21 
Entitlement Program.  Eligible Airports receive a maximum of $150,000 each year to be used for 
airside and landside improvements.  In the past, Temple’s NPE funds were used in conjunction with 
larger AIP grant projects; however, TxDOT failed to use the funds during the runway extension and 
runway reconstruction projects leaving funds from FY13 & FY14 available.   (FY15 NPE funds are 
earmarked for the Airport Master Plan project).   

The NPE Grant funds will be used to leverage the Reinvestment Zone funding currently estimated at 
$850,000 for the construction of a new entrance and improved parking facilities at the northwest 
portion of the Airport.   

TxDOT has approved Temple’s project eligibility at the maximum amount of $300,000 with the City’s 
matching funds of $300,000 (funded through the Reinvestment Zone). 

Upon receipt of the City of Temple’s Resolution, TxDOT will submit the grant for approval through the 
Texas Commission.           

FISCAL IMPACT:  The City of Temple will receive a matching reimbursement up to $300,000 upon 
completion of the project. Currently, there is $850,000 available for the Airport match in the 
Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing Plan, $100,000 in account 795-9800-531-6878, project 101017, 
for the new entrance and $750,000 in account 795-9800-531-6880, project 101019, for the improved 
parking facilities 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7509-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF A TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION, AVIATION DIVISION, NON-PRIMARY 
ENTITLEMENT GRANT IN FISCAL YEAR 2015, FOR ENTRANCE AND 
PARKING IMPROVEMENTS AT THE NORTHWEST PORTION OF THE 
DRAUGHON-MILLER CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL AIPORT, IN THE 
TOTAL AMOUNT OF $600,000, (WITH THE CITY’S $300,000 MATCH 
FUNDED THROUGH THE REINVESTMENT ZONE); AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, in July 2014, the City of Temple received notification that the  Draughon-
Miller Central Texas Regional Airport had a balance of $300,000 in Non-Primary Entitlement 
(NPE) Grant funds ($150,000 from fiscal year 2013 and $150,000 from fiscal year 2014); 

Whereas, the NPE Grant program has been in place since 2001 when Congress passed 
and the President signed legislation to appropriate funds for the Air-21 Entitlement Program - 
eligible Airports receive a maximum of $150,000 each year to be used for airside and landside 
improvements; 

Whereas, in the past, the City of Temple’s NPE funds were used in conjunction with 
larger AIP grant projects; however, TxDOT failed to use the funds during the runway extension 
and runway reconstruction projects leaving funds from fiscal year 2013 & 2014 available;   

Whereas, the NPE Grant funds will be used to leverage the Reinvestment Zone funding 
currently estimated at $850,000 for the construction of a new entrance and improved parking 
facilities at the northwest portion of the Airport; 

Whereas, TxDOT has approved the City of Temple’s project eligibility at the maximum 
amount of $300,000 with the City’s matching funds of $300,000 (funded through the 
Reinvestment Zone) and upon receipt of the City of Temple’s Resolution, TxDOT will submit 
the grant for approval through the Texas Department of Transportation Commission;  

Whereas, the City will receive a matching reimbursement up to $300,000 upon 
completion of the project and funds are available for the match in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 
Financing Plan, $100,000 in Account No. 795-9800-531-6878, Project No. 101017, for the new 
entrance and $750,000 in Account No. 795-9800-531-6880, Project No. 101019, for the 
improved parking facilities; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

1 



Part 1: The City Council accepts the grant funds in the estimated amount of $300,000 
from the Texas Department of Transportation, Aviation Division, Non-Primary Entitlement 
Grant in fiscal year 2015, for entrance and parking improvements at the northwest portion of the 
Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport, and approves the City’s $300,000 match 
funded through the Reinvestment Zone. 

Part 2: The City Council hereby directs the City Manager to execute on behalf of the 
City of Temple and with the appropriate authorizations of the City of Temple, all contracts and 
agreements with the Texas Department of Transportation, Aviation Division, Non-Primary 
Entitlement Grant and such other parties as shall be necessary and appropriate for entrance and 
parking improvements at the northwest portion of the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional 
Airport. 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of October, 2014. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary  City Attorney 

2 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

10/02/14 
Item #6(U) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:   

Sharon Rostovich, Airport Director 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing acceptance of  the FY15 Texas 
Department of Transportation, Aviation Division, Routine Airport Maintenance Grant, (City match of 
$50,000), to help assist with lower cost airside and landside Airport improvements at the Draughon-
Miller Central Texas Regional Airport in the amount of $100,000.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY:   The City of Temple, as part of our Airport Grant Assurance, has participated in 
the yearly grant program through the Texas Department of Transportation, Aviation Division for 
several years.  The RAMP Grant is a pro-active, flexible grant program that allows the City to 
determine projects on an as needed basis upon execution of the grant.  Eligible items currently being 
considered in FY15, but subject to change based on needs include street and drainage 
enhancements at the fuel farm and the general aviation terminal building; entrance and parking 
improvements at the northwest portion of the Airport; and signage and landscaping enhancements.     

TxDOT has approved Temple’s participation for inclusion in the FY15 RAMP Program at the 
maximum level of $100,000 (50-50 share).  The City’s matching funds are included in the FY15 
Airport operating budget.   

The Grant Agreement must be forwarded to TxDOT upon acceptance.      

FISCAL IMPACT:  The expenditure of $100,000 (which includes the City’s $50,000 match) was 
approved in the FY15 operating budget in account 110-5900-560-6310, project # 101136. The grant 
revenue was also included in the FY15 budget in account 110-0000-431-0261.  TxDOT Aviation will 
reimburse the City 50% of the total project cost not to exceed $50,000. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO.  2014-7510-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2015 
TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, AVIATION DIVISION, 
ROUTINE AIRPORT MAINTENANCE GRANT, IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$100,000 (WITH A CITY MATCH OF $50,000) TO HELP ASSIST WITH 
LOWER COST AIRSIDE AND LANDSIDE AIRPORT IMPROVEMENTS 
AT THE DRAUGHON-MILLER CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL 
AIRPORT; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, The City of Temple, as part of our Airport Grant Assurance, has 
participated in the yearly grant program through the Texas Department of Transportation, 
Aviation Division for several years; 

Whereas, the Routine Airport Maintenance Program (RAMP) Grant is a pro-active, 
flexible grant program that allows the City to determine projects on an ‘as needed’ basis 
upon execution of the grant; 

Whereas, eligible items currently being considered in fiscal year 2015, but subject to 
change based on needs, include street and drainage enhancements at the fuel farm, the 
general aviation terminal building, entrance and parking improvements at the northwest 
portion of the Airport, and signage and landscaping enhancements; 

Whereas, TxDOT has approved Temple’s participation for inclusion in the fiscal year 
2015 RAMP Program at the maximum level of $100,000 (50-50 share) - the Grant 
Agreement must be forwarded to TxDOT upon acceptance by Council;       

Whereas, the expenditure of $100,000 (which includes the City’s $50,000 match), 
was approved in the fiscal year 2015 operating budget in Account No. 110-5900-560-6310, 
Project No. 101136. The grant revenue was also included in the fiscal year 2015 budget in 
account 110-0000-431-0261.  TxDOT Aviation will reimburse the City 50% of the total 
project cost not to exceed $50,000; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: The City Council accepts the grant funds in the estimated amount of $100,000 
from the Texas Department of Transportation, Aviation Division, Routine Airport 
Maintenance Grant, to assist with lower cost airside and landside Airport improvements at 
the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport, and approves the City’s 50% share 
($50,000) of the funds. 

1 



Part 2: The City Council hereby directs the City Manager to execute on behalf of the 
City of Temple and with the appropriate authorizations of the City of Temple, all contracts 
and agreements with the Texas Department of Transportation, Aviation Division, Routine 
Airport Maintenance Grant, and such other parties as shall be necessary and appropriate to 
assist with lower cost airside and landside Airport improvements at the Draughon-Miller 
Central Texas Regional Airport. 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of October, 2014. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary  City Attorney 

2 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

10/02/14 
Item #6(V) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:   

Brian Chandler, Director of Planning 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider a resolution granting permission to proceed with a Transportation 
Alternative Program (TAP) grant application to the Killeen Temple Metropolitan Planning Organization 
(KTMPO) for a new sidewalk and associated enhancements along North 31st Street. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  KTMPO has $624,000 funding available for TAP transportation enhancement 
grants, which requires a 20 percent match by the lead agency applying for funds.  The scoring criteria 
for the grant focuses on improving Connectivity, Safety, Quality of Life, Financial Partnerships and 
Environmental Justice. 

The project scope is to construct a new sidewalk connection from Temple High School (at the bus 
shelter) to West Adams Avenue, which includes an 8 foot sidewalk on the west side and 5 foot 
connections on the east side linking to existing THS sidewalks with the same width.  A crosswalk, 
including pedestrian flashers, will be installed at Calhoun.  Six inch street trees for aesthetic, shade 
and improved air quality purposes (studies show that trees absorb a variety of air pollutants) will be 
planted behind the 8’ sidewalk, along with the installation of benches and trash receptacles.  

The project objectives include:  
 Provide a safe and inviting sidewalk connection between THS, the bus shelter and existing

businesses  
 Provide links to TXDOT I-35 pedestrian improvements and to the Central Avenue downtown

sidewalk connector  
 Enhance and beautify “gateway” to downtown Temple’s “front door”
 Promote sustainability through: 1) increased pedestrian activity and decreased car trips; 2)

planting large, drought-tolerant trees
KPA Engineers developed the preliminary design and $307,740 cost estimate.  “Financial 
Partnerships” represents up to 15 points out of 100 in the grant scoring criteria and is defined as 
organizations (private or public) committing to fund at least 10 percent of the total project costs.  The 
City of Temple has had positive discussions with Temple Independent School District (TISD), the 
Reinvestment Zone (RZ), Keep Temple Beautiful (KTB) and Chick Fil-A about potentially committing 
the $30,774 to be considered as financial partners.  October 15, 2015 is the KTMPO application 
submittal deadline. 



10/02/14 
Item #6(V) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The City would be responsible for the 20 percent match (however, the City hopes 
to receive 10 percent financial commitments from at least 2 of the partnering organizations, which 
would cover the City’s match requirements), the design fees (15 percent of the project), TXDOT 
administrative fees (estimated at 3 to 8 percent of the project cost) and any cost overruns.  The City’s 
portion of the funding would come out of the Transportation Capital Improvement Program (TCIP) 
budget. 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Project aerial site plan 
Preliminary Project Cost 
Grant Scoring Criteria 
Grant Application
Draft Resolution 
Resolution 





1 of 1

1 Preparation of Right-of-Way STA 13 650.00$             8,450.00$

2
Remove and Dispose of Concrete Sidewalk,
Driveways, Flumes and Curb & Gutter

SY 650 20.00$               13,000.00$

3 Unclassified Excavation for Pedestrian Trail CY 200 17.50$               3,500.00$
4 Compacted Fill Using Onsite Material CY 100 17.50$               1,750.00$
5 Compacted Fill Using Imported Select Material CY 100 35.00$               3,500.00$
6 HMAC Type "D" Course Patch TN 40 225.00$             9,000.00$
7 Retaining Wall (Stone) SF 500 30.00$               15,000.00$
8 Handrail (TY A) LF 30 110.00$             3,300.00$
9 Barrier Rail (TY A) LF 100 100.00$             10,000.00$

10
Mobilization, Bonds & Insurance (not-to-exceed 5% of
Total Bid)

LS 100% 15,000.00$        15,000.00$

11
Implement and Administer Barricade, Signing and
Traffic Safety Plan (Vehicular and Pedestrian)

MO 6 5,000.00$          30,000.00$

12 Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SW3P) LS 100% 3,000.00$          3,000.00$
13 Furnish, Install, Maintain and Remove Silt Fence LF 1,000 2.75$ 2,750.00$
14 Furnish, Install, Maintain and Remove Rock Berm LF 25 35.00$               875.00$
15 Inlet Protection System EA 4 200.00$             800.00$
16 24" Standard Concrete Curb & Gutter LF 150 25.00$               3,750.00$
17 2' Width Concrete Valley Gutter LF 100 25.00$               2,500.00$
18 6" CL B Concrete Flume CY 25 200.00$             5,000.00$
19 6" Concrete Driveway SY 300 60.00$               18,000.00$
20 6" Concrete Sidewalk SY 1,300 50.00$               65,000.00$
21 Handicap Ramp EA 12 1,500.00$          18,000.00$

22 Remove and Relocate Existing Pole Signs EA 8 375.00$             3,000.00$

23 Solar Panel Flashing Pedestrian Crossing Sign & Pole EA 2 5,000.00$          10,000.00$

24 Standard Pedestrian Crossing Sign & Pole EA 2 750.00$             1,500.00$

25 White Thermoplastic  Crosswalk LF 400 25.00$               10,000.00$

26 White Thermoplastic  Stop Bar LF 120 12.00$               1,440.00$
27 Utility Adjustments LS 100% 5,000.00$          5,000.00$

TOTAL PEDESTRIAN TRAIL 263,115.00$

28 Irrigation System LS 100% 10,000.00$        10,000.00$
29 Block Sodding SY 450 5.00$ 2,250.00$
30 Compost Manuf Topsoil (4") CY 100 40.00$               4,000.00$
31 Mulch CY 75 5.00$ 375.00$
32 Shade Trees (Min 6" Caliper) EA 10 1,750.00$          17,500.00$
33 Park Bench EA 3 1,800.00$          5,400.00$
34 Top Opening Litter Receptacle EA 3 1,200.00$          3,600.00$
35 48" Hinged Round Post Bollards EA 2 750.00$             1,500.00$

TOTAL LANDSCAPE 44,625.00$

PROJECT CONSTRUCTION COST 307,740.00$
TXDOT ADIMINISTRATIVE FEES (3%) 9,232.20$

TOTAL PROJECT COST 316,972.20$

 PROBABLE PROJECT COST

2014 CAT 9 Grant Application

September 9, 2014

City of Temple, TX
31st Street Pedestrian Walk  

Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP

Landscaping Items

PRELIMINARY OPINION
 OF

Bid 
No.

Pedestrian Trail Items

Description Unit Qty. Unit Price Total Price















RESOLUTION NO.    2014-7511-R

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING SUBMISSION OF A GRANT 
TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVE PROGRAM GRANT 
APPLICATION TO THE KILLEEN TEMPLE METROPOLITAN 
PLANNING ORGANIZATION FOR A NEW SIDEWALK AND 
ASSOCIATED ENHANCEMENTS ALONG NORTH 31ST STREET; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, the Killeen Temple Metropolitan Planning Organization (KTMPO) has 
$624,000 in funding available for Transportation Alternative Program (TAP) transportation 
enhancement grants, which requires a 20% match by the lead agency applying for the funds; 

Whereas, the scoring criteria for the grant focuses on improving connectivity, safety, 
quality of life, financial partnerships and environmental justice; 

Whereas, the proposed project will construct a new sidewalk connection from 
Temple High School (THS) to the bus shelter and existing businesses - it will provide links 
to TxDOT’s I-35 pedestrian improvements and to the Central Avenue downtown sidewalk 
connector, enhance and beautify the gateway to downtown Temple and promote 
sustainability through increased pedestrian activity and decreased car trips; 

Whereas, a crosswalk, including pedestrian flashers, will be installed at Calhoun and 
six inch street trees will be planted behind the 8-foot sidewalk, along with the installation of 
benches and trash receptacles; 

Whereas, Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP developed the preliminary design and 
cost estimate – the City of Temple has had positive discussions with Temple Independent 
School District (TISD), the Reinvestment Zone (RZ), Keep Temple Beautiful (KTB) and 
Chick Fil-A about the potential of committing funds to be considered as financial partners; 

Whereas, the City will be responsible for a 20% match and anticipates receiving a 
10% financial commitment from two of the above partnering organizations, which would 
cover the City’s match requirements, the design fees (15% of the project), TxDOT 
administrative fees (3%-8%) and any cost overruns; 

Whereas, the City’s 20% match funding is allocated in the Transportation Capital 
Improvement Program budget; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the submission of a Transportation Alternative 
Program grant application to the Killeen Temple Metropolitan Planning Organization 
(KTMPO) for new sidewalks and associated enhancements along North 31st Street. 

1 



Part 2: The City Manager, or his designee, is authorized to execute any documents 
which may be necessary to accept this grant, and any funds that may be received for this 
grant, after approval as to form by the City Attorney. 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of October, 2014. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson  Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary  City Attorney 

2 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

10/02/14 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 5 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:   

Mark Baker, Planner 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-14-36: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to allow a package store, for the retail sales of 
alcoholic beverages with off-premise consumption, on Lot 2, Block 1, Western Hills Commercial 
Phase III, located in Suite 201 at 4311 West Adams Avenue. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At its September 2, 2014 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted 7 to 0 to recommend approval per staff’s recommendation of 
the requested Conditional Use Permit for a package store. 

It was discussed and clarified that window signs would include advertising of alcoholic beverages as 
well as other products being sold within the store.  Restrictions on window signage would not include 
the listing of hours of operation. While it was discussed that signage on the exterior fascia on the 
building could remain on after-hours, staff has found that the UDC does not make a distinction 
between wall mounted and freestanding signs and all signage would need to be turned off after 
closing time. Multi-tenant signage would not affected by the requirement. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of Z-FY-14-36, a Conditional Use Permit 
to allow a package store with alcoholic beverage sales for off-premise consumption for the following 
reasons: 

1. The request is compatible with the Future Land Use and Character Map;
2. The request complies with the Thoroughfare, Plan and the Trails Master Plan;
3. Public facilities are available to serve the property; and,
4. The use is compatible with Zoning and surrounding uses and,

Staff recommends Approval of the conditional use permit subject to the following conditions: 

1. Such use must comply with Chapter 4, “Alcoholic Beverages,” of the City Code;
2. Outdoor lighting must comply with the standards in subsection 6.7.5k;
3. Parking must be provided on site, not less than one space for each 250 square feet of retail,

plus the number of parking spaces required for non-retail space as specified in UDC Section
7.5.;

4. Window signs are prohibited as per UDC Section 5.3.17;



   
10/02/14 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 5 

 
5. Lighted signs must be turned off at closing time as per UDC Section 5.3.17; and 
6. Upon compliance to the necessary building codes, the Director of Planning / Building Official or 

their designee is authorized to issue occupancy for the expansion into the adjacent suite in the 
event of expansion; 

 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit to allow a package store 
within an existing but unfinished suite in the existing Paint Brush Plaza located at 4311 West Adams 
Ave. 
 
The property is located within the Commercial (C) zoning district which requires the approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit to establish a package store.  The package store to be known as “The Liquor 
Room” is proposed in Suite 201.  A package store is a retail establishment for the sales of distilled 
liquors, wines and beers in unbroken original containers for off-premise consumption. 
 
Suite 201 has inside floor measurements of approximately 23.85’ X 58.16’ or a net floor area of 
approximately 1,387 square feet.  It is noteworthy that the applicant has expressed a desire that at 
some point the package store may be expanded into the adjacent Suite 202.  The expansion would 
double the net floor area for a total of approximately 2,774 square feet of retail space. 
 
Parking, landscaping and improvements to exterior building facades are in place and no additional 
improvements have been proposed or are anticipated.    
 
It should be further noted that while this Conditional Use Permit is for a package store, as defined 
above, the 7-11 convenience store adjacent to the plaza suite does retail sales of individual 
containers of beer and wine, which is permitted by-right. 
 
 
USE STANDARDS: Package stores are subject to a number of use standards as described in 
Section 5.3.17 of the UDC. While the proposed package store is not proposing a drive-up window, a 
feature which has several requirements, a number of other standards applicable to the package store 
have been identified and are discussed as follows: 
 
Chapter 4 of the City Code – Alcoholic Beverages:  Although the provisions of Chapter 4 of the 
City Code will not be listed in this report, compliance to the chapter in its entirety is required by 
reference.  It is the proprietor’s responsibility to become familiar with the provisions of Chapter 4 of 
the City Code; however it is not anticipated that there will be any compliance issues related to 
approval of the Conditional Use Permit. 
 
Outdoor Lighting: Outdoor lighting is reviewed during the Construction Plan phase of review.  Any 
new lighting not already in-place would be required to comply with UDC Section 6.7.5k, the I-35 
Overlay standards as well as current electrical and building code requirements. It should be noted 
that lighting standards would only be applied in the event of a new building permit for outdoor lighting.  
Compliance to UDC Section 6.7.5k would not be retroactive.  Since the code does not make a 
distinction between freestanding and building/wall mounted signage, the code has been interpreted to 
apply to all signage.  This would not apply to the freestanding multi-tenant sign which advertises other 
business in the plaza. The property owner has confirmed that individual panels on the multi-tenant  



   
10/02/14 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 5 

 
sign cannot be turned off. Since the applicant has not proposed any new outdoor lighting with this 
request, no issues are anticipated.   
 
Parking:  Parking is in-place and was calculated on the overall use of the development for retail and 
services uses. Retail and service uses are calculated at a minimum 1 space per 250 square feet of 
floor area. Additional parking due to the nature of the package store was not required and not 
anticipated as a result of the presence of the package store. 
 
Window Signs: Window signs are prohibited. Staff anticipates compliance to the prohibition of 
window signs. 
 
Lighted Signs: Lighted signs must be turned off at closing time.  Staff anticipates compliance to the 
lighted signs being turned off at closing time. 
 
The applicant has provided a floor plan and building elevations and as required per UDC Section 
3.5.2B, a site plan.  The site is developed, all facilities are in place and the building suites are partially 
occupied by tenants. As mentioned previously, the applicant has indicated that there is no drive-thru 
proposed and opportunities exist for the applicant to expand the business into the adjoining suite 
(#202). This potential expansion has been addressed by Condition #6 which would allow 
administrative approval of that expansion. The attached site and floor plan will be included in the 
Ordinance, if the Conditional Use Permit is approved by City Council. 
 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: The following table provides the direction from the 
property, Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) designation, existing zoning and current land uses: 
 
Direction FLUP      Zoning  Current Land Use 
 
Site  Suburban Commercial   C   Retail and Service Uses 
North            Suburban Commercial   C   Retail and Service Uses  
South            Suburban Commercial   C                Apartment Complex  
East           Suburban Commercial &   C    Apartment Complex    
  Auto-Urban Multi-Family 
West          Suburban Commercial   C   Undeveloped  
  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 
 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance?
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and Character (FLUP) Yes 
CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  Yes 

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should 
be consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public 
service capacities 

Yes 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks 
Ordinance 

Yes 

CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 



   
10/02/14 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 5 

 
 
 
Future Land Use and Character Plan (FLUP) (CP Map 3.1) 
The Land Use and Character Map which identifies this area as Suburban Commercial.  This is 
appropriate for office, retail and service uses adjacent to and abutting residential neighborhood.  It is 
also appropriate in other areas where the community’s image and aesthetic value is to be promoted, 
such as at “gateways” and high-profile corridor locations.   
 
The proposed conditional use permit is for a package store, the retail sales of alcoholic drinks for off-
premise consumption are considered retail in nature. The use of the property is consistent with the 
FLUP as well as compatible with the surrounding non-residential uses in the immediate vicinity. 
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The Thoroughfare Plan identifies FM2305 (West Adams Avenue) as a Major Arterial & Ermine Trail is 
identified as a Collector. The roadway improvements are in place and no issues related to capacity 
are anticipated from the proposed use of the property.  
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
A 6” water line in Ermine Trail is available to serve the water needs to the property. There is a 6” 
sewer line available to the property on the eastern property line.  No impacts to public facilities are 
anticipated.  
 
Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
The Temple Trails Master Plan map identifies a proposed City-Wide Spine trail within FM 2305 (West 
Adams Avenue).  Both FM2305 and Ermine Trail are required to have sidewalks.  Sidewalks are 
partially in place however, the site is currently developed and there are no improvements triggered by 
the proposed conditional use permit. 
 
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS:  Although there are no established development regulations 
specifically for package stores, there are a number of use standards which were identified and 
discussed earlier in this report.  Since the site is developed and no additional facilities are needed, 
staff has not identified any additional development regulation applicable to the requested conditional 
use permit. 
 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE:  Ten properties, represented by eight different owners, were sent notices of the 
public hearing, as required by State law and City Ordinance.  Three of the properties are outside of 
the 200-foot notification boundary.  As of Tuesday September 23, 2014 at 9:00 am, no notices have 
been returned in agreement.  One notice in disagreement, outside of the required 200-foot notification 
boundary has been received by staff. 
 
The newspaper printed notice of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing on August 22, 
2014, in accordance with state law and local ordinance. 
 
 
 



10/02/14 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 5 of 5 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Site and Surrounding Properties Photos 
Zoning and Location Map 
Future Land Use Map 
Utility Map 
Localized Area of the Thoroughfare 
Plan Localized Area of the Trails Plan 
Site Plan / Floor Plan / Elevations 
Notification Map 
Returned Property Owner Responses 
Ordinance 



Site & Surrounding Property Photos 

Site:  Suites 201 & 202 (C) 

Site:  Adjacent 7-11 Convenience Store (C) 



 

 
Site:  Paint Brush Plaza (From Ermine Trail) (C) 

 
 

 
North: Undeveloped and Scattered Commercial and Service Uses (C) 

 



 
West:  Undeveloped (C) 

 
 

 
East:  Apartment Complex (C) 

 
 



 
South:  Apartment Complex (C) 



C

C

S
F

-1

L
I

M
F

-2

X

C

G
R

O
-1

O
-1

S
FA

-3

O
-1

B
lo

ck
: 

B
lo

ck
:1

B
lo

ck
:2

B
lo

ck
:1

4
B

lo
ck

:3

B
lo

ck
:2

4

B
lo

ck
:3

3

B
lo

ck
:2

5

B
lo

ck
:2

7

B
lo

ck
:2

6

B
lo

ck
:2

8

1

2

7

T
R

A
*

6

4
5

8

3

9

18

13

11

16

10

12

15
14

19

17

4A

20

22

21

4C
4B

30

29

23

28

71
3

-H

70
4

-L

69
9

-E

71
4

-A

69
9

-A
69

9
-K

71
3

-D

69
9

-L

69
9

-A

71
3

A
-D

71
4

A
-A

W
 A

D
A

M
S

 A
V

E

A
N

T
E

L
O

P
E

 T
R

L

ERMINE TRL

OLAF DR

GREENVIEW DR

SW H K DODGEN LOOP

WOODBRIDGE BLVD

CHISHOLM TRL

B
U

F
FA

L
O

 T
R

L

E
R

IE
 D

R

K
U

Y
K

E
N

D
A

L
L

 T
R

L

NW H K DODGEN LOOP

PROFESSIONAL DR

DEER TRL

RIVER OAKS CIR

SW H K DODGEN LOOP

SW H K DODGEN LOOP

SW H K DODGEN LOOP

NW H K DODGEN LOOP
10

5

41
0

2

41
0

1

20
2

58
2

0

44
0

4

41
0

1

62
0

1

10
0

57
0

0 58
2

0

56
1

5

49
0

2

15
0

40
0

55
5

0

40
0

44
2

4

57
0

0

9

10
0

56
1

5

35
0

39
0

2

45
5

4

45
0

2
6

23
0

20
7

44
4

4

10

42
2

0

38
0

2

44
2

0

61
6

0
62

1
6

17

38
2

0

43
0

8

43
0

2

62
1

2

41
0

6

38
0

6

30
4

43
1

5

40
0

6

37
0

1

38
0

2

41
10

41
14

47
0

0

39
0

6

43
11

37
0

5

41
0

2

37
1

037
0

9

37
0

7

40
1

0

37
0

6

31
1

41
18

37
0

6

37
0

5

20
1

38
2

0

37
1

0

38
0

9

37
0

9

32
0

38
11

38
0

7

42
0

6

40
1

4

37
0

2
41

2
6

38
1

5

38
0

3

31
4

38
1

3

38
1

0
42

0
1

20
8

38
1

2

30
6

38
1

4

31
0

31
6

31
2

42
2

1
37

1
2

44
0

6
37

0
6

44
0

9
42

1
0

39
1

0

43
0

2

21
5

43
0

4

40
0

2

31
4

41
6

38
1

0

42
0

43
0

6

31
0

42
0

2
55

1
9

39
1

0

41
3

1

43
1

4

39
0

339
0

2

38
0

5

39
1

4
41

2
2

43
1

0

21
2

43
1

8

30
2 40

1
3

38
0

6
40

0
9 40

1
0

39
0

2

40
0

6

36
0

9

40
0

9

41
13

39
1

8

39
0

7

41
2

9
42

2
2

39
2

3

39
1

8
41

17

44
0

2

39
0

6

39
11

31
6

40
0

5

39
2

1

41
0

5
40

0
1

40
0

2

38
1

4

40
0

5

38
11

41
2

1

51
0

1

41
0

1

39
1

8
38

0
5

39
1

7
41

2
5

42
1

8

39
1

0
38

1
8

39
0

2
39

1
4

39
0

6

40
0

2
40

0
6

39
1

3 39
0

5

30
7

38
0

7

39
1

4
43

1
4

39
0

9

39
0

1

35
0

40
0

9

39
0

6

39
2

7

41
17

39
1

7

42
1

7

40
11

37
0

4

38
11

39
0

2

40
0

3
39

1
9

40
0

7

40
2

0

39
11

39
0

3
39

1
5

39
0

7

40
0

55
1

5

10

38
0

6

37
0

2

36
1

0

62
6

0

36
1

0

Z
-F

Y
-1

4-
36

Z
o

ni
n

g 
&

 L
o

ca
tio

n
 M

ap
C

on
di

tio
n

al
 U

se
 P

e
rm

it 
(P

a
ck

ag
e

 S
to

re
)

43
11

 W
. A

d
am

s 
A

ve
S

u
ite

 2
0

1

¬ «1

G
IS

 p
ro

d
uc

ts
 a

re
 fo

r 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

na
l p

ur
p

os
es

 a
n

d 
m

ay
 n

o
t h

av
e 

b
ee

n 
p

re
p

ar
e

d 
fo

r 
o

r 
b

e 
su

ita
b

le
 fo

r 
le

ga
l, 

e
ng

in
ee

rin
g

, o
r 

su
rv

ey
in

g 
p

ur
p

os
es

.  
T

h
ey

 
do

 n
o

t r
e

pr
e

se
nt

 a
n

 o
n

-t
h

e-
g

ro
u

n
d 

su
rv

e
y 

an
d

 
re

p
re

se
n

t o
nl

y 
th

e
 a

p
pr

o
xi

m
a

te
 r

el
at

iv
e

 lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

bo
un

da
ri

es
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 f
ea

tu
re

s.μ
12

3
4

12
3

4-
A

1

C
as

e
Z

o
ni

n
g

S
ub

di
vi

si
o

n

O
ut

b
lo

ck
 N

um
b

er
B

lo
ck

 N
um

be
r

Lo
t 

N
um

b
er

0
20

0
40

0

F
ee

t

8/
2

5
/2

0
1

4
C

ity
 o

f 
Te

m
p

le
 G

IS
m

b
a

ke
r



W
 A

D
A

M
S

 A
V

E

ERMINE TRL

SW H K DODGEN LOOP

OLAF DR

A
N

T
E

L
O

P
E

 T
R

L
K

U
Y

K
E

N
D

A
L

L
 T

R
L

CHISHOLM TRL

SW H K DODGEN LOOP SW H K DODGEN LOOP

SW H K DODGEN LOOP

μ

Z
-F

Y
-1

4-
36

F
u

tu
re

 L
a

nd
 U

se
 M

a
p

C
on

di
tio

n
al

 U
se

 P
e

rm
it 

(P
a

ck
ag

e
 S

to
re

)
43

11
 W

. A
d

am
s 

A
ve

S
u

ite
 2

0
1

G
IS

 p
ro

d
uc

ts
 a

re
 fo

r 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

na
l p

ur
p

os
es

 
an

d 
m

a
y 

n
ot

 h
a

ve
 b

e
en

 p
re

pa
re

d
 fo

r 
or

 
be

 s
ui

ta
b

le
 f

or
 le

g
al

, e
ng

in
e

er
in

g
, o

r 
su

rv
e

yi
ng

 
pu

rp
o

se
s.

T
h

e
y 

do
 n

o
t r

e
pr

e
se

nt
 a

n
 

on
-t

h
e-

g
ro

u
n

d 
su

rv
e

y 
an

d
 r

e
pr

e
se

nt
 o

n
ly

 
th

e 
a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
e

 r
e

la
tiv

e 
lo

ca
tio

n
 

of
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

bo
un

da
ri

es
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 f
ea

tu
re

s.

F
u

tu
re

 L
a

n
d

 U
se

N
ei

gh
b

or
ho

o
d 

C
on

se
rv

a
tio

n

E
st

a
te

 R
e

si
d

en
tia

l

S
ub

u
rb

an
 R

e
si

d
e

nt
ia

l

A
ut

o-
U

rb
an

 R
es

id
e

nt
ia

l

A
ut

o-
U

rb
an

 M
u

lti
-F

a
m

ily

A
ut

o-
U

rb
an

 M
ix

ed
 U

se

A
ut

o-
U

rb
an

 C
om

m
e

rc
ia

l

S
ub

u
rb

an
 C

o
m

m
er

ci
a

l

U
rb

an
 C

e
n

te
r

Te
m

pl
e

 M
ed

ic
a

l E
d

u
ca

tio
n 

D
is

tr
ic

t

In
du

st
ri

al

B
us

in
e

ss
 P

a
rk

P
ub

lic
 I

ns
tit

u
tio

na
l

P
ar

ks
 &

 O
p

e
n 

S
p

ac
e

A
gr

ic
u

ltu
ra

l/R
u

ra
l

0
1

0
0

2
0

0
5

0
F

e
e

t

8/
2

5
/2

0
1

4
C

ity
 o

f 
Te

m
p

le
 G

IS



G

G

G
G

6"

10
"

6"

6"

6"

12
"

8"

8
"

ERMIN
E TRL

W
 A

D
A

M
S

 A
V

E

OLAF DR

Z
-F

Y
-1

4-
36

U
til

ity
 M

ap
C

on
di

tio
n

al
 U

se
 P

e
rm

it 
(P

a
ck

ag
e

 S
to

re
)

43
11

 W
. A

d
am

s 
A

ve
S

u
ite

 2
0

1

G
IS

 p
ro

d
uc

ts
 a

re
 fo

r 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

na
l p

ur
p

os
es

 a
n

d 
m

ay
 n

o
t h

av
e 

b
ee

n 
p

re
p

ar
e

d 
fo

r 
o

r 
b

e 
su

ita
b

le
 fo

r 
le

ga
l, 

e
ng

in
ee

rin
g

, o
r 

su
rv

ey
in

g 
p

ur
p

os
es

.  
T

h
ey

 
do

 n
o

t r
e

pr
e

se
nt

 a
n

 o
n

-t
h

e-
g

ro
u

n
d 

su
rv

e
y 

an
d

 
re

p
re

se
n

t o
nl

y 
th

e
 a

p
pr

o
xi

m
a

te
 r

el
at

iv
e

 lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

bo
un

da
ri

es
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 f
ea

tu
re

s.μ
C

as
e

G
F

ir
e 

H
yd

ra
n

t

S
ew

er
 L

in
e

W
at

er
 L

in
e

E
xp

re
ss

w
ay

M
a

jo
r 

A
rt

e
ria

l

P
ro

po
se

d
 M

a
jo

r 
A

rt
er

ia
l

P
ro

po
se

d
 K

-T
U

T
S

M
in

or
 A

rt
e

ria
l

P
ro

po
se

d
 M

in
o

r 
A

rt
er

ia
l

C
ol

le
ct

o
r

C
on

ce
p

tu
a

l C
ol

le
ct

o
r

0
1

0
0

2
0

0
5

0

F
e

e
t

8/
2

5
/2

0
1

4
C

ity
 o

f 
Te

m
p

le
 G

IS



Localized Area of the Thoroughfare Plan 

 

Map Legend (Map not to scale) 

 



Localized Area of the Trails Plan 

 

Map Legend (Map not to scale) 

 









C

C

S
F

-1

M
F

-2

L
I

B
lo

ck
: 

B
lo

ck
:1

B
lo

ck
:2

4
1

8

9

2

13

10
12

11

14

7

6

69
9

-E
69

9
-A

W
 A

D
A

M
S

 A
V

E

ERMINE TRL

OLAF DR

SW H K DODGEN LOOP

A
N

T
E

L
O

P
E

 T
R

L

SW H K DODGEN LOOP

SW H K DODGEN LOOP

41
0

1

58
2

0

41
0

1

57
0

0

41
0

2

57
0

0

45
0

2

15
0

10

42
2

0

43
0

8

41
0

6

43
1

5

40
0

6

43
11

41
0

2

43
0

2

40
1

0

41
10

43
0

4

40
1

4

44
0

4

40
0

2

44
0

4

41
14

40
0

9

44
0

4

41
0

1
40

0
5

Z
-F

Y
-1

4-
36

N
ot

ifi
ca

tio
n

 M
ap

C
on

di
tio

n
al

 U
se

 P
e

rm
it 

(P
a

ck
ag

e
 S

to
re

)
43

11
 W

. A
d

am
s 

A
ve

S
u

ite
 2

0
1

¬ «1

G
IS

 p
ro

d
uc

ts
 a

re
 fo

r 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

na
l p

ur
p

os
es

 a
n

d 
m

ay
 n

o
t h

av
e 

b
ee

n 
p

re
p

ar
e

d 
fo

r 
o

r 
b

e 
su

ita
b

le
 fo

r 
le

ga
l, 

e
ng

in
ee

rin
g

, o
r 

su
rv

ey
in

g 
p

ur
p

os
es

.  
T

h
ey

 
do

 n
o

t r
e

pr
e

se
nt

 a
n

 o
n

-t
h

e-
g

ro
u

n
d 

su
rv

e
y 

an
d

 
re

p
re

se
n

t o
nl

y 
th

e
 a

p
pr

o
xi

m
a

te
 r

el
at

iv
e

 lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

bo
un

da
ri

es
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 f
ea

tu
re

s.μ
12

3
4

12
3

4-
A

1

C
as

e

20
0'

 B
u

ffe
r

Z
o

ni
n

g

S
ub

di
vi

si
o

n

O
ut

b
lo

ck
 N

um
b

er
B

lo
ck

 N
um

be
r

Lo
t 

N
um

b
er

0
10

0
20

0

F
ee

t

8/
2

5
/2

0
1

4
C

ity
 o

f 
Te

m
p

le
 G

IS
m

b
a

ke
r





 
 ORDINANCE NO.________________ 

(Z-FY-14-36) 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW A 
PACKAGE STORE FOR THE RETAIL SALES OF ALCOHOLIC 
BEVERAGES WITH OFF-PREMISE CONSUMPTION, ON LOT 2, BLOCK 1, 
WESTERN HILLS COMMERCIAL PHASE III, LOCATED IN SUITE 201 AT 
4311 WEST ADAMS AVENUE; DECLARING FINDINGS OF FACT; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Whereas, the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance of the City of Temple, Texas, provides 

for the issuance of conditional use permits under certain conditions and authorizes the City 
Council to impose such developmental standards and safeguards as the conditions and locations 
indicate to be important to the welfare or protection of adjacent property and for the protection of 
adjacent property from excessive noise, vibration, dust, dirt, smoke, fumes, gas, odor, explosion, 
glare, offensive view or other undesirable or hazardous conditions, and for the establishment of 
conditions of operation, time limits, location, arrangement and construction for any use for which 
a permit is authorized;  
 

Whereas, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Temple, Texas, after due 
consideration of the conditions, operation and location of property described as lot 2, block 1, 
Western Hills Commercial Phase III, located in Suite 201 at 4311 West Adams Avenue, 
recommends that the City Council approve the application for this Conditional Use Permit for 
retail sales of alcoholic beverages with off-premise consumption; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, after public notice as required 
by law, has at a public hearing, carefully considered all the evidence submitted by the applicant 
concerning the proposed plans for operation of said establishment and has heard the comments 
and evidence presented by all persons supporting or opposing this application at said public 
hearing, and after examining the conditions, operation and the location of said establishment, 
finds that the proposed use of the premises substantially complies with the comprehensive plan 
and the area plan adopted by the City Council. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council approves a Conditional Use Permit for retail sales of alcoholic 
beverages with off-premise consumption on lot 2, block 1, Western Hills Commercial Phase III, 
located in Suite 201 at 4311 West Adams Avenue, more fully described in Exhibit A, attached 
hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
 
 
 

 
 

1 



 
 
 
Part 2: The owner/applicant, his employees, lessees, agents or representatives, 

hereinafter called "permittee" shall comply with the following developmental standards and 
conditions of operation: 
 

A. knowledge and compliance with the provisions of Chapter 4 of the City Code in 
its entirety is required by reference; 

B. outdoor lighting is reviewed during the Construction Plan phase of review.  Any 
new lighting not already in-place would be required to comply with UDC Section 
6.7.5k, the I-35 Overlay standards as well as current electrical and building code 
requirements; 

C. parking is in-place and was calculated on the overall use of the development for 
retail and services uses. Retail and service uses are calculated at a minimum 1 
space per 250 square feet of floor area. Additional parking due to the nature of the 
package store was not required and not anticipated as a result of the presence of 
the package store; 

D. window signs are prohibited. Staff anticipates compliance to the prohibition of 
window signs; and 

E. Lighted signs must be turned off at closing time.  Staff anticipates compliance to 
the lighted signs being turned off at closing time. 

 
Part 3: The Director of Planning is hereby directed to make the necessary changes to the 

City Zoning Map accordingly. 
 

Part 4: The declarations, determinations and findings declared, made and found in the 
preamble of this ordinance are hereby adopted, restated and made a part of the operative 
provisions hereof. 
 

Part 5: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of 
the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the 
same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of 
any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 

 
Part 6: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 

accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is accordingly 
so ordained. 
 

Part 7: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 2nd day of 
October, 2014. 
 

 
 

2 



PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 16th day of October, 2014. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 

_______________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________   ______________________________ 
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 

 
 3 



CITY COUNCIL ITEM MEMORANDUM 

10/02/14 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 6 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:   

Mark Baker, Planner 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-14-37: Consider an ordinance 
to take action on a rezoning from Urban Estate District (UE) to Single Family-One District (SF-1) on 
61.137 +/- acres, being a tract of land in the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract No. 5, Bell County, 
Texas, located at 5105 Charter Oak Drive. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At its September 15, 2014 meeting, 
the Planning & Zoning Commission voted 3 in favor to 6 against staff’s recommendation to approve, 
resulting in a recommendation of denial of the requested rezone from “UE” to “SF-1”. 

Per UDC Section 2.4.4 – “A minimum 75 percent vote of all the members of the City Council is 
required to overrule a recommendation by the Planning & Zoning Commission that a proposed 
Zoning District Map Amendment be denied.”  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  The applicant has requested to table the rezone until November 6, 
2014 to allow time for receipt and review of their pending traffic impact analysis.  Staff recommends 
approval of this request. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  While the proposed SF-1 zoning is not consistent with current FLUP designation 
of Agriculture / Rural, based on the following discussion, staff still recommends approval for a rezone 
from UE to SF-1 for the following reasons: 

1. The requested rezone is consistent with the anticipated growth of the area which would
support higher density residential development of the surrounding area which is consistent with
the Suburban Ranch designation of the FLUP;

2. The request is consistent with SF-1 zoning established in the immediate area, across from
Charter Oak Drive;

3. The request is in partial compliance with the Thoroughfare Plan; and
4. Public facilities are available to serve the subject property.

During the September 15, 2014 Planning & Zoning Commission meeting, public discussion centered 
on the following: 

1. Increased traffic,
2. Quality of life,
3. Impacts to historic resources (e.g. cemetery, structures),



10/02/14 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 6 

4. Traffic enforcement,
5. Public safety and,
6. Density

At this point public discussion, particularly related to traffic has prompted staff to take a few steps 
back and suggest to the applicant that a traffic impact analysis (TIA) should be undertaken sooner 
than later.  The TIA will address projected traffic volumes as a result of the proposed 184 lots. The 
analysis would also include recommendations for turning lanes as well as for potential signalization of 
intersections. The analysis should also discuss, compare and contrast the potential densities resulting 
from the existing Urban Estate (UE) with the proposed Single-Family-1 (SF-1) zoning districts.  The 
time needed to prepare a TIA would also allow the applicant an opportunity to meet with the area 
residents through a focused neighborhood meeting.  Postponing the October 2nd public hearing to a 
future date would allow time for this to be accomplished.   

According to the City of Temple Comprehensive Plan / FLUP, the subject property, being a total 
61.137 +/- acres (Exhibit A), is within the Agricultural/Rural designation.  In August 1999, per 
Ordinance 1999-2651, a City initiated rezoning occurred from General Retail (GR) to the current 
Urban Estate (UE). 

Although the subject property as SF-1 is anticipated to be developed with detached single-family 
residences, there are a number of uses that are permitted by right.  Those uses include but are not 
limited to: 

Residential uses Nonresidential uses 
Family or Group Home Farm or Ranch 
Industrialized Housing  Place of Worship 

Fire Station 

Prohibited uses include HUD-Code manufactured homes and land lease communities, duplexes and 
apartments. All commercial and industrial uses are prohibited, except these uses allowed by an 
approved conditional use permit (temporary asphalt concrete batching plants, a petroleum or gas well 
or a cemetery, crematory or mausoleum). 

SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: The following table provides the direction from the 
property, Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) designation, existing zoning and current land uses: 

Direction FLUP Zoning Current Land Use 

Site Agriculture/ Rural &    UE  Undeveloped 
North            Suburban Residential GR, UE, SF-1 & MH  Scattered SF Uses  
South            Suburban Commercial LI, GR           BNSF Railroad, I-35, scattered 

Commercial & Industrial Uses  
East Agriculture/Rural  UE, GR Scattered SF Uses on Acreage 
West          Agriculture/Rural GR, ETJ Undeveloped 



10/02/14 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 6 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance?
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and Character (FLUP) Partial 
CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  Partial 

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should 
be consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public 
service capacities 

Yes 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks 
Ordinance 

Yes 

CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 

Future Land Use and Character Plan (FLUP) (CP Map 3.1) 
The applicant proposes 61.137 +/- acres for single-family residential development. According to the 
Comprehensive Plan, “The Agricultural/Rural designation is intended for those areas within the City 
limits that do not yet have adequate public facilities and services and therefore, may have on-site 
utilities.  This designation is also meant to protect areas in active farm and/or ranch use.” For 
additional discussion, see availability of Public Facilities section of this report.  The proposed rezone 
to SF-1 is not consistent with the Agricultural/Rural designation.  While staff analysis places a 
significant weight on consistency to the FLUP, surrounding uses, existing zoning and anticipated 
development of the subject property is significantly considered during the analysis.  In this case, while 
the proposed rezone from UE to SF-1 proposes a higher density of residential development, it is 
consistent with the anticipated growth of the surrounding area which would be supported by the 
Suburban Residential FLUP designation.  The Suburban Residential designation is established 
immediately to the north across Charter Oak Drive and it would be expected the Suburban 
Residential FLUP designation would be expanded to accommodate future growth.  

Initially, the area north of Charter Oak was platted as the Riverside Park Addition subdivision in 1952 
while in unincorporated Bell County. This area was later part of land acquisition for the water 
treatment plant in the City in 1999.  The remaining platted lots represent the only SF-1 zoned lots in 
the immediate area. Staff has identified that these lots range from 8,364 square feet to over one acre 
in size.  

Under the current UE zoning, with a minimum 22,500 square footage per lot, staff has estimated that 
approximately 90 to 100 homes can be constructed under the current “UE” zoning.  The number of 
homes takes into account includes a deduction of land area for right-of-way but does not include land 
deducted for parkland or other tracts for drainage.  

On the other hand, under the proposed SF-1, lots are required to have a minimum 7,500 square feet. 
In anticipation of the SF-1 zoning by the property owner, staff has met on a preliminary basis with the 
applicant and been provided with a draft of the Preliminary Master Plat (attached) containing 184 lots. 
The lots range from 8,866 square feet to 32,585 square feet in area. The plat has not been formally  



10/02/14 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 6 

submitted for review or has been evaluated by the Design Review Committee.  At some point in the 
future, it can be anticipated that the plat will be submitted and brought forward to the Planning & 
Zoning Commission for review and consideration. 

In conclusion, while the proposed rezone is not consistent with the FLUP, the proposal is consistent 
with adjacent FLUP designation and the anticipated growth and development of the area.  If the City 
Council approves the rezone, the FLUP will need to be updated. 

Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The property has frontage along Charter Oak Drive. The Thoroughfare Plan (see attached) identifies 
Charter Oak Drive as a proposed minor arterial. 

Based on a factor of 9.52 total trips per day per residential dwelling, it can be anticipated that an 
additional 1,752 trips per day will be introduced to Charter Oak Drive.   

The factor is based on an industry-accepted factor and modified by calculations derived from the 
Institute of Traffic Engineers Trip Generation Manual 9th Edition for detached single-family homes. 
The resulting projected figure is meant to provide general insight to the traffic volume and is not 
meant to be construed as part of a traffic impact analysis by staff.  While a detailed traffic impact 
analysis is not required, staff understands from the applicant that an analysis will be prepared for this 
development.   

According to the Comprehensive Plan, Functional Classification Criteria – Table 5A.1, a resulting 
traffic volume per day (VPD) of 5,000 to 30,000 receives a roadway classification of minor arterial. 
The resulting VPD is consistent with the roadway classification of Charter Oak Drive     

It should be further noted that while the traffic counts shown are for Charter Oak Drive, the counts 
were taken approximately 1.6 miles northeast of the site at Charter Oak Drive and Profit Place. 
Furthermore the counts were taken in a direction leading away from the project site.  There is no data 
available on Charter Oak Drive and the immediate project site. 

Additional right-of-way dedications and improvements can be anticipated and triggered with the 
platting process. No Transportation Capital Improvement Plan (TCIP) projects are listed within the 
immediate area funded through 2019.  Per UDC Sec. 8.5.1(Perimeter Streets), the developer will be 
responsible at the platting stage for right-of-way dedication for adjacent street improvements. 

In the following Infrastructure Adequacy Table, the existing and UDC required right-of-way conditions 
for Charter Oak Drive as well as existing traffic count information collected by the City at a site closest 
to the project site are shown. 



10/02/14 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 5 of 6 

Based on this discussion and the above table, it can be understood that the proposed development 
regardless of the current or proposed density is anticipated to increase traffic.  It should be noted that 
according to the accident records from the City of Temple Police Department, there were 21 reported 
auto accidents alone between January 1, 2010 and Sept 16, 2014 in the 4500 to the 5800 block of 
Charter Oak Drive. This is in the immediate area of the project site frontage and equates 
approximately 0.37 accidents per month or about 1 accident per every 3 months (quarter of a year).   

In conclusion, While Charter Oak Drive is in-place; it is substandard to meet the 184 anticipated 
residential lots and the additional traffic generation.  Improvements to Charter Oak Drive will result 
from future platting however measures should be taken as early as possible to address the 
anticipated impacts.  There are no TCIP projects listed for the foreseeable future.   

Further, the review of the subdivision impacts such as resulting traffic, infrastructure and the review of 
residential density will be done at the time of subdivision platting, proceeding with the rezone may be 
premature without the benefit and consideration of a prepared TIA.  Since the Planning & Zoning 
Commission’s review, staff has advised the applicant to take a step back and proceed with the TIA 
and take into account the traffic volumes for both the UE and the SF-1 densities.  In addition, staff has 
suggested that the applicant meet with the neighborhood community to discuss options and to work 
out differences which may identify a compromise.  At that point, the applicant could come back to City 
Council with some traffic information which could be shared publically as well as other options that 
may reduce overall impacts to an acceptable level.   

Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
While water is available through an 18” waterline that crosses the property and an 8” water line in 
Charter Oak Drive, currently there is no sewer line immediately available to the subject property.  The 
nearest line is approximately 6,000 feet to the north east.  Due to the size of the proposed lots, septic 
systems would not be permitted and sewer line extension will be necessary.  While there are several 
agreements to extend the sewer line in process between the property owner and the City of Temple 
and the extension is currently listed on the CIP project list, the agreement(s) however, have not been 
finalized. Issues related to the sewer line extension and the corresponding agreements will be 
addressed during the preliminary plat process. 

5,000 - 30,000 Vehicles Per Day (T-Fare Sec. 5A-1)         Minor Arterial
Current ROW Width / Pavement Width 54' +/-   ROW Width    32' +/- Pavement Width
UDC Required ROW Width / Pavment Width 70'   ROW Width            49'   Pavement Width
Dedication Anticipated (1/2 Street Balance) 8 Feet
Daily Traffic Count 2013  (3300 Blk of Charter Oak) 7742 Daily Trips
Daily Traffic Count 2014  (3300 Blk of Charter Oak) 7723 Daily Trips
Projected Daily Traffic Volume (184 Lots) (*) 1752 Daily Trips

(*) Projected daily traffic generated is based on an average of 9.52 daily trips per residence & is 
based on factors from the Institute of Traffic Engineers Trip Generation Manual 9th Ed.

Infrastructure Adequacy Table



10/02/14 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 6 of 6 

Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
According to the Trails Master Plan Map, a City-Wide Spine Trail has been identified along Charter 
Oak Drive. Charter Oak Drive as a minor arterial requires minimum 6’ sidewalks. Trails and sidewalks 
will be addressed at the platting stage of review. 

DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: Standard residential setbacks in the SF-1 district are: 

Min Lot Size  7,500 S.F   
Min Lot Width 60’  
Min Lot Depth 100’ 
Front  25’  
Side           6’ Min (10% of lot width) 
Side (corner)     15’ 
Rear 10’ 

Per UDC Section 8.2.3, sidewalks are required on both sides of the road for arterial streets. The 
sidewalk will be installed at the time of development, and will be noted on the future plat.   

A residential access drive is prohibited onto arterial streets (UDC Section 7.2.4A). 

PUBLIC NOTICE: Thirteen notices, for the public hearing were sent out to property owners within 
200-feet of the subject property as required by State law and City Ordinance. As of Tuesday 
September 23, 2014 at 9:00 AM, three notices for disapproval and two notices for approval have 
been received. Staff has received several phone calls from residents outside of the notification area 
with concerns about increased traffic on Charter Oak Drive and overall changes to quality of life. 

The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on September 4, 2014, in accordance with state 
law and local ordinance. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Table Request (email dated 09-24-2014)
Site and Surrounding Property Photos Land 
Title Survey 
(Exhibit A) 
Aerial Map 
Zoning and Location Map 
Future Land Use and Character Map    
Localized area of the Thoroughfare Plan 
Localized area of the Trails Plan 
Utility Map 
Draft Preliminary Master Plat Notification Map 
Returned Adjacent Property Notices 
Ordinance  





Site & Surrounding Property Photos 

Site:  Undeveloped (UE) 

Site:  Undeveloped (Looking Across Charter Oak & Charter Oak Loop (UE) 



East:  Scattered SF Uses on Acreage (UE & GR) 

West:  Undeveloped (Google Earth Image)(GR & ETJ) 



North: Scattered SF Residences on Acreage (UE, GR, SF-1 & MH)

North: (Looking from Charter Oak Loop) Scattered SF Uses  
(UE, GR, SF-1 & MH)



North: (Aerial) Scattered SF Uses (GR, UE, SF-1 & MH)

South:  (Looking across Site) BNSF Railroad, I-35 & Scattered Commercial &
Industrial Uses (LI, GR) 



South:  (Aerial) BNSF Railroad, I-35 & Scattered Commercial and Industrial Uses 
(LI, GR)  





2

1

5

6

3

8

9

4

10

CHARTER O
AK DR

S IN
TERSTA

TE 3
5

S G
ENERAL 

BRUCE D
R

PARKSIDE DR

CRYER LN

D
U

S
T

Y
 L

N

S IN
TERSTA

TE 3
5

Z-FY-14-37 Aerial Map 5105 Charter Oak Dr.

¬«1

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

μ
1234

1234-A

1

Case

Lot Number

0 350 700

Feet

9/5/2014
City of Temple GIS
mbaker





S IN
TERSTA

TE 3
5

CHARTER O
AK DR

S G
ENERAL 

BRUCE D
R

PA
R

K
S

ID
E

 D
R

CRYER LN

DUSTY LN

S IN
TERSTA

TE 3
5

μ

Z-FY-14-37 Future Land Use Map 5105 Charter Oak Dr.

GIS products are for informational purposes 
and may not have been prepared for or 
be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying 
purposes.They do not represent an 
on-the-ground survey and represent only 
the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

Future Land Use

Neighborhood Conservation

Estate Residential

Suburban Residential

Auto-Urban Residential

Auto-Urban Multi-Family

Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Commercial

Suburban Commercial

Urban Center

Temple Medical Education District

Industrial

Business Park

Public Institutional

Parks & Open Space

Agricultural/Rural

010020050
Feet

8/18/2014
City of Temple GIS



Localized Area of the Thoroughfare Plan 

 

Map Legend (Map not to scale) 

 



Localized Area of the Trails Plan 

 

Map Legend (Map not to scale) 

 



G

G

GG

G

G

18"

8"

36"

30
"

12"

8"

8"

18
"

CHARTER O
AK DR

CRYER LN

PA
R

K
S

ID
E

 D
R

S IN
TERSTA

TE 3
5

S G
ENERAL 

BRUCE D
R

D
U

S
T

Y
 L

N

Z-FY-14-37 Utility Map 5105 Charter Oak Dr.

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

μ
Case

G Fire Hydrant

Sewer Line

Water Line

Expressway

Major Arterial

Proposed Major Arterial

Proposed K-TUTS

Minor Arterial

Proposed Minor Arterial

Collector

Conceptual Collector

0 300 600150

Feet
8/18/2014
City of Temple GIS





LI

UE

GR

GR

GR

SF-1

MH
AG SF-1

SF-1

SF-1

LI

SF-1

Block: 

Block:1

Block:6

Block:3Block:4

Block:5

Block:7

Block:2

1

2
5

6
3

8
9

4

10

486-F

486-F

486-I

496-A
496-D

496-B
496-C

495-C

493-A
492-A

490-A

489-D
489-B

488-A500-A

500-A

502-B
502-A

504-A

503-A
506-B

486-E

487-A

487-H

487-K

501-A
495-B

489-A

487-A

505-B

487-G

501-A

500-B

500-A

489A-D

489B-D

501-2G

501-2A

501-6B

501-1E

501-1A

501-1H
501-1F

500C-A

500C-A

1119A-A

S IN
TERSTA

TE 3
5

CHARTER O
AK DR

S G
ENERAL 

BRUCE D
R

PARKSIDE DR

S IN
TERSTA

TE 3
5

7068

5105

5105

7095

7355

6710

5417

7700 7455 7365

7085

7654

5702

7560

5011

4601

7454

5110

7376

7910

5502

4917

5610

5005

6655

5009

8110

4905

7501

5020

4820

48254520

5019

7565

4820

5511

4748

4901

49235702

7202

7311

6753

5301

7401

5012

6815
4910 4905

4919

4915

5314

4916

7115

4911

7318

5010

7125

5018

5015

7501

4711

6607

7501

7201

5302

5320

4803
4820

7455

Z-FY-14-37 Notification Map
UE  to SF-1

5105 Charter Oak Dr.

¬«1

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

μ
1234

1234-A

1

Case

200' Buffer

Zoning

Subdivision

Outblock Number Block Number

Lot Number

0 350 700

Feet

9/5/2014
City of Temple GIS
mbaker













COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

10/02/14 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 5 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:   

Brian Chandler, Director of Planning 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  PUBLIC HEARING – Z-FY-14-38 – Consider adopting an ordinance 
authorizing a zoning change from TMED (T5-c) to PD-T5-c (Planned Development District-TMED T5-
c) on a portion of Lots 2 and 3, Block 1, Scott and White Properties Subdivision, located on the
southwest corner of Scott Boulevard and South 31st Street. 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At their September 15, 2014 
meeting, P&Z recommended unanimous approval. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Planned Development with the 
following exceptions from Sec. 6.3 (TMED) of the Unified Development Code: 

1. Exceeds 12’ maximum front setback (Sec. 6.3.5.B.)
2. 80 percent impervious cover limitation (Sec. 6.3.5.B.) to allow:

a. Lot 1: 85.1% impervious cover
b. Lot 2: 87.3% impervious cover

i. Note: Lot 3 is under the maximum with 75.1% impervious cover
3. Less than the 2-story building height requirements (Sec. 6.3.5.D.)
4. Allowing a commercial surface parking lot (Sec. 6.3.6.D. prohibits commercial surface parking

lots in T5-c)
5. A drive-through would be permitted for a proposed restaurant (6.3.6.D. prohibits drive-through

restaurants in T5-c)
6. 1 tree per 12 parking spaces (Sec. 6.3.10.D. requires 1 tree per 10 parking spaces)
7. 5 foot sidewalk with no 6 foot planting strip between curb and sidewalk to allow for the

preservation of an existing sidewalk along Scott Boulevard. (Sec. 6.3.11.B.5.)
8. 8 foot sidewalk with no 6 foot planting strip between curb and sidewalk to allow for the

preservation of an existing sidewalk along South 31st Street (Sec. 6.3.11.D.2.)
9. 50 foot maximum building façade length without articulation (Sec. 6.3.13.D. requires a 5-foot

building offset at least every 50 feet of façade length)
10. Two 8 foot x 9 foot freestanding single-tenant monument signs and two 12 foot x 10 foot

multitenant monument signs (Sec. 6.3.16.C)

The recommendation for approval is also conditioned on the applicant providing the following: 



10/02/14 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 5 

1. Street lighting consistent with the TMED lamp standards (lighting found along South 1st and
South 5th Streets adjacent to Temple College)

2. Pedestrian connections from the South 31st Street and Scott Boulevard sidewalks to the retail
development

ITEM SUMMARY:  The property is currently zoned TMED T5-c, which is a zoning district is intended 
to create “higher-density, mixed use buildings that accommodate retail, offices, row houses and 
apartments.  It has a tight network of streets with wide sidewalks, rhythmic street tree planting and 
buildings set close to sidewalks.” 

The proposed project would be characterized as “horizontal mixed use” as opposed to the “vertical 
mixed use” envisioned by the T5-c District, since the retail and proposed multi-family uses would be 
segregated on separate lots.  However, the Future Land Use Plan designates the property as Auto-
Urban Commercial, with which the proposed development complies.  The City of Temple’s 
Comprehensive Plan, Choices ’08, describes the Auto-Urban Commercial designation as: 

“Auto-Urban Commercial is for the majority of the areas identified for commercial use, 
generally concentrated at intersections versus strip development along the major roads. The 
use of a higher landscape surface area, better landscaping along frontages and around and 
within parking areas, a build-to line (rather than a large front yard setback), and other signage 
and design standards would significantly enhance the appearance of these areas, especially 
as sites redevelop over time.  Similar to the Suburban Commercial district, the minimum site 
area is commonly 10,000 square feet but may be larger for multi-tenant buildings and centers. 
More intensive uses will naturally require larger sites to meet other site standards such as 
parking and on-site circulation.” 

A future phase of multi-family development (shown on the site plan) would require an amendment to 
the Planned Development standards and site plan, which would require P&Z review, followed by City 
Council approval. 

Of the 53 TMED T5-c code provisions within the checklist (see TMED Checklist Attachment), the 
applicant has requested 10 exceptions, the justification for which is primarily based on the following 
factor: 

 Limited space, characterized by a long, narrow strip of land, for the proposed retail

As a result, staff has been working with the applicant/developer of the project to ensure that the 
project meets the TMED T5-c: 1) street frontage requirements for landscaping, screening and lighting 
and 2) masonry requirements for the building.  The applicant has also confirmed his intention to 
landscape the TXDOT right-of-way behind the sidewalk, in addition to the landscaping on the retail 
property. 

Proposed Traffic Signal at S. 31st Street and BS&W Emergency Room Entrances: 
The City of Temple, BS&W and the developer have all been working with TXDOT to have a traffic 
signal eventually installed at this intersection. 



10/02/14 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 5 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT (UDC SEC. 3.4): A Planned development is a flexible overlay zoning 
district designed to respond to unique development proposals, special design considerations and land 
use transitions by allowing evaluation of land use relationships to surrounding areas through 
development plan approval. 

As part of the Planned Development request, a Development Plan (Site Plan) is required for review 
and consideration by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council.  

Development Plan Review Criteria (UDC Sec. 3.4.5): In determining whether to approve, approve 
with conditions or deny a Planned Development application, the Planning & Zoning Commission and 
City Council must consider the following criteria: 

A. The plan complies with all provisions of the Design and Development standards 
manual, the UDC and other ordinances of the City, 

B. The environmental impact of the development relating to the preservation of existing 
natural resources of the surrounding properties and neighborhood is mitigated, 

C. The development is in harmony with the character, use and design of the surrounding 
area, 

D. Safe and efficient vehicular and pedestrian circulation systems are provided, 
E. Off-street parking and loading facilities are designed to ensure that all such spaces are 

useable and are safely and conveniently arranged, and 
F. Streets are designed with sufficient width and suitable grade and location to 

accommodate prospective traffic and to provide access for firefighting and emergency 
equipment to buildings. 

Additional Standards (UDC Sec. 3.4.2C: In approving a Planned Development, the City Council may 
require additional standards deemed necessary to create a reasonable transition to, and protection 
of, adjacent property and public areas, including but not limited to, access and circulations, signs, 
parking, building design, location and height, light, landscaping, property owners associations, open 
space, topography and screening. 

Expiration (UDC Sec. 3.4.7): If no development has occurred on a Planned Development-zoned tract 
or lot within two years of the date of approval, the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council 
may require a new public hearing to evaluate the appropriateness of the previously authorized 
Planned Development approval. 

Design Review Committee:  The Design Review Committee (DRC) reviewed the proposed 
Development Plan at their September 2, 2014 meeting, at which time the following topics were 
discussed: 

 Vehicle access and drive widths to meet Fire Marshall requirements
 Pedestrian access from sidewalk to the development
 Easement widths and locations
 Drainage
 Lighting

All questions by DRC members were adequately addressed.   



10/02/14 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 5 

LAND USE: Some of the uses permitted by right in the T5-c district include, but are not limited to: 
Residential uses Nonresidential uses 
Single-Family (Attached) Assisted Living (with limitations) 
Multi-family (with limitations)  Hospital 

All Retail 
Restaurant (no drive-through) 
On-premise alcohol consumption (with a CUP) 

Prohibited uses include Single-Family (Detached), all industrial and manufacturing uses, fuel sales. 

SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: The following table provides the direction from the 
property, Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) designation, existing zoning and current land uses: 

Direction FLUP Zoning Current Land Use 
Site Auto Urban Commercial    T5-c  Undeveloped 
North            Suburban Commercial T5-c Undeveloped  
South            Auto Urban Commercial GR    Retail  
East TMED  SD-H (TMED)  BS&W Hospital 
West          Auto Urban Commercial T5-c Retirement Community 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance?
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and Character (FLUP) Yes 
CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  Yes 

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should 
be consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public 
service capacities 

Yes 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks 
Ordinance 

Yes 

CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 

Future Land Use and Character Plan (FLUP) (CP Map 3.1) 
The site is designated as Auto-Urban Commercial on the Comprehensive Plan’s FLUP; therefore, the 
proposed development complies with the Plan. As part of the Planned Development, a site 
(development) plan (attached) is required to be submitted and reviewed by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and City Council. 

Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
 Scott Boulevard (Collector) – right-of-way width is 94’, which exceeds the City’s minimum

standards for the classification (55’) 
 South 31st Street (Major Arterial) – right-of-way width varies from 114’ to 125’, which exceeds

the City’s minimum standards for the classification (70’) 



10/02/14 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 5 of 5 

Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Existing 8-inch water and sanitary sewer lines exists in the south right-of-way of Scott Boulevard. 
Existing 6-inch, 8-inch, and 12-inch water lines exist in the west right-of-way of South 31st Water will 
be provided through 8-inch water lines.  Sewer will be provided through 8-inch, 10-inch, and 18-inch 
sanitary sewer lines.  Storm sewer drainage will be carried through 18-inch and 24-inch reinforced 
concrete pipes (RCP).   

Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
According to Parks and Leisure Services, both required sidewalks (on 31st Street and Scott 
Boulevard) will serve the City’s Citywide Trails Master Plan as part of a pedestrian network.  Provided 
the trails / sidewalks meet the TMED requirements, the walks are seen as sufficient in meeting the 
Citywide Trails Master Plan requirements as well. 

DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS in the T5-c district are: 
Min Lot Size  N/A   
Min Lot Width 18 
Min. Front  4’  
Max. Front 12’ 
Impervious Cover 80% max 

PUBLIC NOTICE: 15 notices for the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing were sent out 
to property owners within 200-feet of the subject property.  As of Thursday September 11, 2014 one 
(1) response from neighbors had been returned in favor and one (1) response returned in opposition.   

FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Proposed Site 
Proposed Landscape Plan 
Site and Surrounding Property 
Photos TMED Regulating Plan/
Transect Map Zoning and Location 
Map Notification Map 
Future Land Use Plan map 
Thoroughfare Map 
Utility Map 
TMED Checklist 
Proposed Signage 
DRC Comments 
Neighbor Responses 
Ordinance



Revisions

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 S
TA

TU
S

SP1.1

C
IV

IL
 S

IT
E 

PL
A

NNOTES

31ST STREET

SC
O

TT
 B

LV
D

.

EV
ER

TO
N

 D
R

IV
E

LOT 1
1.275 ACRES

LOT 2
1.675 ACRES

LOT 3
1.303 ACRES

FUTURE
MULTI-FAMILY

FUTURE
MULTI-FAMILY

FUTURE
MULTI-FAMILY

FUTURE

MULTI-F
AMILY

FU
TU

RE
M

U
LT

I-F
A

M
IL

Y

DOG
PARK

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 H

O
TE

L

EX
IS

TI
N

G
B

U
IL

D
IN

G

EXISTING
BUILDING

SH
O

PP
ES

 O
N

TH
E 

H
IL

L
N

EW
 S

IT
E 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T



Revisions

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 S
TA

TU
S

SP1.2

PR
EL

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 L

A
N

D
SC

A
PE

 P
LA

N

SH
O

PP
ES

 O
N

TH
E 

H
IL

L
 N

EW
 S

IT
E 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T

31ST STREET

SC
O

TT
 B

LV
D

.

EV
ER

TO
N

 D
R

IV
E

LOT 1
1.275 ACRES

LOT 2
1.675 ACRES

LOT 3
1.303 ACRES

FUTURE
MULTI-FAMILY

FUTURE
MULTI-FAMILY

FUTURE
MULTI-FAMILY

FUTURE

MULTI-F
AMILY

FU
TU

RE
M

U
LT

I-F
A

M
IL

Y

DOG
PARK

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 H

O
TE

L

EX
IS

TI
N

G
B

U
IL

D
IN

G

EXISTING
BUILDING



9/12/20141

E
xistin

g
 S

ite

E
xistin

g
 S

ite



9/12/20142

E
xistin

g
 S

ite

P
ro

p
erty to

 N
o

rth



9/12/20143

P
ro

p
erty to

 S
o

u
th

P
ro

p
erty to

 E
ast



9/12/20144

P
ro

p
erty to

 W
est

P
ro

p
erty to

 W
est (N

u
rsin

g
 H

o
m

e)





C

2F

SD-H

T5-C

2F

GR

T5-C

T4

O-2

SD-T

GR

C C

C
T5-C

T5-C

C

T5-E

C

T5-C

T5-C

O-1

C

GR

GR

GR

GR
C
GR

C

GR

C

C

SD-H

GRGR

2F S
31

S
T

S
T

W R AVEW T AVE

S
15

T
H

S
T

SCOTT BLVD

S
47

T
H

S
T

EVERTON DR

S
C

O
T

T
&

W
H

IT
E

B
LV

D

SW H K DODGEN LOOP

S
43

R
D

S
T

S
45

TH
ST S

19
T

H
S

T

S
49

TH
ST

S
W

W
E

S
T

L
O

O
P

S
13

T
H

S
T

S
11

T
H

S
T

W P AVE

SW SOUTH LOOP

SW
EAST LOOP

S
39

T
H

S
T

S
33

R
D

S
T

S
41

S
T

S
T

SW NORTH LOOP

S
 3

5T
H

S
T

S
37

T
H

S
T

S
 1

7T
H

S
T

25
T

H
S

TS
51S

T
S

T

W V AVESW UTILITY DR

RAMCON DR

W T AVE

SW H K DODGEN LOOP

S
13

T
H

S
T

S
37

T
H

S
T

SW H K DODGEN LOOP

S
39

T
H

S
T

W V AVE

Z-FY-14-38 TMED T5-C to Planned Development-TMED (PD-T5-C)

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

0 500 1,000

Feet

Case

Subdivisions

Zoning

9/11/2014
City of Temple GIS



C SD-H

GR

T5-C

2F

T4

T5-C

C

GR

C

GR

C

C

SD-H

GR

2F

Block:1

Block: 

Block:3

Block:2

1

3

2

A

4

5

TRA*

6

98

1B

7

1413

540-D

540-E

540-R

540-D

604-O

604-Q

604-E

604-M

673A-E673A-D

604A-L

HOSPITAL
SCOTT AND WHITE

S
31

S
T

S
TS

37
T

H
S

T

SCOTT BLVD

EVERTON DR

S
39

T
H

S
T

SW SOUTH LOOP

SW H K DODGEN LOOP

S
W

E
A

S
T

L
O

O
P

S
W

W
E

S
T

L
O

O
P

SW NORTH LOOP

S
W

 IN
N

E
R

L
O

O
P

RAMCON DR

SW EMERGENCY BLVD

SW H K DODGEN LOOP

2401

2401

2401

1749

2625

2505

1749

2626

2301

1635

2002

2103

1850

2609

1749

2674

2408

1402

1414

2602

2668

2055

702

1420

2420

2102

2701

2609

2302

1348

2065

2024

1616

2708

2002

1901

2067

1949

2703

1508

1102

2302

2018

1520

2608

1002

2045

2411

1704

2615

2217

1821

2221

2105

2106
2110

1821

2221

Z-FY-14-38 TMED T5-C to Planned Development-TMED (PD-T5-C)

¬«1
GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

1234

1234-A

1

Case

200' Buffer

Zoning

Subdivision

Outblock Number Block Number

Lot Number
0 200 400

Feet

8/29/2014
City of Temple GIS
bchandler



S
31

S
T

S
T

S
5T

H
S

T

SW H K DODGEN LOOP

SCOTT BLVD

W R AVE

S
9T

H
S

T

EVERTON DR

AZALEA DR

S
11

T
H

S
T

S
7T

H
S

T

S
15

T
H

S
T

S
37

T
H

S
T

W T AVE

S
C

O
T

T
&

W
H

IT
E

B
LV

D

S
47

T
H

S
T

W V AVE

MARKET LOOP

W U AVE

S
W

W
E

S
T

L
O

O
P

L
O

W
E

S
D

R

SW
SO

UTH
LO

O
P

SW
EAST

LOOP

S
43

R
D

S
T

S
39

T
H

S
T

S
45

TH
ST

W Z AVE

SW NORTH LOOP

S
49

TH
ST

S
 1

9T
H

S
T

COTTONWOOD LN

S
 1

7T
H

S
T

S
13

T
H

S
T

SW UTILITY DR

E
X

C
H

A
N

G
E

P
L

S FRYERS CREEK CIR

RAMCON DR

IRIS CIR

FRYERS CREEK DR

C
A

M
E

L
L

IA
C

IR

S
13

T
H

S
T

W T AVE

SW H K DODGEN LOOP

W V AVE

SW H K DODGEN LOOP

SW H K DODGEN LOOP

S
13

T
H

S
T

Z-FY-14-38 TMED T5-C to Planned Development-TMED (PD-T5-C)

GIS products are for informational purposes 
and may not have been prepared for or 
be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying 
purposes.They do not represent an 
on-the-ground survey and represent only 
the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

Future Land Use

Neighborhood Conservation

Estate Residential

Suburban Residential

Auto-Urban Residential

Auto-Urban Multi-Family

Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Commercial

Suburban Commercial

Urban Center

Temple Medical Education District

Industrial

Business Park

Public Institutional

Parks & Open Space

Agricultural/Rural

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000 2,500250
Feet

9/10/2014
City of Temple GIS



S
31

S
T

S
T

SCOTT BLVD

S
37

T
H

S
T

EVERTON DR

SW SOUTH LOOP

S
39

T
H

S
T

SW H K DODGEN LOOP

S
W

E
A

S
T

L
O

O
PS

W
W

E
S

T
L

O
O

P

SW NORTH LOOP

S
43

R
D

S
T

SW UTILITY DR

S
W

IN
N

E
R

L
O

O
P

RAMCON DR

SW
EMERGENCY BLVD

S
45

T
H

S
T

SW H K DODGEN LOOP

SW H K DODGEN LOOP

Z-FY-14-38

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

Case
Expressway

Major Arterial

Proposed Major Arterial

Proposed K-TUTS

Minor Arterial

Proposed Minor Arterial

Collector

Conceptual Collector

0 500 1,000250

Feet
9/10/2014
City of Temple GIS

TMED T5-C to Planned Development-TMED (PD-T5-C)



G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G G
G

G

G

G

G

G

GG

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G
G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G
G

G
G G

G
G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

10"

12"

8"

6"
8"

6"

10
"

6"

8"

12"

8"

8"10"

6"

12"

8"

18
"

6"

2"

10
"

8"

6"

6"

8"

8"

8"

18"

8"

12
"

8"

2" 12
"

6"

8"

8"

18"

8"

8"

12
"

8"

8"

6"

6"

8"

8"

8"

8"

S
31

S
T

S
T

SCOTT BLVD

S
37

T
H

S
T

EVERTON DR

SW SOUTH LOOP

S
39

T
H

S
T

SW H K DODGEN LOOP

S
W

E
A

S
T

L
O

O
PS

W
W

E
S

T
L

O
O

P

SW NORTH LOOP

S
43

R
D

S
T

SW UTILITY DR

S
W

IN
N

E
R

L
O

O
P

SW
EMERGENCY BLVD

SW H K DODGEN LOOP

SW H K DODGEN LOOP

Z-FY-14-38

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

Case
G Fire Hydrant

Sewer Line

Water Line

0 500 1,000250

Feet
9/10/2014
City of Temple GIS

TMED T5-C to Planned Development-TMED (PD-T5-C)



Code Section Code Standard Yes/No Proposed Standard Reason for not meeting TMED Standard
Does the project meet dimensional and setback requirements? No max 12' need front parking area
Does the project meet building configuration requirements? No 2 stories single story retail, confined site
Is the use allowed in the district per table 6.3.6D? Yes
Does the use carry an “L” designation per table 6.3.6 D? If so, specific use
standards apply. Yes Multi family (at a later date) Requirements will be met at that time
Does the project meet all specific use standards? 6.3.6 E Yes
Is any outdoor storage proposed? Outdoor storage not permitted in TMED.
6.3.6 G No
Outdoor sale and display of commodities not allowed in transect zone or
Special District where such sale is not an allowed use. 6.3.6 H n/a

If permitted, does temporary outdoor display for a sidewalk sale not extend
more than 5’ from front façade and reserves 5’ of pedestrian walkway? 6.3.6 H No
Does the project meet Thoroughfare Standards? 6.3.7 B Yes
Does the project meet Block Perimeter Standards? 6.3.7C (Not applicable to
SD) No 2,000 feet not a full block

Does the project meet access and connectivity standards related to driveway
spacing and connection requirements? 6.3.7 D1 (Not applicable to SD) yes
If project is located in T5 e district on First Street do driveway cuts meet the
minimum requirements? 6.3.7D2 n/a
Does the project meet the minimum parking ratios and parking space
dimensions required? 6.3.8B C yes
Is off street loading proposed? Does location meet requirements? 6.3.8E (Not
applicable to SD) yes, yes
Does parking meet general location and use standards? 6.3.8G yes

Does parking located in T5 e on First Street meet special requirements? 6.3.8H n/a
Is on street parking allowed and in conformance with location and
configuration standards? 6.3.8I

not
allowed

Is location and placement of bike facilities in accordance with standards? 6.3.9
B yes
Are minimum required bicycle racks provided? 6.3.9 B yes
Is the project in a transect zone? If so then all private parking landscape
standards apply 6.3.10A yes
Does project provide minimum site landscaping for transect zones per table
6.3.10B? yes
Are proposed trees selected from approved list and meet tree mix
requirements? 6.3.10C yes
Are parking lot landscaping and screening requirements met? 6.3.10D E No 1 tree per 10 space 1 tree per 12 spaces

Has mechanical equipment been screened according to standards? 6.3.10F Yes
Have waste containers been screened according to standards? 6.3.10G Yes
Have loading docks been screened according to standards? 6.3.10H Yes
Do all proposed fences and walls meet minimum standards? 6.3.10I Additional
standards for: non residential/multifamily 6.3.10J, for single family uses
6.3.10K Yes

Use Standards: UDC 6.3.6

Circulation: UDC 6.3.7

Bike Facilities: UDC 6.3.9

Parking & Loading Standards:
UDC 6.3.8

Private Property Landscape
Standards: UDC 6.3.10



Does the project meet TMED Design Criteria Manual standards for public
frontage? 6.3.11B no
Is curb and gutter provided? 6.3.11B yes
Which frontage type standards are applicable for the street? 6.3.11C D
Does the frontage depth, planting strip, on street parking and sidewalks width
meet requirements set forth in Sec. 6.3.11B5? no 8' sidewalk existing 6' sidewalk
Is the tree type, spacing, location, and placement in accordance with
requirements? 6.3.11D Yes
Has groundcover been provided in planting strip in accordance with
requirements? 6.3.11D.2 Yes
Do public frontage sidewalks must meet construction, connectivity, and
location requirements? 6.3.11D.2 no existing sidewalk, less than 8' wide

Does the public frontage provide the required pedestrian amenities? 6.3.11D.2 yes
Is a Hike and Bike Trail dedication required for implementation of Citywide
Trails Master Plan? 6.3.11G no
Are the proposed trees selected from the approved tree list? 6.3.12.B (See
Temple Drought Tolerant Tree Selection Guide) yes

Is the proposed ground cover from the approved ground cover list? 6.3.12.C yes
Are the proposed shrubs appropriate perennial and evergreen species for the
Central Texas Region? 6.3.12.D yes
Is all landscape installation, maintenance, and irrigation provided per
standards? 6.3.12E yes

Do shrubs and ground cover meet minimum size requirements 6.3.12 E yes
Is lawn grass drought resistant and does it meet installation requirements?
6.3.12E yes
Has an irrigation plan been prepared? 6.4.12E no not yet completed

Do the proposed exterior finish materials meet city material standards? 6.3.13 yes
Do exterior finish materials meet minimum percentage requirements? 6.3.13
B yes
Is the accent material no more than 20 % and is it from the permitted list?
6.3.13 C yes
Is the building designed in compliance with requirements in table 6.3.13 D?
(Not applicable to SD) no max 50 linear feet horizontal

the horizontal distance without
articulation exceeds 50'

Does the parking and proposed garage meet standards? 6.3.14 (Not applicable
to SD) n/a no garage
Is there private property common areas and do they meet standards 6.3.15 A E
(Not applicable to SD or to single family detached /attached residential uses in
T4 or T5) yes
Are the proposed street lights designed and installed on compliance with the
City’s Street Light Policy? 6.3.17 yes
Are all proposed new electric, telephone, and cable wires along the public
street ROW underground? 6.3.18 yes

Is the sign type permitted? 6.3.16B (Not applicable to SD r) no
warrant only, 60 sf,
8' tall by 2' wide

Does the proposed sign type meet standards? 6.3.16C no 12' high by 10' wide
Sign Standards: UDC 6.3.16

Public Frontage Standards: UDC
6.3.11

General Planting: UDC 6.3.12

Architectural, Parking, Street
Lights & Utilities: UDC 6.3.13, 14,

17 and 18



B a y l o r  S c o t t  &  W h i t e  M i x e d - U s e  D e v e l o p m e n t
Development Signage Concepts

Retail Monument Signage, Type A - Version 2 (Base Plate)Images are conceptual and subject to change.  Dimensions are approximate and subject to City approval .

Steel post with tube cross-bracing

Internally lit box sign panel (1’ - 10” x 8’)

Steel ID Panel

Stone and precast base to match 
architecture

Rough limestone blocks to match 
landscape and retaining walls

11
 - 

8”
 m

ax
 h

t.

9’-6”Steel cap

Internally lit box sign panel; Prime (2’ - 8” x 8’)



B a y l o r  S c o t t  &  W h i t e  M i x e d - U s e  D e v e l o p m e n t
Development Signage Concepts

Images are conceptual and subject to change.  Dimensions are approximate and subject to City approval .

Steel post with tube cross-bracing

Internally lit box sign panel (1’ - 10” x 8’)

Stone and precast base to match 
architecture

Rough limestone blocks to match 
landscape and retaining walls

10
’-8

” 
to

 1
1’

-8
”

9’-6”

Internally lit box sign panel; Prime (2’ - 8” x 8’)



B a y l o r  S c o t t  &  W h i t e  M i x e d - U s e  D e v e l o p m e n t
Development Signage Concepts

Retail Monument Signage, Type B - Prime SoloImages are conceptual and subject to change.  Dimensions are approximate and subject to City approval .

Steel post with tube cross-bracing

Internally lit box sign panel (4’ x 7’)

Stone and precast base to match 
architecture

Rough limestone blocks to match 
landscape and retaining walls

7 
- 1

0”
 m

ax
 h

t.

8’-6”



DRC Comments from 9-2-14 meeting 

S. 31st and Scott Blvd. Planned Development (PD) Site Plan 

Planning 

 Location of any cut-through access points from S. 31st Street sidewalk to the 
restaurants/retail to encourage pedestrian use?  

 Are proposed street lights to be consistent with existing TMED standard (such as at 
Temple College)? 

 Note: TMED exception would be needed for 6’ planting strip requirement between curb 
and sidewalk (to use the existing sidewalk), which would need to be addressed with the 
PD ordinance 

All addressed with applicant at 9/4/14 DRC meeting 

Fire 

 Show hydrant spacing to cover 500’ spacing (on topo utility map at least, if not site plan, 
too) to all parts of buildings as hose lays 

 Fire lane at S. 31st needs to be at least 20’ wide (on each side of the median) 
 Note: Plan for an alternate public access entrance 40’+ wide to the subsequent multi-

family phase 

All addressed with applicant at 9/4/14 DRC meeting 

Public Works (Engineering) 

 How will access/turning movement issues be addressed at the Scott Blvd. entrance on 
the back side of the retail (for example, will it be right turn in and out only?) 

 How will drainage be addressed? 
 Clearly define easement widths (existing and proposed) 
 Curb return radius for right turn from S. 31st into the development appears to be 

inadequate 
 Dumpster pad middle lot (retail) appears to be much smaller than the 12’ x 12’ 

requirements (see attached Dumpster Pad Requirements) 

All addressed with applicant at 9/4/14 DRC meeting 

IT (GIS) 

 Does the adjacent hotel plat (Hilton Garden Inn) provide an access easement for the 
western half of the proposed driveway? 

 Easement labels and property labels do not match what is on the plat. 









1 

ORDINANCE NO.  2014-4689

(PLANNING NO. Z-FY-14-38) 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A ZONING CHANGE FROM TMED (T5-c) TO 
PD-T5-c (PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT – TMED T5-c) ON A 
PORTION OF LOTS 2 AND 3, BLOCK 1, SCOTT AND WHITE 
PROPERTIES SUBDIVISION, LOCATED ON THE SOUTHWEST 
CORNER OF SCOTT BOULEVARD AND SOUTH 31ST STREET; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

___________________________________________________________________ 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
THAT: 

Part 1: The City Council approves a zoning change from TMED (T5-c) to PD-
T5-c (Planned Development District – TMED T5-c) on a portion of lots 2 and 3, block 
1, Scott and White Properties Subdivision, located on the southwest corner of Scott 
Boulevard and South 31st Street, as outlined in the map attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ 
and made a part hereof for all purposes and subject to the following exceptions from 
Section 6.3 (TMED) of the Unified Development Code: 

 Exceeds 12’ maximum front setback (Sec. 6.3.5.B.)
 80 percent impervious cover limitation (Sec. 6.3.5.B.) to allow:

o Lot 1: 85.1% impervious cover
o Lot 2: 87.3% impervious cover

 Note: Lot 3 is under the maximum with 75.1% impervious cover
 Less than the 2-story building height requirements (Sec. 6.3.5.D.)
 Allowing a commercial surface parking lot (Sec. 6.3.6.D. prohibits commercial

surface parking lots in T5-c)
 A drive-through would be permitted for a proposed restaurant (6.3.6.D. prohibits

drive-through restaurants in T5-c)
 1 tree per 12 parking spaces (Sec. 6.3.10.D. requires 1 tree per 10 parking spaces)
 5 foot sidewalk with no 6 foot planting strip between curb and sidewalk to allow

for the preservation of an existing sidewalk along Scott Blvd. (Sec. 6.3.11.B.5.)
 8 foot sidewalk with no 6 foot planting strip between curb and sidewalk to allow

for the preservation of an existing sidewalk along S. 31st Street (Sec. 6.3.11.D.2.)
 50 foot maximum building façade length without articulation (Sec. 6.3.13.D.

requires a 5-foot building offset at least every 50 feet of façade length)
 Two 8 foot x 9 foot freestanding single-tenant monument signs and two 12 foot x

10 foot multitenant monument signs (Sec. 6.3.16.C)



2 
 

 
 

Part 2: The City Council approves a zoning change subject to the following 
conditions: 

 
 Street lighting is consistent with the TMED lamp standards (lighting found 

along South 1st and South 5th Streets adjacent to Temple College) 
 Pedestrian connections from South 31st Street and Scott Boulevard sidealks 

to the retail development. 
 
Part 3:  The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the 

necessary changes to the City Zoning Map accordingly. 
 
Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 

sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable 
and, if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be 
declared invalid by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, 
such invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, 
paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by 
the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 5: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage 
in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of 
the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 2nd day 

of October, 2014. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 16th day of October, 2014. 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

10/02/14 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 
Don Bond, P.E., City Engineer 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with R.T. 
Schneider Construction Company, Ltd., (RTS) for construction of the 23rd Street Extension in an 
amount not to exceed $323,264.45. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt a resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY:  This project will extend 23rd Street from its current terminus near the Travis 
Science Academy connecting to 25th Street.  The project will provide curb and gutter, paving, 
drainage, sidewalk, landscaping, irrigation, and pedestrian lighting improvements. 

On October 17, 2013, Council authorized a professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & 
Associates, LP, (KPA) for professional services required to design the project in an amount not to 
exceed $39,830.On September 16, 2014, five bids were received for construction. Per the attached 
bid tabulation, RTS submitted the low bid on the project in the amount of $323,264.45. KPA’s opinion 
of probable construction cost was $425,000. KPA advises that the bid prices which were lower than 
the OPC are attributable to the relative workload of active construction projects for the bidding 
companies. 

KPA has found RTS to be a qualified bidder and recommends award of the construction contract to 
them in the total bid amount of $323,264.45. Construction time allotted for the project is 150 days. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Currently, funding in the amount of $425,807.47 is available in Capital – Bonds / 
South 23rd Street Extension, account 365-3400-531-6882, project 101107 to fund the construction 
contract with R.T. Schneider Construction Company, Ltd. in an amount not to exceed $323,264.45.   



10/02/14 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Bid Tabulation 
Letter of Recommendation 
Project Map 
Resolution 







P
:\T

em
pl

e 
R

ei
nv

es
tm

en
t\2

01
4\

D
ev

el
op

em
en

t\T
M

E
D

 C
IT

Y
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
S

 4
-3

-1
4\

T
M

E
D

 1
0-

17
-1

3.
dw

g

25TH STREET

23
R

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T

RALPH WILSON
YOUTH CLUBS

PROPOSED
23RD STREET

IMPROVEMENTS

0

HORIZONTAL SCALE IN FEET

30 60N
O
R
T
H

T M E D

0

HORIZONTAL SCALE IN FEET

30 60

PROPOSED 17TH TO 13TH ST.
(TMED AVE.) CONNECTION



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7512-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH R.T. 
SCHNEIDER CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, LTD., OF BELTON, TEXAS, 
FOR CONSTRUCTION OF THE 23RD STREET EXTENSION PROJECT, IN 
AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $323,264.45; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, the 23rd Street Extension Project will provide for the extension of 23rd Street 
from its current terminus near the Travis Science Academy connecting to 25th Street and will 
provide curb and gutter, paving, drainage, sidewalk, landscaping, irrigation and pedestrian 
lighting improvements; 

Whereas, on September 16, 2014, 5 bids were received for construction of the project 
and R.T. Schneider Construction Company, Ltd. submitted the low bid on the project; 

Whereas, staff believes R.T. Schneider Construction Company, Ltd. is qualified to 
complete this project and recommends award of the construction contract to the company in an 
amount not to exceed $323,264.45; 

Whereas, funding in the amount of $425,807.47 is available in the Capital– Bonds/South 
23rd Street Extension Account No. 365-3400-531-6882, Project No. 101107 to fund this 
construction; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest 
to authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE,
TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute a 
construction contract with R.T. Schneider Construction Company, Ltd., of Belton, Texas, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, for construction of the 23rd Street Extension Project, in 
an amount not to exceed $323,264.45. 

Part 2:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 2nd day of October, 2014. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary  City Attorney 




